
Page 1 of 3 
 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 12, 2015  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

15C‐0001. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

15C‐0002.  Roll Call 

15C‐0003.  Establishment of Quorum 
15C‐0004.  Pledge of Allegiance 
15C‐0005.  Reports of Standing Committees 
15C‐0006.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0007.  Public Hearing on Proposed Annexation Agreement Between the James B. 
Vincent Trust, Casey’s Retail Corporation and the City of Galena for the 
Construction of a Casey’s General Store on Approximately Four Acres at the 
Intersection of US Route 20 and Red Gates Road 

4‐41  

 
15C‐0008.  Public Hearing on an Application by Thomas Winkens, 604 Muir Street, 

Galena, Illinois, to Vacate Approximately 0.11 Acres of Street Right‐of‐Way 
Adjacent to his Property  

42‐47 

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA15‐01 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0009.  Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 22, 

2014  
 48‐51 

Page 1 of 106



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

14C‐0510.  Discussion and Possible Action on Budget Amendment BA14‐05 for Deer 
Population Control Program 

52‐53  

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0010. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution to Execute an Annexation 
Agreement Between the James B. Vincent Trust, Casey’s Retail Corporation 
and the City of Galena for the Construction of a Casey’s General Store on 
Approximately Four Acres at the Intersection of US Route 20 and Red Gates 
Road 

 
 

54‐55 

 
15C‐0011. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Vacating Approximately 0.11 Acres of Street 
Right‐of‐Way Adjacent to 604 Muir Street    

42‐47 

 
15C‐0012. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Proposal for Creating a Single 
Countywide Convention and Visitors Bureau 

‐‐ 

 
15C‐0013. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Change Order #1 for Police Department 
Renovation Project 

56‐58 

 
15C‐0014. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Grant Administration Contract for the 
Third and Rivers Sewer Project 

59‐60 

 
15C‐0015. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the 2016‐2020 Capital Improvement Plan 

61‐98 

 
15C‐0016. 

 
Warrants  

99‐106  

 
15C‐0017. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
15C‐0018. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
15C‐0019. 

 
Mayor’s Report   

15C‐0020. 
 
Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 106



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. January 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council  Mon. January 26  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. February 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, January 8, 2014 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 3 of 106



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 8, 2015 

RE:    Casey’s Annexation 
 
 
On December 18, 2014, the James B. Vincent Trust and the Casey’s Retail Corporation 
submitted a petition to annex the property at the southwest corner of the Red Gates Road and 
US Highway 20.  The property is the proposed site for the construction of a Casey’s General 
Store.   
 
I am attaching the proposed annexation agreement for the property.  The agreement was 
drafted by our staff and has been through several reviews and edits by the parties.  I 
understand that the draft agreement is acceptable to the petitioners.  Please review the 
agreement carefully and prepare any questions you might have for discussion at the council 
meeting on Monday.  I expect additional changes to the agreement may be desired. 
 
The annexation agreement would permit the store to be constructed under the codes and 
review of Jo Daviess County and then be annexed to the city within 60 days after occupancy.  
Casey’s would be permitted to connect to the city water and sewer systems as part of the 
agreement.   
 
A public hearing on the agreement will be conducted at the beginning of the council meeting.  A 
resolution to authorize the execution of the agreement is also on the agenda.  The resolution 
could be approved with a single reading, with or without changes to the agreement.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
    
 
 

  
 

 

Page 4 of 106



   

1 
 

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

 

  THIS AGREEMENT  is made on or as of the ______ day of ________________, 2015, by 

and between the CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois Municipal Corporation (the “City”) and the James 

B. Vincent Trust  (the “Trust”), Casey’s Retail Company, an  Iowa  corporation  (the “Contract 

Purchaser”) or their respective grantees, heirs, successors or assigns.  The Trust and Contract 

Purchaser are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Owner”. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. The  Trust  holds  title  to  or  has  an  interest  in  the  Property  hereinafter more  particularly 

described  in  “Exhibit  A.”    The  Contract  Purchaser  has  entered  into  an  agreement  to 

purchase  and  acquire  the  Property  from  the  Trust.    Section  11‐15.1‐1  of  the  Illinois 

Municipal Code authorizes municipalities to enter into annexation agreements providing for 

the  annexation  of  certain  property  upon  the  property  becoming  contiguous  to  the 

municipality. 

 

B. Section  11‐15.1‐2.1  of  the  Illinois Municipal  Code  provides  that  the  property  that  is  the 

subject  of  an  annexation  agreement  adopted  under  Division  15.1  is  subject  to  the 

ordinances, control and jurisdiction of the annexing municipality in all respects, the same as 

property that lies within the annexing municipality’s corporate limits. 

 

C. The Owner proposes to enter into an annexation agreement with the City for the Property 

and annex to the City upon completion of the construction of a Casey’s General Store on the 

Property.   

 
D. The City agrees to initiate the process to annex the Property and the process to rezone the 

Property to General Commercial District upon completion of the construction of a Casey’s 

General  Store on  the Property.   The  annexation of  the Property  is pursuant  to  authority 

Page 5 of 106



 2

granted  to  the Galena  City  Council  and  the  rezoning  of  the  Property  is  pursuant  to  the 

authority  granted  to  the  City  of  Galena  Zoning  Board  of  Appeals  and  the  Galena  City 

Council.   

 

E. Given  the  proximity  of  the  Property  to  the  City  and  the  contemplated  provision  of  City 

utilities to the Property, the development will have a greater impact on the City than upon 

any other unit of  local government having  the authority  to undertake regulation of  those 

operations. 

 

F. The City has determined that the annexation of the Property will further the orderly growth 

of the City and serve its best interests. 

 

G. On January 12, 2015, after duly published notice, the City Council of the City conducted a 

public  hearing  on  this  Agreement  in  accordance with  applicable  law.    A  resolution was 

subsequently adopted authorizing the Mayor to execute this Annexation Agreement.  

 

H. All notices required by 65 ILCS 5/7‐1‐1, were sent to the appropriate agencies. 

 
I. The Owner  is  requesting  the  Property  be  annexed  to  the City  of Galena,  subject  to  and 

conditioned upon the Property being re‐zoned to General/Commercial. 

 

J. Performance  by  both  the Owner  and  the  City  of  their  respective  obligations  under  this 

Agreement  is  critical  to  the  health,  safety  and welfare  of  the  general  public,  and  to  the 

enjoyment and use of property located in the vicinity of the Property. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and in consideration of the 

mutual  covenants  and  agreements  hereinafter  set  forth,  the  City  and  the  Owner  agree  as 

follows: 

 

 

Page 6 of 106



 3

ARTICLE I 
 

INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND EXHIBITS 
 

1.1  Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals herein above set forth are incorporated into 

and made a part of this Agreement. 

 

  1.2  Incorporation of Exhibits.   The exhibits attached hereto are  incorporated  into and 

made a part of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 
  2.1 Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning 

set  forth  opposite  each  of  them  except  where  the  use  or  context  clearly  indicates  that  a 

different meaning is intended: 

 

    2.1.1 “Agreement” or “this Agreement” shall mean this Annexation Agreement 

between the City and the Owner. 

 

    2.1.2  “City” means  the City  of Galena,  a municipal  corporation  organized  and 

existing under the laws of the State of Illinois and located in Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

 

    2.1.3 “County” means the County of Jo Daviess, a county government organized 

and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois. 

 

    2.1.4 “Owner” means collectively the James B. Vincent Trust and Casey’s Retail 

Company, an Iowa corporation, or their respective grantees, heirs, successors or assigns. 

 

    2.1.5 “Property” means  the real property  legally described on “Exhibit A,”  that 

being Jo Daviess County parcel numbers 22‐000‐067‐00 and 22‐000‐069‐10. 

Page 7 of 106



 4

 

    2.1.6  “Zoning  Code”  means  the  City  of  Galena  Zoning  Ordinance  found  at 

Chapter 154 of the Galena Code of Ordinances of the City. 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING OF THE PROPERTY 

 
  3.1 Submission of Petition to Annex.   On December 18, 2014, the Owner submitted a 

petition to the City to enter into an annexation agreement and annex the Property to the City.  

Pursuant  to 65  ILCS 5/7‐1‐8,  the Petition  for Annexation was  signed by  all of  the owners of 

record of the land within the proposed district.  No electors reside within the district. 

  

   3.2  Adoption  of  Ordinances  Addressing  Zoning  Matters.    Not  less  than  60  days 

following  the completion and occupancy of a Casey’s General Store on  the Property,  the City 

shall  file  an  application  to  initiate, without  cost  to  the Owner,  the  process  of  rezoning  the 

Property  from  Limited  Agricultural  District  to  General  Commercial  District.    The  rezoning 

process shall proceed  in accordance with the regular schedule of the Galena Zoning Board of 

Appeals  and  the  Galena  City  Council.    The Owner  agrees  to  fully  cooperate  in  the  process 

rezoning  the  Property.  In  the  event  the  City  elects  not  to  rezone  the  property  to  General 

Commercial District,  the Owner  shall have  the option of  terminating  this Agreement without 

penalty or recourse by the City and the City shall not annex the Property in accordance with this 

Agreement. 

  Owner retains the right to petition to amend the zoning classification of the Property to 

be  reasonably  consistent  with  future  developments  in  areas  adjacent  to  the  Property  in 

accordance with  the  Zoning Code  and  to  comply with  future  Zoning Code  amendments  and 

amendments  to  the  City’s  Comprehensive  Plan  and without  amendment  of  this Agreement.  

City  shall  in  due  and  normal  course  process  each  request  of  Owner  to  amend  the  zoning 

classification of the Property in accordance with procedures under the Zoning Code. 

 

Page 8 of 106



 5

  3.3 Annexation of  the Property.   Not  less  than 60 days  following  the completion and 

occupancy of a Casey’s General Store on the Property, the City shall, subject to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, do all things necessary or appropriate to cause the Property to be 

annexed  to  the City and  to  comply with  the provisions of  this Agreement.    In particular and 

without  limitation, the City shall pass and approve an ordinance annexing the Property to the 

City, and prepare and serve any notices as may be required for any township road district, fire 

protection district, library district, or other districts or officials as required by law.  The City shall 

record  as  necessary  the  ordinance  annexing  the  Property  and  record  or  file  any  other 

documents as may be necessary to effectuate the terms of this Agreement.  Owner shall submit 

an annexation plat including a legal description of the Property and depicting the relationship of 

the boundaries of the Property prior to  its annexation to the then‐existing corporate  limits of 

the City.  All other annexation costs shall be at the expense of the City.  

  It  is understood that the Owner will be responsible for any and all road  improvements 

or  construction  costs  associated with  Red Gates  Road.    The  City will  not  be  responsible  for 

widening the road, or adding any turning lanes. 

  The Owner will deal with the Illinois Department of Transportation as it pertains to the 

stoplights at  the  intersection of Highway 20 and Red Gates Road, and any  timing  issues  that 

may exist.   

    

3.4 Use of  the Property Prior  to Annexation. Until  the City  annexes  the Property  as 

provided in Section 3.3 of this Agreement, the City and Owner agree that the Property may be 

developed  as  a  Casey’s General  Store  in  accordance with  and  consistent with  the  terms  of 

approval  granted  by  the  Jo  Daviess  County  Board  on  December  10,  2014  and  with  any 

associated development permits and building permits issued by Jo Daviess County.  It is agreed 

that  the  development  of  the  property  may  proceed  in  accordance  with  the  plans  and 

specifications  titled “Casey’s General Store, Galena,  Illinois, W. Red Gates Road & U.S. Route 

20,” Project Number 14012, attached hereto and made part hereof as Exhibit B.   

 
 
 

Page 9 of 106



 6

ARTICLE IV 
 

PERMITS AND LICENSES 
 

4.1    In  the period prior  to  the approval of an ordinance annexing  the Property  to  the 

City, the Owner shall at its sole cost and expense acquire any and all licenses or permits which 

may be  required by applicable ordinances of  the County  for  construction of any buildings or 

development work on the Property.  The County shall control the plan review, permitting, and 

inspection processes for the development of the Property.  

 

4.2    The  Owner  shall  at  its  sole  cost  and  expense  acquire  the  following  licenses  or 

permits required by  the City  for  the connection  to  the sanitary sewage collection,  treatment, 

and disposal system and potable water supply system, to wit:  to connect to the City’s sanitary 

sewer  system,  $1,050.00;  to  connect  to  the  City’s  water  supply  and  distribution  system, 

$1,050.00; and $200.00 for a water meter.  Except for the costs of the foregoing, the City agrees 

that  it  will  not  charge  the  Owner  for  any  other  fees  associated  with  the  City’s  review  or 

approval of plans or development of  the Property.   The Owner shall also at  its  sole cost and 

expense acquire any  land development, water, or sewer permits that may be required by any 

state or federal statutes or regulations.  

 

4.3  Upon the submittal of a complete application by the Owner, the City agrees to issue 

a Class B  Liquor  License  to permit  the  retail  sale of  alcoholic  liquor  for  consumption on  the 

premises to be constructed on the Property as well as for consumption off the premises.  Said 

license shall be reviewed and approved in accordance with Chapter 111 of the Galena Code of 

Ordinances.  The City agrees to waive the initial liquor license fee of $5,625.00 for the issuance 

of  the Class B  Liquor  License.   The City  further agrees  that  it will provide a  credit  to Owner 

against  the  annual  $1,125.00  annual  liquor  license  fee  for  the  fees  actually  incurred  by  the 

Owner  in  obtaining  a  liquor  license  from  the  County  for  the  year  in which  the  City’s  liquor 

license is issued. 

 
 

Page 10 of 106



 7

ARTICLE V 
 

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 
 

5.1 The City  represents and warrants  that  it owns, operates and maintains a  sanitary 

sewage  collection,  treatment,  and  disposal  system within  its  borders  and  that  said  sanitary 

sewer system presently extends to the Property.  City further represents and warrants that said 

sanitary sewer system is sufficient in all respects, including capacity, to serve the Property and 

its  intended use.       All buildings on  the Property  that are  required by building  code  to have 

sanitary  sewer  facilities  shall  be  connected  to  the  public  sewer  system  and  shall  not  be 

permitted to utilize septic treatment or other alternative treatment or containment systems.   

 

5.2 Subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owner shall have the right to connect 

to and use such sanitary sewer system of the City without any recoupment fees.   Prior to the 

issuance of a connection permit, Owner shall pay to the City all permit, tap‐on and  inspection 

fees based on the fee schedule in place at the time of the execution of this Agreement.  Should 

the Property not be annexed at  the  time of connection  to  the sanitary sewer system, Owner 

shall be subject to a one‐hundred percent (100%) monthly surcharge for usage as set forth  in 

Galena  City  Code  of  Ordinances,  Section  51.008.    The  surcharge  shall  not  apply  when  the 

Property is annexed to the City. 

 

  5.3 The Owner shall provide  the City with an easement  for any addition  to  the public 

sewer  system,  such  as  a manhole,  that must  be  located  on  the  Property  because  it  cannot 

practically be located in the public right‐of‐way or on public property.   

 

  5.4 Owner  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  should  a  new  sanitary  lift  station(s),  pump 

system(s), or forced system(s) be required to exclusively serve the Property, the  lift station(s), 

pump system(s), or  forced system(s) shall be  located on the Property, be the property of the 

Owner, and be installed and maintained at the sole cost and expense of Owner.   

 

Page 11 of 106



 8

  5.5.  In  the  event  the  City  elects  not  to  rezone  the  Property  to  General  Commercial 

District,  and  the Owner  then  elects  to  void  this  Agreement,  the Owner  shall  be  entitled  to 

remain connected to the City sanitary sewer system subject to the monthly surcharge described 

in Section 5.2 of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

 
  POTABLE WATER SERVICE 

 
6.1 The City  represents and warrants  that  it owns, operates  and maintains  a potable 

water  supply  and  distribution  system  within  its  borders  and  that  said  water  supply  and 

distribution  system presently extends  to  the Property.   City  further  represents  and warrants 

that said water supply and distribution system is sufficient in all respects, including capacity, to 

serve the Property and its intended use.   All buildings, equipment and systems on the Property 

that  are  required  by  building  code  to  have water  service  shall  be  connected  to  the  potable 

water  supply  system and  shall not be permitted  to  connect  to private wells or other private 

water systems.   

 

6.2 Subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owner shall have the right to connect 

to and use the potable water supply system of the City without any recoupment fees.  Prior to 

the issuance of any potable water supply system connection permit, Owner shall pay to the City 

all permit,  tap‐on and  inspection  fees based on  the  fee  schedule  in place at  the  time of  the 

execution of this Agreement.  Should the Property not be annexed at the time of connection to 

the  potable water  supply  system, Owner  shall  be  subject  to  a  one‐hundred  percent  (100%) 

surcharge  for monthly usage as  set  forth  in Galena City Code of Ordinances, Section 51.008.  

The surcharge shall not apply when the Property is annexed to the City. 

 

6.3 Owner  shall  provide  the City with  an  easement  any  addition  to  the  public water 

supply  system,  such  as  a  valve,  that  must  be  located  on  the  Property  because  it  cannot 

practically be located in the public right‐of‐way or on public property.    

 

Page 12 of 106



 9

 6.4.  In  the  event  the  City  elects  not  to  rezone  the  Property  to General  Commercial 

District,  and  the Owner  then  elects  to  void  this  Agreement,  the Owner  shall  be  entitled  to 

remain connected to the City water supply system subject to the monthly surcharge described 

in Section 6.2 of this Agreement. 

   

ARTICLE VII 
 

TERM 
 

  7.1  This  Agreement  shall  be  binding  upon  the  parties  and  their  respective  grantees, 

heirs, successors and assigns for twenty (20) years, commencing as of the date hereof, and for 

such further term as may hereinafter be authorized by statute and by City ordinance.  If any of 

the  terms  of  this  Agreement  are  challenged  in  any  court  proceeding,  then,  to  the  extent 

permitted by law, the period of time during which such litigation is pending shall be included in 

calculating said twenty (20) year period.   

 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

  8.1 Breach and Opportunity to Cure.  Before any failure of any party to this Agreement 

to  perform  its  obligations  under  this  Agreement  shall  be  deemed  to  be  a  breach  of  this 

Agreement, the party claiming such failure shall notify in writing the party alleged to have failed 

to perform of the alleged failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement 

may be found to have occurred  if performance  is completed to the reasonable satisfaction of 

the complaining party within  thirty  (30) days after  receipt of  such notice, or  in  the case of a 

failure which by its nature takes in excess of thirty (30) days to cure, such longer period of time 

as may be reasonably necessary to cure the same provided that the curing party is pursuing said 

cure with due diligence. 

 

  8.2  Enforcement.    The  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  specifically 

enforceable by the parties hereto.  Any party to this Agreement by suit, action, mandamus, or 

Page 13 of 106



 10

other  proceeding may  enforce  or  compel  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  or  have  such 

other  relief  for  breach  of  the  Agreement  as  may  be  authorized  by  law  or  in  equity.  

Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  in  the  event  that  the  City  fails  to  abide  by  or  fulfill  the 

obligations required of it under this Agreement, then in such event the Property, at the option 

of Owner,  shall be de‐annexed  from  the City.   Any  litigation  initiated by either party  for  the 

purpose  of  seeking  enforcement  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  filed  in  the  Circuit  Court  of  Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois. 

 

  8.3 Amendment.   This Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto may be amended 

only by the mutual consent of the parties including in the case of the City, by the adoption of an 

ordinance or resolution of the City approving said amendment as provided by  law, and by the 

execution of said amendment by  the parties or  their successors  in  interest.   Any  language of 

this section which is inconsistent with Illinois law at the time such language is being construed 

regarding amendment of annexation agreements is hereby agreed by the parties as void. 

 

  8.4  No  Other  Agreements.    Except  as  otherwise  expressly  provided  herein,  this 

Agreement  supersedes  all  prior  agreements,  negotiations  and  discussions  relative  to  the 

subject matter hereof and fully integrates the agreement of the parties. 

 

  8.5  Binding  on  Successors.    This  Agreement  shall  be  binding  upon  and  inure  to  the 

benefit  of  the  parties  hereto  and  their  respective  grantees,  heirs,  successors  and  permitted 

assigns.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, upon transfer 

of  title  of  the  Property  from  the  Trust  to  the  Contract  Purchaser,  the  Trust  shall  be  fully 

released by City from any and all obligations under the terms of this Agreement, and City shall 

thereafter only seek to enforce the terms of this Agreement against the Contract Purchaser or 

its grantees, heirs, successors or assigns. 

 

Page 14 of 106



 11

  8.6 Consent.   Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever  consent or approval of 

either party is required, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or unduly 

delayed. 

 

  8.7 Paragraph Headings.  Paragraph headings and references are for the convenience of 

the  parties  and  are  not  intended  to  limit,  vary,  define  or  expand  the  terms  and  provisions 

contained  in  this  Agreement  and  shall  not  be  used  to  interpret  or  construe  the  terms  and 

provisions of this Agreement. 

 

  8.8  Severability.    If  any  provision,  covenant  or  portion  of  this  Agreement  or  its 

application to any person, entity or property  is held  invalid, such  invalidity shall not affect the 

application or validity of any other provisions, covenants or portions of this Agreement (and to 

that end, any provisions, covenants or portion of this Agreement are declared to be severable). 

 

  8.9 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws and 

decisions of the State of Illinois.   

 

  8.10 Notices.  All notices herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be effective 

as of the date of actual delivery if by personal delivery or as of the third day from and including 

the  day  of  posting  if  mailed  by  certified  or  registered mail  return  receipt  requested  with 

postage prepaid: 

To the City:          City of Galena 

            Attention:  City Administrator  

            101 Green Street Main Street 

            Galena, Illinois 61036 

 

with a copy to:        City Attorney 

            101 Green Street 

            Galena, Illinois 61036   

Page 15 of 106



 12

To Owner:          Douglas Beech 

Legal Counsel 

Casey’s General Stores, Inc. 

One Convenience Blvd. 

Ankeny, Iowa 50021 

    

or to such replacement parties as may from time to time be identified by written notice. 

   

8.11 Mutual  Assistance.    Subject  to  provisions  of  this  Agreement  requiring  payment  for  or 

reimbursement to the City for costs by Owner, the City and Owner shall do all things necessary 

or appropriate  to carry out  the  terms and provisions of  this Agreement and  to aid and assist 

each other in carrying out the terms and objectives of this Agreement and the intentions of the 

Parties as reflected by said terms,  including, without  limitation, the giving of such notices, the 

holding of such public hearings, the enactment by the City of such resolutions and ordinances 

and  the  taking  of  such  other  actions  as may  be  necessary  to  enable  the  City’s  and Owner 

compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and as may be necessary to give 

effect  to  the  terms  and  objectives  of  this  Agreement  and  the  intentions  of  the  parties  as 

reflected by said terms.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have caused this Annexation Agreement to 

be executed effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF GALENA:           
 
BY:                 
____________________________________      
Its Mayor             
            
ATTEST:              
 
_____________________________________     
Its City Clerk                            
                   
             

Page 16 of 106



 13

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 
                  ) ss. 
JO DAVIESS COUNTY  ) 
 
  The  foregoing  instrument was acknowledged before me by Terry Renner, City Mayor, 
and Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk, this ______ day of __________________, 2015. 
 
 
              _____________________________ 
                Notary Public 
 
 
 
OWNER: 
 
James B. Vincent Trust 
 
By:              , as Trustee 
 
By:              , as Trustee 
 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS    ) 
                       ) ss. 
________________ COUNTY  ) 
 
 
    I, the undersigned, a Notary Public,  in and for said County,  in the State aforesaid, 
Do Hereby Certify  that _________________________, as Trustee of  the  James B. Vincent Trust, 
personally  known  to me  to  be  the  same  person whose  name  is  subscribed  to  the  foregoing 
instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and 
delivered the said instrument as his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set 
forth. 
   
    Given under my hand and Notarial Seal this _____ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
 
            __________________________________ 
                             Notary Public   
 
 
 

Page 17 of 106



 14

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS    ) 
                       ) ss. 
________________ COUNTY  ) 
 
    I, the undersigned, a Notary Public,  in and for said County,  in the State aforesaid, 
Do Hereby Certify  that _________________________, as Trustee of  the  James B. Vincent Trust, 
personally  known  to me  to  be  the  same  person whose  name  is  subscribed  to  the  foregoing 
instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and 
delivered the said instrument as his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set 
forth. 
 
  Given under my hand and Notarial Seal this _____ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
 
            __________________________________ 
                             Notary Public   
 
 
Casey’s Retail Company, 
an Iowa corporation,            ATTEST: 
 
By:                  By:             
 
Its:                  Its:             
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
                                 ) ss. 
POLK COUNTY    ) 
 
  I,  the  undersigned,  a Notary  Public,  in  and  for  said  County,  in  the  State  aforesaid, Do 
Hereby  Certify  that  ________________________,    of  Casey’s  Retail  Company,  an  Iowa 
corporation, and by ___________________, _____________________, personally known to me to 
be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before 
me  this  day  in  person  and  acknowledged  that  they  signed,  sealed  and  delivered  the  said 
instrument as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
 
  Given under my hand and seal this _______ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
              Notary Public 
 

Page 18 of 106



 15

 
 
PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
 
Joseph Nack 
City Attorney 
City of Galena  
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
815/777‐1050 
 
  

Page 19 of 106



 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 
 
TRACT 1:    Address:   Route 20 West, Galena, IL   61036 

Parcel #22‐000‐067‐00 
 
That part of the southwest Quarter of Section 13 and part of the Southeast Quarter of Section  14, 
all  in Township 28 North, Range 1 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
commencing  at  the  west  Quarter  Corner of  Section  13;  thence  South 01 degree 42 minutes 
and 28 seconds West on the West line thereof, 33.01 feet to a point for the place of beginning; 
thence South 87 degrees 14 minutes and 21 seconds East, 374.83 feet; thence South 50 degrees 
03 minutes and 36 seconds East, 31.77 feet; thence North 86 degrees  24 minutes and 35 seconds 
East, 50.19 feet; thence North 53 degrees 22 minutes and 46 seconds East, 21.71 feet; thence 
South 87 degrees 14 minutes and 21 seconds East, 224. 53  feet;  thence South 32 degrees 28 
minutes and 09 seconds East, 27.61 feet; thence South 21 degrees 54 minutes and 13 seconds 
West, 70.03  feet; thence South 23 degrees 05 minutes and 27 seconds West, 98.09 feet; thence 
South 17 degrees 50 minutes and 07  seconds West, 12.15  feet;  thence North 87 degrees 38 
minutes and 21 seconds West, 722.63 feet; thence North 29 degrees 47 minutes and 32 seconds 
East, 168.18 feet to a point on the West line of  the Southwest Quarter of said Section 13; thence 
North 01 degree 42 minutes and 28 seconds East, 47.51 feet to the place of beginning in Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, and subject to any and all easements of record. 
 
TRACT 2:      Address:    10850 Route 20 West, Galena,   IL  61036 

Parcel #22‐000‐069‐10 
 
That part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 13, Township 28 North, Range 1 West of  the Fourth 
Principal Meridian described as follows: Commencing at the West Quarter Corner of  Section 13; 
thence South 01 degree 42 minutes and 28 seconds West on the West  line of said Southwest 
Quarter 229.80 feet; thence South 87 degrees 38 minutes and 21 seconds East, 392.14 feet to a 
point  for  the place of beginning;  thence South 12 degrees 58 minutes and 46  seconds West, 
151.54 feet; thence South 77 degrees 33 minutes and 14 seconds East  232.32 feet; thence North 
09 degrees 25 minutes and 42 seconds East, 25.22 feet; thence North 18  degrees 47 minutes and 
42 seconds East, 105.10 feet; thence North 17 degrees 50 minutes and 07 seconds East,  66.19 
feet;  thence North 87 degrees 38 minutes and 21  seconds West, 251.31  feet  to  the place of  
beginning in Jo Daviess County, Illinois and subject to any and all easements of record. 
 

Page 20 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C00

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

VICINITY MAP

OWNER:

ILLINOIS
ONE CALL SYSTEM
DIAL 811 OR

(800) 892-0123

GENERAL NOTES

APPROVAL
JO DAVIESS COUNTY
IDOT

PENDING
PENDING

DATE

TELEPHONE:

ELECTRIC:

GAS:

CABLE TELEVISION:

UTILITY OFFICIALS

NICOR GAS
GINA BURNS
(815) 873-5503

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT:
JIM RIGDON
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS, CITY OF GALENA
312 1/2 N. MAIN STREET
GALENA, ILLINOIS 61036

AT&T
(800) 222-0300

JO-CARROLL ENERGY
(800) 334-7661

1. The designs represented in these plans are in accordance with established practices of civil engineering for the
design functions and uses intended by the owner at this time.  Neither the engineer nor its personnel can or do
warrant these designs or plans as constructed except in the specific cases where the engineer inspects and controls
the physical construction on a contemporary basis at the site.

2. The contractor, by agreeing to perform the work, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the owner, the engineer,
the city, and all agents and assigns of those parties, from all suits and claims arising out of the performance of said
work, and further agrees to defend or otherwise pay all legal fees arising out of the defense of said parties.

3. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the contractor shall be solely and completely
responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the
work.  This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.  Any construction
observation by the engineer of the contractor's performance is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the
contractors safety measures, in, or near the construction site. The contractor is responsible for maintaining
adequate signs, barricades, fencing, traffic control devices and measures, and all other measures that are necessary
to protect the safety of the site at all times.

4. Maintain access for vehicular and pedestrian traffic as required for other construction activities.  Use traffic control
devices to include temporary striping, flagmen, barricades, warning signs, and warning lights shall be in accordance
with current MUTCD and IDOT standards.

5. All phases of the site work for this project shall meet or exceed industry standards and requirements set forth by
the the owner's "Description of Work", Jo Daviess County, City of Galena, the State of Illinois, and this plan set.

6. Jo Daviess county must be notified at least two (2) working days prior to the commencement or resumption of any
work.

7. The contractor shall coordinate all permit and inspection requirements with responsible local, state, and federal
agencies. The contractor shall include the costs of this coordination and all inspection fees in the bid price.

8. All work performed by the contractor shall come with a warranty against defects in workmanship and materials. This
warranty period shall run concurrent with the required warranty periods the owner must provide to each local
government agency, as a condition of the permit.

9. The contractor will be held solely responsible for and shall take precautions necessary to avoid property damage to
adjacent properties during the construction of this project.

10. All structures, inlets, pipes, swales, roads and public egresses must be kept clean and free of dirt and debris at all
times.

11. Any field tiles encountered during construction shall be recorded showing size, location, and depth by the contractor,
and either reconnected and rerouted or connected to the storm sewer system. The owner shall be notified
immediately upon encountering any tile.

12. The contractor shall field verify the elevations of the benchmarks prior to commencing work. The contractor shall
also field verify the location and elevation of existing pipe inverts, curb or pavement where matching into existing
work. The contractor shall field verify horizontal control by referencing property corners to known property lines.
Notify the engineer of discrepancies in either vertical or horizontal control prior to proceeding.

13. All elevations are on USGS NAVD 88 datum.

14. Parking areas designated as A.D.A. and all sidewalk shall be compliant with state and local A.D.A. requirements.

15. Tactile warning plates per IDOT specifications shall be placed at all locations where sidewalk that is to be replaced
intersects public roads and at locations indicated in this plan set.

16. The contractor shall verify the location of all utilities in the field prior to construction.  This includes sanitary sewer,
water main, storm sewer, AT&T, Jo-Carroll Energy, NICOR and Mediacom, if any.  The J.U.L.I.E. number is
1-800-892-0123.

17. Property corners shall be carefully protected until they have been referenced by a Professional Land Surveyor.

18. The contractor shall keep careful measurements and records of all construction and shall furnish the Engineer, the
Owner, County and the City with record drawings in a digital format compatible with AutoCAD Release 14 upon
completion of his work.

19. Any excess dirt or materials shall be placed by the contractor onsite at the owner's direction or as indicated on the
plans.

20. Notify the owner Jo Daviess County and the City of Galena of any existing wells. Obtain permit form the Illinois
Bureau of Minerals and the State Water Survey. Cap and abandon wells in accordance with local, state, and federal
regulations.

21. Finish grade shall in all areas not specifically reserved for storm water management shall drain freely. No ponding
shall occur. Tolerances to be observed will be measured to the nearest 0.04 of a foot for paved surfaces and 0.10 of
a foot for unpaved areas.

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021

Rick Fidler (515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

SITE

MEDIACOM
RICHARD HOYER-CENTRAL IOWA REGION
(888) 847-6228

INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET
NUMBER SHEET TITLE

C00 COVER SHEET

C01 GENERAL NOTES

C02 GENERAL NOTES

C03 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C04 EROSION CONTROL PLAN PHASE 1

C05 EROSION CONTROL PLAN PHASE 2

C06 EROSION CONTROL PLAN PHASE 3

C07 EROSION CONTROL PLAN PHASE 3- WEST

C08 EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REMOVALS PLAN

C09 LAYOUT PLAN

C10 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN EAST

C11 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN WEST

C12 UTILITY PLAN

C13 DETAILS

C14 DETAILS

C15 IDOT DETAILS

C16 IDOT DETAILS

C17 ADS DETAILS

C18 ADS DETAILS

C19 ADS DETAILS

L1 LANDSCAPING PLAN

BUILDING AND ZONING:
LINDA DELVAUX
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR, JO DAVIESS COUNTY
1 COMMERCIAL DRIVE, SUITE 1
HANOVER, IL 61041

ENGINEER:

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

EXHIBIT B

Page 21 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C01

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

EARTHWORK NOTES
1. Water mains and services shall be constructed in accordance with the following:

A. "Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois" (Standard Specifications), seventh edition dated May 2014, and all revisions and
supplements thereto.

B. All applicable state and local plumbing codes.
C. Additional details and requirements provided in the contract documents, including this plan set.
D. Jo Daviess County watermain codes.
E. City of Galena watermain codes.
Where criteria of the aforementioned specifications conflict, the more stringent criteria shall be implemented.

2. Contact all public and private utility companies 48 hours prior to any excavation.  Cost of replacement or repair of existing utilities damaged as a result of the
contractor's operation shall be the contractor's responsibility.

3. All water main and service pipe greater than 2" in diameter shall be Ductile Iron Pipe in accordance with C151, Class 52 in accordance with AWWA standard C150
and C104. Fittings shall comply with AWWA C110. Joints--mechanical and push-on shall comply with AWWA C111.

4. The minimum cover for all water main and water service pipe is 6' from finished grade to top of pipe.
5. All water mains under and within two feet of any existing or proposed street pavement or curb shall be backfilled with IDOT approved granular backfill material.

Trench and backfill shall be placed in lifts not to exceed 12" compacted to 95% of maximum Standard proctor density.
6. All valves shall be butterfly Mueller model B3211-20 or gate Mueller model A-2370-20 valves with mechanical joints, resilient seat wedge type, with cast iron body,

bronze mounted, bronze non-rising stem, double disc pattern, designed for 300 pounds working pressure meeting AWWA Standard C509.  All valves shall open
left.

7. Water main separation from storm and sanitary sewer shall conform to section 41-2.01 of the Standard Specifications.
8. The water service pipe shall be type K copper tubing in accordance with ASTM b-88 up to 2" in diameter.  The corporation cock, curb stop, and the service box

shall be of type and manufacture acceptable to Jo Daviess County and the City of Galena.
9. No object may be constructed, maintained or installed within 48 inches of a fire hydrant.  No trees, bushes, walls, or other obstacles which may hide or impede the

use of a fire hydrant will not be permitted.
10. Hydrants shall be painted in conformity to AWWA Std. C502. The contractor shall verify color of paint with City of Galena prior to procurement.
11. All fire hydrants shall comply with AWWA Standard C502 and the City of Galena requirements.  The contractor shall contact the City of Galena for specific

requirements. All public hydrants shall have a "breakaway" design and shall be placed so that the center of the pumper nozzle is 18 to 24 inches above the ground
line. A hole of 1/2 cubic yard volume shall be dug at each hydrant and filled with washed gravel to act as a drain for two (2) bronze lined outlets. Hydrants shall be
Mueller Centurion model A-423 unless a different model is approved in advance by City of Galena.

12. Fire hydrants shall be placed at least 3 feet off the edge of pavement.
13. Connections to Existing Mains. All connections to the City water distribution system shall be made under full water service pressure unless otherwise approved by

the City Engineer at locations approved by the City Engineer.
14. Pressure Test.

A. As part of the construction, the water mains shall be pressure tested in accordance with Section 41-2.12 of the Standard Specifications.
B. All newly laid pipe shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure of 150 pounds per square inch. Duration of each pressure test shall be for a period of not less

than two hours. Each valved section of pipe shall be filled with water and the specified test pressure shall be applied by means of a pump connected to the
pipe.

C. Before applying the specified test pressure, all air shall be expelled from the pipe. All leaks shall be repaired until tight. Any cracked or defective pipes,
fittings, valves, or hydrants discovered in consequence of this pressure test shall be removed and replaced and the test repeated until satisfactory results are
obtained.

15. All testing shall be done after the installation of service lines. Suitable means shall be provided for determining the quantity of water lost by leakage under the
specified test pressure in accordance with Section 41-2.14C of the Standard Specifications.

16. Disinfection.
A. Water from the existing distribution system or other source of supply shall be controlled so as to flow slowly into the newly laid pipeline during the

application of chlorine gas. The rate of chlorine mixture flow shall be in such proportion to the rate of water entering the pipe that the chlorine dose applied
to the water entering the newly laid pipe shall be at least forty to fifty ppm, or enough to meet the requirements during the retention period. This may
require as much as one hundred ppm of chlorine in the water left in the line after chlorination.

B. Valves shall be manipulated so that the strong chlorine solution in the line being treated will not flow back into the line supplying the water.
C. Treated water shall be retained in the pipe long enough to destroy all spore-forming bacteria. This retention period shall be at least twenty-four hours. After

the chlorine-treated water has been retained for the required time, the chlorine residual at the pipe extremities and at other representative points should be
at least ten ppm.

D. In the process of chlorinating newly laid pipe, all valves or other appurtenances shall be operated while the pipeline is filled with the chlorinating agent.
E. All water mains and services shall be disinfected and tested according to the requirements of the Standards for Disinfecting Water Mains, AWWA C601. All

disinfection shall be performed by an independent firm exhibiting experience in the methods and techniques of this operation, and shall be approved by the
City.

17. Final Flushing and Testing.
A. Following chlorination, all treated water shall be thoroughly flushed from the newly laid pipeline at its extremities until the replacement water, throughout its

length shall, upon test, be approved as safe water by the City Engineer. This quality of water delivered by the new main should continue for a period of at
least two full days as demonstrated by laboratory examination of samples taken from a tap located and installed in such a way as to prevent outside
contamination. Samples should never be taken from an unsterilized hose or from a fire hydrant, because such samples seldom meet current bacteriological
standards.

B. After disinfecting and flushing, water samples shall be collected by the contractor on two successive days, with notice given, so that the collection may be
witnessed by the City. Bacteriological sampling and analysis of the samples shall be performed by a laboratory approved by the Illinois Department of Public
Health and the City. Should the initial treatment result in an unsatisfactory bacterial test, the procedure shall be repeated until satisfactory results are
obtained. The contractor or developer shall pay for the sampling and analysis. Results of the analysis shall be transmitted by the laboratory directly to the
City Engineer. Test results shall indicate the date the sample was collected, the date the analysis was made, the exact locations at which samples were
taken, the firm submitting the sample, and the project at which the samples were collected. Sufficient samples shall be collected in order to insure that the
system is bacteriologically safe.

18. Record Drawings are required by the City of Galena.  The Contractor shall record measurements from property pins to the centers of the valve lids and curb boxes.
Each measurement shall be parallel or perpendicular to the property line.

19. Any areas where solid rock is encountered when laying the water main, approved bedding material shall be used.

1. Sanitary Sewer shall be constructed in accordance with the following:
A. "Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois" (Standard Specifications), seventh edition dated May 2014, and all revisions and

supplements thereto.
B. All applicable state and local plumbing codes.
C. Additional details and requirements provided in the contract documents, including this plan set.
Where criteria of the aforementioned specifications conflict, the more stringent criteria shall be implemented.

2. Contact all public and private utility companies 48 hours prior to any excavation.  Cost of replacement or repair of existing utilities damaged as a result of the
contractor's operation shall be the contractor's responsibility.

3. The contractor shall field verify the elevations of the benchmarks prior to commencing work.  The contractor shall also field verify location, elevation and size  of
existing utilities, and verify floor, curb or pavement elevations where matching into existing work.  The contractor shall field verify horizontal control by referencing
shown coordinates to known property lines.  Notify engineer of discrepancies in either vertical control prior to proceeding with work.

4. Refer to building plans for exact locations of new utility entries.
5. Install cleanouts and manholes in accordance with the standard details in this plan set and with the aforementioned standard specifications. The contractor shall adjust

all cleanouts and manhole castings to final grade as defined in this plan set.
6. Cap ends of any conduits installed and mark ends.
7. All sanitary sewers under and within two feet of any existing or proposed pavement shall be backfilled with granular backfill material IDOT gradation FA-6 or approved

equal.  (grade 8 or grade 9).
8. Sanitary sewer services shall be 6" pvc/watermain quality SDR 26 in accordance with ASTM D-2241, or solvent welded SCH. 40 PVC in accordance with ASTM D-1785

and D-2665. All services shall be sloped from the main at 1% minimum unless otherwise noted.
9. Infiltration testing.

A. It is the intent of this title to secure a sewer system with a minimum amount of infiltration. The maximum allowable infiltration shall not exceed two hundred
gallons per inch of diameter of sewer per mile per twenty-four hour day at any time for any section of the system. The joints shall be tight and any joint with
visible leakage or leakage in excess of that specified above shall be repaired at the developer's expense.

B. The repair must be of a permanent nature and of a quality equal to initial work which is constructed in conformance with the applicable specifications.
C. immediately after backfilling, the entire length of the sewer trench, including stubs, shall be inundated to normal ground water level or eighteen inches above the

top of sewer pipe, whichever is higher. at that time, infiltration tests shall be made to determine compliance with the allowable infiltration criteria. to measure the
amount of infiltration, the contractor shall furnish, install, and maintain a v-notch shape crested weir in a metal frame tightly secured at the lower end of each
sewer test section as directed by the city engineer or his/her authorized representative. the city engineer or his/her authorized representative will check the
infiltration by measuring the flow over such weirs. when infiltration is demonstrated to be within the allowable limits, the contractors shall remove such weirs.

9. Exfiltration testing. if during the construction of the sewer system the engineer shall determine that it is impractical to obtain a proper infiltration test, then a test for
watertightness shall be made by bulkheading the sewer at the manhole at the lower end of the section under test and filling the sewer with water to eighteen inches
above the top of the sewer in the manhole at the upper end of the section. leakage will then be the measured amount of water added to maintain the above described
level at a maximum allowable exfiltration rate of two hundred gallons per inch of diameter of sewer per mile per twenty-four hour day at any time for any section of
the system.

10. Air testing. in lieu of infiltration or exfiltration testing, the city engineer may permit air testing in accordance with ASTM C-828.
11. Deflection testing for flexible conduit

A. All sanitary sewer lines shall be deflection-tested after 30 days following final backfill operations.
B. If the deflection test is to be run using a rigid ball or mandrel, it shall have a diameter equal to 95% of the base diameter of the pipe as established in proposed

ASTM D-3034.  the test shall be performed without mechanical pulling devices.
C. Wherever possible and practical, the testing shall initiate at the downstream lines and proceed towards the upstream lines.
D. Maximum allowable pipe deflection is 5%. where deflection is found to be in excess of 5% of the original pipe diameter, the contractor shall excavate to the point

of excess deflection and carefully compact around the point excess deflection was found.  The line shall then be retested for deflection.  however, should after the
initial testing the deflected pipe fail to return to the original size (inside diameter) the line shall be replaced.

1. Unsuitable Materials:
Assume that if unsuitable materials are encountered and the replacement of these materials is required, this situation shall be handled as follows:
A. The site contractor shall notify the general contractor immediately. The project superintendent, prior to the undercutting being completed, must approve any

additional undercutting.  The quantities must be verified by the engineer as the additional removal is being completed.
B. If approved by the general contractor, these materials shall be removed and replaced with compacted granular materials and compacted in accordance to

required standards.  The cost of this work shall be an extra to the contract, with the cost being adjusted by change order. Undercuts are to be added to the
contract.

C. If the site contractor is furnishing any off site materials, a representative sample of such materials shall be furnished to the general contractor's approved
testing agency to determine a proctor.

D. These materials shall be placed as homogeneously as possible to facilitate accurate compaction and moisture testing.
2. Definition for materials

A. "Organic material" is defined as material having an organic content in excess of 8% or as determined by the project owner's engineer.
B. Topsoil shall be friable and loamy (loam, sandy loam, silt loam, sandy clay loam, or clay loam).  Sand content shall generally be less than 70% by weight, and

clay content shall generally be less than 35% by weight.  Organic soils, such as peat or muck, shall not be used as topsoil.
C. Topsoil shall be relatively free from large roots, weeds, brush, or stones larger than 25 mm (1 inch).  At least 90% shall pass the 2.00 mm (no. 10) sieve.
D. Topsoil ph shall be between 5.0 and 8.0.  topsoil organic content shall not be less than 1.5% by weight.  Topsoil shall contain no substance that is potentially

toxic to plant growth.
E. “Existing on-site material” is defined as material of such a quality that the specified compaction can be met without any additional work other than "densifying"

with a roller. Scarification and drying of this material will not need to be done prior to compaction.
F. “Existing on-site material” is defined as material with a high moisture content that can not meet specified compaction requirements without scarification and

drying, chemical stabilization, etc. of this material prior to compaction.
G. “Unsuitable material” is defined as any materials that:

G.1. Cannot be utilized as “topsoil”, (organic) for landscape areas.
G.2. Cannot be utilized as “engineered fill”, regardless of moisture content and/or does not structurally meet the standards of the project owner's engineer's

recommendations for “engineered fill”.
G.3. These materials can be defined as natural materials or materials from "demolition" and/or excavated areas; i.e., they are materials that would not be

suitable for "engineered fill".
H. “Off-site material” is defined as any materials that are brought from any area not indicated on this plan set.
I. “Trench backfill” shall be defined as any materials used for the purposes of backfilling any trench and/or any excavation requiring backfilling.  Refer to the

section titled “standards for fill areas” for determine acceptable materials and procedures.
J. the term “stripping” or “strip” as used herein shall be defined as the removal of all “organic materials” from a given area. the term “organic materials” is

defined as material having an organic content over 8% based on ASTM test method D-2974 or as defined by the owner's engineer.
3. Standards for cut areas:

A. A "cut area" is defined as any area where “engineered fill” is not required to bring the site to design subgrade elevation, instead excavation or "cutting" is
required to achieve design subgrade elevation.  (“Engineered fill” being defined as any material being “offsite material”.)

B. In "cut areas" the site contractor shall perform one of the following procedures at the discretion and in the presence of a representative of the owner's
engineer and the project architect:
B.1. Item 1: for exposed building or parking lot subgrades consisting primarily of granular soils the exposed subgrade should be compacted/densified by at

least one (1) pass of a smooth-drummed vibratory roller having a minimum gross weight of 10 tons.
B.2. Item 2: for exposed building or parking lot subgrades consisting primarily of cohesive soils, the exposed subgrades should be proof-rolled with a

fully-loaded six-wheel truck having a minimum gross weight of 25 tons.  the maximum allowable deflection under the specified equipment shall be 1/2".
C. In the event that adequate stability of granular soils subgrades cannot be achieved by the procedures as outlined in item 1, above, or that deflections of

greater than 1/2" are observed during the “proof rolling” of cohesive soils subgrades, as outlined in item 2, above, additional corrective measures will be
required.  These measures could include, but not necessarily be limited to, scarification, moisture conditioning, and re-compaction; undercutting &
replacement with engineered fill and chemical stabilization, etc.. with crushed stone (with or without geotextiles); chemical stabilization, etc.

D. It shall be considered as part of the scope of these documents and thus part of this contractor's responsibility to perform scarification and allow for drying of
the subgrade per illinois dot standards (scarify a 16” depth for 3 days).  If this does not work then additional drying measures shall be an extra to the
contract.

E. Any proposed corrective measures by the contractor should be reviewed by the owner's engineer and the project architect. in the event that in the opinion of
the owner's engineer and/or the project architect proof rolling is not a good indicator of the subgrade stability an alternative method shall be specified by the
owner's engineer and/or the project architect.

4. Standards for fill areas:
A. A “fill” area is defined as any area where material is required to adjust the existing elevation to a proposed subgrade elevation.  These areas will require the

installation of “engineered fill” to achieve design subgrade elevation. “Engineered fill” material can be defined as either “granular” and/or “soil” having their
origin for either the construction site and/or “offsite material”. Materials having their origin from the construction site is referred to as “borrow”. The
composition and the compaction standards of the engineered fill for this project will be specified by owner's engineer and the project architect.

B. In "fill” areas will borrow materials are allowed to be utilized as engineered fill the site contractor shall compact the borrow to the specified compaction.
5. Compaction standards (for engineered fill and back filled areas)

A. Prior to placement of fill in areas below design grade, the exposed subgrade should be observed by a representative of the owner's engineer to evaluate that
adequate stripping has been performed.  Additionally, the proof rolling or compacting procedures outlined in the "standards for cut areas" section should be
performed.  It is typical practice to proof roll, and densify if necessary, exposed subgrades prior to filling.  If soft or unstable subgrades are observed, these
areas should be stabilized or undercut.  Minimum compaction standards are based upon a percentage of the fill or backfill material's maximum standard
proctor dry density (ASTM specification D-698).  All engineered subgrades should meet the following minimum compaction:
A.1. Areas under foundations bases:

A.1.A. 95% standard proctor for all fill placed below foundation base elevation in the building area.
A.1.B. areas under floor slabs and above foundations/footing bases:
A.1.C. 95% standard proctor for all fill placed more than 12 inches below final grade for support of floor slabs and above foundation base elevation in

the building area.
A.1.D. 95% standard proctor for fill placed in the upper 12 inches of design subgrade below slabs.  The granular fill under the floor slab should be

compacted to at least 95% standard proctor.
A.2. Areas under pavement sections:

A.2.A. 95% standard proctor for all fill placed more than 12 inches below passenger car pavement sections and 95% standard proctor for the top 12
inches.

A.3. Landscaped areas:
A.3.A. 90% standard proctor for all fill placed in landscape areas.  These areas should be brought to grade with "topsoil" to a depth of 12 inches in

areas to be seeded, 6 inches in areas to be sodded, and 24 inches for all interior curbed landscape islands.
A.4. Base course portion of pavement sections:

A.4.A. 95% standard proctor for all base course materials that are part of a “pavement section”.
B. The option of utilizing the modified proctor (ASTM D-1557) in lieu of the specified standard proctor (ASTM D-698) shall be at the discretion of the general

contractor, contingent upon written approval by the architect and owner's engineer and approved by the project architect.
C. Place all backfill and fill materials in layers that are not more than 8" in loose depth. before compacting, moisten or aerate each layer as necessary to provide

optimum moisture content. Compact each layer to required percentage of maximum density of the area.
6. Finish grading:

A. The term “finish grading” as used herein shall be defined as that condition that areas not receiving a finish product such as parking areas, driveways,
roadways, sidewalks, etc.  finish graded areas would generally be those areas receiving “landscaping” such as seed, sod, trees, bushes, mulch, etc.

B. The site contractor is responsible for "finish grading" all areas within the perimeter of the "construction site".  The definition of the "construction site" is the
area encompassing all disturbed areas that were disturbed as a result of the construction process relating to the general contract which this site contract was
part of.

1. The contractor shall be responsible for the demolition and removal of all items that impede the proper placement of any items proposed by this plan set.
2. The removal work shall include but not be limited to: obtaining all demolition permits required, removal of the existing trees, sealing of the existing water well(s),

removal any septic system or dry wells (if any) and other items to complete the removals.
3. The contractor shall remove all materials deemed unsuitable by the engineer within eight inches of the proposed building footprint to the depth that such unsuitable

materials exist. Voids shall be filled in accordance with the "Earthwork Notes" on this plan sheet.
4. Tree removal shall include the complete removal of all trees on the entire site, including all stumps and roots with the following exception: existing (healthy) trees

(along the site perimeter) that are six inches or greater in diameter at breast height (DBH) shall be preserved and incorporate into the landscaping. If removal of
said trees is deemed necessary by the contractor, the contractor shall offer written notification ten business days prior to demolition to the engineer. Written
approval must be obtained prior to removal of said trees.

5. The contractor shall coordinate disconnection,  removal, and relocation of the existing utilities with the appropriate utility companies. The contractor shall be
responsible for all fees that are levied by utility companies in conjunction with demolition and removal of existing utilities.

6. Disposal of all materials shall comply with all local, state, and federal regulations. All waste material shall be disposed of off site. Contractor shall be responsible for
removal of all materials from the site along with all associated permits and regulatory requirements.

7. The contractor shall be familiar with the appropriate specifications for well abandonment, materials, procedures and access to equipment required to properly seal
wells (if any). The contractor shall be responsible to obtain, complete, and file the appropriate forms through Jo Daviess County and the Illinois Environment
Protection Agency (IEPA).

8. The contractor shall maintain all existing utility services to adjacent lots. Interruption of services to adjacent lots shall not occur without proper approval. 48 hrs
notice shall be given to the property owners prior to the connection of the new services. The contractor shall be responsible for costs associated with the connection
of temporary utility services, if required, to facilitate construction staging.

9. The contractor shall maintain all existing parking, sidewalks, drives, etc. to be clear and free of any construction activity and/or excavated and hauled material to
ensure easy and safe pedestrian and vehicular traffic to and from adjacent sites.

10. Existing propane tanks, if any, to be removed by supplier prior to demolition.
11. The contractor shall perform a full-depth saw cut along the perimeter of pavement removal that abuts existing pavement that is to remain.
12. Any damage sustained by items that are to remain in place shall be repaired or replaced to the owner's satisfaction at no cost to the owner.

DEMOLITION NOTES

1. Storm sewer shall be constructed in accordance with the following:
A. "Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois" (Standard Specifications), seventh edition dated May 2014, and all revisions and

supplements thereto.
B. Concrete pavement shall be constructed in accordance with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge

Construction" (Standard Specifications), latest edition, including all updates and standards thereto.
C. Standards and requirements of Jo Daviess County.
D. Additional details and requirements provided in the contract documents, including this plan set.

Where criteria of the aforementioned specifications conflict, the more stringent criteria shall be implemented.
2. Material Specifications. All storm sewer system elements shall conform to the following specifications:

A. Sewer Pipe. All storm sewer pipe shall be reinforced concrete pipe unless otherwise specifically noted in this plan set.
a. Sump pump service connection and storm sewer extension (4" and 6")--ABS sewer pipe or PVC sewer pipe ASTM D2751, SDR35, or ASTM D3034,

SDR35, respectively.
b. Concrete sewer pipe (10" diameter and smaller), minimum Class 3, ASTM C14.
c. Reinforced concrete pipe (12" diameter and larger), circular reinforcement, minimum Class 3, wall B, ASTM C76.
d. Reinforced concrete arch culvert pipe--double line reinforcement, minimum Class 3, ASTM C506.
e. Reinforced concrete elliptical culvert pipe--minimum Class HE-III or VE-III, ASTM C507.
f. PVC underdrain pipe (4" and 6")--ASTM D2729, SDR35.
g. Galvanized corrugated steel culvert pipe AASHTO M246, Type B, minimum wall thickness 14 gauge (shall only be used for culverts).

B. Sewer Pipe Joints.
a. ABS pipe--ASTM C443.
b. PVC pipe--ASTM D3212, push-on type, except underdrain pipe which shall have solvent welded joints.
c. Reinforced concrete pipe--ASTM C443 ("O" ring).
d. Reinforced arch or elliptical pipe--ASTM C877.

C. Casing Pipes. Steel pipe--ASTM A120, 3/8" minimum thickness.
D. Manholes and Catch Basins.

a. Precast reinforced concrete--ASTM C478.
b. Size:
c. For sewer eighteen inches in diameter or less, manhole shall have a forty-eight inches inside diameter.
d. For sewer twenty-one to thirty-six inches in diameter, manhole shall have a sixty inch inside diameter.
e. For sewer greater than thirty-six inches in diameter, manhole shall have an offset riser pipe of forty-eight inches inside diameter.
f. Adjustment: No more than two precast concrete adjusting rings with six inch maximum height adjustment shall be allowed.
g. Pipe and frame seals: All pipe connection openings shall be precast with resilient rubber watertight pipe to manhole sleeves or seals. External flexible

watertight sleeves shall also extend from the manhole cone to the manhole frame.
h. Bottom sections: All bottom sections shall be monolithically precast including bases and invert flowlines.

E. Inlets.
a. Precast reinforced concrete--ASTM C478 and ASTM C443.
b. Size: Inlets shall have a twenty-four inch inside diameter and a maximum depth of four feet.
c. Adjustment: No more than two precast concrete adjusting rings with six inch maximum height adjustment shall be allowed.
d. Only one pipe connection is allowed, and it shall be precast with resilient rubber watertight pipe to manhole sleeves or seals. External flexible watertight

sleeves shall also extend from the manhole cone to the manhole frame.
e. Bottom sections: All bottom sections shall be monolithically precast including bases and invert flowlines.

F. Castings (Unless otherwise noted within the plans)
Manhole frame and cover--Use area inlet as listed below unless specified as a "closed lid" in this plan set. Closed lid frame and covers shall be Neenah No.

R-1772-C embossed "STORM SEWER".
a. Manhole steps--Neenah No. R-1981-I.
b. Six inch curb and gutter inlet--Neenah No. R-3032.
c. Yard inlet--Neenah No. R-2579.
d. Parking lot inlet--Neenah No. R-2450.

G. Crushed Granular Bedding: Crushed gravel or crushed stone course aggregate--ASTM C33, Size No. 67.
3. All end sections 24" and greater shall come equipped with trash grate and toe block in compliance with Illinois Department of Transportation standard.
4. Inspect pipe for defects and cracks before being lowered into the trench, piece by piece.  Remove and replace defective, damaged or unsound pipe or pipe that has

had its grade disturbed after laying.  Protect open ends with a stopper to prevent earth or other material from entering the pipe during construction.  Remove dirt,
excess water, and other foreign materials from the interior of the pipe during the pipe laying progress.

5. Install pipe in accordance with manufacturer's written recommendations.
6. Commence installation at the lowest point for each segment of the route.  Lay RCP with the groove or bell end up-stream.
7. Lay pipe to the required line and slope gradients with the necessary fittings, bends, manhole, risers and other appurtenances placed at the required location as

noted on Drawings.
8. All storm sewers under and within two feet of any existing or proposed pavement shall be backfilled with granular backfill material IDOT gradation FA-6 or approved

equal.  (Grade 8 or Grade 9).
9. Compact backfill to 98 percent of maximum density in accordance with ASTM D698, (or 95 percent of maximum density, in accordance with ASTM D1557) obtained

at optimum moisture as determined by AASHTO T180.
10. Do not backfill trenches until required tests are performed and utility systems comply with and are accepted by applicable governing authorities.
11. Backfill trenches to contours and elevations shown on the drawings.

STORM SEWER NOTES

SANITARY SEWER NOTES WATER UTILITY NOTES

1. Apply two (2) coats for all pavement markings.
2. Material description: a fast drying, high hiding marking paint for concrete, brick and bituminous surface. this product has been designed for painting centerlines and

edgelines of highways, city crosswalks and stop zones, parking lots, traffic aisles, etc. Do not apply to in temperatures below 50 F.
3. Paint properties:

A. Pigment 4991 yellow -- lead-free organic yellow min. 4.8% titanium dioxide min. 2.8 % calcium carbonate max. 93%
B. the percentage pigment by weight of the finished product shall not be less than 50% no more than 54%. (ASTM D3723)
C. Vehicle: the non-volatile portion of the vehicle shall be composed of a 100% acrylic polymer and shall not be less than 44% by weight. (ASTM D2697)
D. Organic volatiles: the finished paint shall contain less than 150 grams of volatile organic matter per liter of total paint. (ASTM D3960)
E. Total solids: the finished paint shall not be less than 73% total non-volatile by weight. (ASTM D2369)
F. Grind: the paint shall have a grind of not less than 3 on a hegman grind gauge. (ASTM D210)
G. Viscosity: the consistency of the paint shall not be less than 83 nor more than 98 kreb units at 77° F. (ASTM D562)
H. Freeze / Thaw stability: the paint shall show no coagulation or change in consistency greater than 10 kreb units after 3 cycles. (ASTM D2243)
I. Heat stability: the paint shall show no coagulation, discoloration, or change in consistency greater than 10 kreb units when tested in accordance within

federal specification TT-P-1952B, section 4.5.8.
J. Storage stability: after 30 days storage in a three quarters filled, closed container, the paint shall show no caking, skinning, livering, curdling, biological

growth, or hard settling. the viscosity shall not change more than 5 kreb units from the original sample.
K. No pick-up time: the no pick-up time shall be less than 10 minutes. the test shall follow the requirements of ASTM D711 with a wet film thickness of 0.38

mm (15 mils).
L. Dry through time: the paint, when applied to a non-absorbent substrate at a wet film thickness of 0.38 mm (15 mils) and placed in a humidity chamber

controlled at 90 +/-5% r.h. and 72.5° +/- 1.4° F shall have a dry through time not greater than 15 minutes when tested in accordance with ASTM D1640.

PAVEMENT MARKING NOTES

GENERAL PAVING NOTES
1. All pavement shall be constructed in accordance with the following:

A. Concrete pavement shall be constructed in accordance with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction" (Standard Specifications), latest edition, including all updates and standards thereto.

B. Standards and requirements of Jo Daviess County.
C. Additional details and requirements provided in the contract documents, including this plan set.

2. All proposed pavement areas shall be stripped of all topsoil and unsuitable material and excavated or filled to within 0.10 feet of design subgrade.
3. The subgrade of pavement areas shall be free of all unsuitable material and shall be compacted to a minimum 95 per cent of Standard proctor density.
4. The subgrade shall be proof rolled, inspected and approved by the Jo Daviess County prior to placing the base material.  Notify the engineer at least 48 hours prior

to finished subgrade preparation.
5. The earthwork contractor shall be responsible for removal of spoil material from the underground contractors, preparing the roadway subgrade, proof rolled, placing

topsoil to a minimum depth of 4 inches to finished grade in the parkways areas only, grading of drainage swales, and all other tasks as directed by the owner or
engineer.

6. The quantities contained in these documents are approximate and estimated, and are presented as a guide to the contractor in determining the scope of work.  It is
the Contractor's responsibility to determine all quantities and to become familiar with the site and soil conditions.

7. The paving Contractor is responsible for the final subgrade preparation, proof rolling, the pavement base, binder, and surface, and all final clean-up and related
work associated with the paving operation.

8. The proposed pavement shall be of the type and thickness as specified in the engineering drawings, and constructed in strict conformance with the previously
referenced IDOT standard specifications and Jo Daviess County.

9. Areas of deficient paving, including compaction, smoothness, thickness, and asphalt mixture, shall be delineated, removed, and replaced in compliance with
Specifications requirements unless corrected otherwise as directed and approved by the owner.

10. Field quality control tests specified herein will be conducted by the Owner's Independent Testing Laboratory (ITL) at no cost to the contractor.  Any testing and
inspection resulting from the requirements of necessary permits by Jo Daviess County or the State of Illinois shall be at the contractor's expense. The contractor
shall perform additional testing as considered necessary by the contractor for assurance of quality control.  Retesting required as a result of failed initial tests shall
be at the contractor's expense.

A. Field testing, frequency, and methods may vary as determined by and between the owner,the ITL and Jo Daviess County.
B. Testing shall be performed on finished surface of each asphalt concrete course for smoothness, using 10'_0" straightedge applied parallel with, and at right

angles to centerline of paved area.  The following tolerances in 10 ft shall not be exceeded: Base Course Surface: 1/4-inch, Wearing Course Surface:
1/8-inch.

C. No ponding shall occur on paved surfaces. Refer to "General Notes" in this plan set.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

EXHIBIT B

Page 22 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C02

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Yard Light

(85.00')

750

Record Distance

Measured Distance

Contour Line

Lot Line

Property Line

Sign

Sanitary Manhole

Fire Hydrant

Sanitary Sewer

6" W

M

Water Main

MailboxUtility Pole w/ Guy Wire

Electric Meter

Deciduous Tree

E

YL

G

G

O/U

Gas Meter

Gas Main

Overhead Utility Line

Utility Pole

Light Pole

Fence Line

S

Air ConditionerAC

BollardB

Monitoring WellM

Flag PoleFP

Drip Line/Brush

Valve Box/Valve
and Vault

Set 5/8" Pin
(Unless otherwise noted)

EXISTING SYMBOL LEGEND

ADDITIONAL CONCRETE PAVING NOTES
1. Materials shall comply with the following standards of quality:

A. Portland Cement: ASTM C150 Type I, Normal ASTM C150 Type II, High-Early-Strength.
B. Fine Aggregate: ASTM C33, clean sand graded between #100 and #4 sieve limits.
C. Coarse Aggregate: ASTM C33, uncoated crushed stone or washed gravel.
D. Water: Potable and fit to drink.
E. Water-Reducing Admixture: ASTM C494 Type A (normal) or Type D (retarder).
F. Air Entraining Agent: ASTM C260.
G. Premoulded Filler Strips: ASTM D994.
H. Curing Compound: ASTM C309, Type 2 (white, pigmented).
I. Reinforcement: ASTM A615, Grade 40.

2. Physical characteristics shall comply with the following:
A. Strength: 4,000 PSI compressive strength in 28 days.
B. Mix: Minimum 6 bag mix.
C. Slump: Maximum 4".
D. Water to Cement Ratio: Shall not exceed 0.45 by weight.
E. Air Entrainment: 6% ± 1%

3. All curb and gutter and sidewalk shall be broom finished.
4. Curing and protection of all concrete shall be in strict conformance with the provisions of Section 1020.13 of the Standard Specifications.
5. The curb and gutter shall have 1" thick premolded fiber expansion joints with 3/4" - diameter by 18-inches long plain round steel dowel bars at 100-foot intervals,

at all PC's and PT's, and at all curb returns.  Construction joints shall be constructed at 20-foot intervals.  The cost of these joints shall be incidental to the curb and
gutter. Curb joints and ties shall be constructed in accordance with IDOT standard 606001.

6. Depressed curb shall be provided for handicapped ramps and at driveway locations in accordance with IDOT standards.
7. Sidewalk shall be a minimum 6" thick through all driveway crossings.
8. Concrete Pavement joints shall comply with the following:

F. Construct expansion, weakened-plane control (contraction), and construction joints straight with face perpendicular to concrete surface.  Construct transverse
joints perpendicular to centerline, unless otherwise detailed.
a. Provide joints at spacing of 15'-0" on centers, maximum each way.  Panels shall be kept as square as possible with the length to width ratio not exceeding

125% unless otherwise noted. construct control joints for depth equal to at least 1/4 of the concrete thickness, as follows:
b. Form tooled joints in fresh concrete by grooving top with recommended tool and finishing edge with jointer.
c. Form sawed joints using powered saws equipped with shatterproof abrasive or diamond-rimmed blades.  Cut joints into hardened concrete as soon as

surface will not be torn, abraded, or otherwise damaged by cutting action. Contractor shall sawcut tank farm and island / canopy area to mid-depth within 24
hours of pour.

d. Sidewalk contraction joint spacing shall not exceed corresponding width of sidewalk. 12' wide sidewalks shall have a longitudinal contraction joint along the
center of the sidewalk and transverse contraction joints shall be spaced at 6' max.

e. A diamond edge saw bland shall be used for all required contraction and longitudinal pavement joints.
f. All sawcuts required shall be incidental to items for which direct payment is made.

B. Construction joints:  Place construction joints at end of placements and at locations where placement operations are stopped for period of more than 1/2 hour,
except where such placements terminate at expansion joints.  construct joints in accordance with idot specifications.

C. Transverse expansion joints:  Locate expansion joints at maximum of 180'-0" on centers, maximum each way unless otherwise shown on the construction
drawings.  provide premolded joint filler for expansion joints abutting concrete curbs, catch basins, manholes, inlets, structures, sidewalks, and other fixed
objects.

D. Butt joints:  For joints against existing pavement, place 16” long dowels eight inches into holes drilled into center of existing slab.  epoxy dowels into holes with
approved epoxy compound.  place dowels prior to concrete placement for new concrete.  dowel spacing to be 24” on center unless otherwise shown on
construction drawings.  saw joint and fill with joint sealer.

9. Joint fillers:  Extend joint fillers full-width and depth of joint, and not less than 1/2-inch or more than 1-inch below finished surface where joint sealer is indicated.
furnish joint fillers in 1-piece lengths for full width being placed, wherever possible.  Where more than 1 length is required, lace or clip joint filler sections together.

10. Joint sealants:  All joints shall be sealed with white or gray approved exterior pavement joint sealants and shall be installed in accordance with manufacturer's
recommendations.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

1. Weather Limitations:
A. Apply prime and tack coats when ambient or base surface temperature is above 40 F, and when temperature has been above 35 F for 12 hours immediately prior

to application.  Do not apply when base is wet, contains excess moisture, during rain, or when frozen.
B. Construct asphaltic concrete paving when ambient temperature is above 40 F.

2. Materials shall comply with the following standards of quality:
A. Asphalt Cement:  Comply with AASHTO M 226; Table 2 AC_10, AC_20, or AC_40, viscosity grade, depending on local mean annual air temperature in accordance

with the following chart: Mean annual air temperature  45 F or lowerAC_10 85/100 pen. Mean annual air temperature between 45 F and 75 F AC_20 60/70 pen.
Mean annual air temperature AC_40 75 F or higher

B. Prime Coat:  Medium curing cut_back asphalt or asphalt penetrating prime coat consisting of either MC_30 or SS_1h.
C. Tack Coat:  Emulsified asphalt; AASHTO M 140 or AASHTO M 208, SS_1h, CSS_1, or CSS_1h, diluted with 1 part water to 1 part emulsified asphalt.
D. Mineral Filler:  Rock or slag dust, hydraulic cement, or other inert material complying with AASHTO M 17, if recommended by state highway department

specifications.
E. Asphalt_Aggregate Mixture:  Unless otherwise noted on the Drawings, design mix shall have minimum stability based on 75_blow Marshall complying with

AASHTO T 245 of 1000 pounds with flow between 0.08 and 0.16 inches. The design mix shall be within sieve analysis and bitumen ranges specified below unless
approved otherwise by the engineer prior to placement.

3. Mix design shall comply with the following:
A. Base Course: Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) approved mix for Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix "C", N50.
B. Surface (Wearing) Course: Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) approved mix for Hot-Mix Asphalt Binder Course, IL-12.5, N50.

4. Remove loose material from compacted base material surface immediately before applying prime coat.
5. Establish and maintain required lines and elevations.
6. Cover the surfaces of curbs, gutters, manholes and other structures on which the asphaltic concrete mixture will be placed, with a thin, uniform coat of liquid

asphalt.  Where the asphaltic concrete mixture will be placed against the vertical face of an existing pavement, clean the vertical face to remove foreign substances
and apply a coating of liquid asphalt at a rate of approximately 0.25 gallons per square yard.

7. Prime Coat:
A. Apply to base material surfaces at least 24 hours in advance.
B. Apply at minimum rate of 0.25 gal per sq. yd over compacted base material.  Apply to penetrate and seal, but not flood surface.
C. Take necessary precautions to protect adjacent areas from over spray.
D. Cure and dry as long as necessary to attain penetration of compacted base and evaporation of volatile substances.

8. Tack Coat:
A. Apply to contact surfaces of previously constructed asphaltic concrete base courses or Portland cement concrete and surfaces abutting or projecting into asphaltic

concrete or into asphaltic concrete pavement.
B. Apply tack coat to asphaltic concrete base course or sand asphalt base course.  Apply emulsified asphalt tack coat between each lift or layer of full depth

asphaltic concrete and sand asphalt bases and on surface of bases where asphaltic concrete paving will be constructed.
C. Apply at minimum rate of 0.05 gal per sq. yd of surface.
D. Allow drying until at proper condition to receive paving.

9. Place asphaltic concrete mixture on completed compacted subgrade surface, spread, and strike off.  Spread mixture at following minimum ambient temperatures:
A. Between 40 and 50 F:  Mixture temperature:  285 F
B. Between 50 and 60 F:  Mixture temperature:  280 F
C. Higher than 60 F:  Mixture temperature:  275 F

a. Whenever possible, spread pavement by finishing machine; however, inaccessible or irregular areas may be placed by hand methods.  Spread hot mixture
uniformly to required depth with hot shovels and rakes.  After spreading, carefully smooth hot mixture to remove segregated course aggregate and rake
marks.  Rakes and lutes used for hand spreading shall be type designed for use on asphalt mixtures.  Do not dump loads faster that they can be properly
spread.  Workers shall not stand on loose mixture while spreading.

b. Paving Machine Placement:  Apply successive lifts of asphaltic concrete in transverse directions with surface course placed parallel to flow of traffic.  Place
asphaltic paving in typical strips not less than 10'-0" wide.  Asphaltic concrete pavement, including base and surface course, shall be placed in two or more
equal lifts.  Each lift shall be from 1 to 3 inches thick.

c. Joints:  Make joints between old and new pavements, or between successive days and work in manner that will provide continuous bond between adjoining
work.  Construction joints shall have same texture, density, and smoothness as other sections of asphaltic concrete course.  Clean contact surfaces of joints
and apply tack coat.

10. After being spread, mixture shall be compacted by rolling as soon as it will bear the weight of rollers without undue displacement.  Number, weight, types of rollers,
and sequences of rolling operations shall be such that the required density and surface are consistently attained while the mixture is in workable condition.

11. Compact mixture with hot hand tampers or vibrating plate compactors in areas inaccessible to rollers.
12. Breakdown Rolling:  Perform breakdown or initial rolling immediately following rolling of joints and outside edge.  Check surface after breakdown rolling and repair

displaced areas by loosening and filling with hot material.
13. Second Rolling:  Follow breakdown rolling as soon as possible while mixture is hot.  Continue second rolling until mixture has been thoroughly compacted as follows:
14. Average Density:  96 percent of reference laboratory density according ASTM D1556, but not less than 94 percent nor greater than 100 percent.

A. Finish Rolling:  Perform finish rolling while mixture is still warm enough for removal of roller marks.  Continue rolling until roller marks are eliminated and course
has attained maximum density.

B. Patching:  Remove and replace paving areas mixed with foreign materials and defective areas.  Cut out such areas and fill with fresh, hot asphaltic concrete.
Compact by rolling to maximum surface density and smoothness.

C. Protection:  After final rolling, do not permit vehicular traffic on pavement until it has cooled and hardened.  Erect barricades to protect paving from traffic until
mixture has cooled enough not to become marked.  Any masked or marred finish surfaces shall be repaired or smoothed.

15. Asphalt paving joints shall conform to the following requirements:
A. Place each asphaltic paving layer as continuous as possible to keep the number of joints to a minimum.  Create joints between old and new pavement, between

successive days work, and where the mixture has become cold (less than 140 degrees F).  Make these joints in such a manner as to create a continuous bond
between the old and new pavement construction courses.

B. Offset joint of successive courses by at least 6 inches.
d. Transverse Joints:  If placing of material is discontinued or if material in place becomes cold, make a joint running perpendicular to the direction traveled by

the paver.  Before placement continues, trim the edge of the previously placed pavement to a straight line perpendicular to the paver and cut back to expose
an even vertical surface for the full thickness of the course.  When placement continues, position the paver on the transverse joint so that sufficient hot
mixture will be spread in order to create a joint after rolling that conforms to the required smoothness.  If the temperature of the previously placed pavement
material drops below 140 degrees F before paving is resumed, give the exposed vertical face a thin coat of liquid asphalt just before paving is continued.

e. Longitudinal Joints:  Coat longitudinal joints that are not completed before the previously laid mixture has cooled to a temperature below 140 degrees F, with
liquid asphalt just before paving is continued.

ADDITIONAL ASPHALT PAVING NOTES

EXHIBIT B

Page 23 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C03

14012

XXX

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTE

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

CURB AND GUTTER

BOUNDARY LINE

SEE SPECIFIC KEY NOTE ON THIS SHEET

PERMANENT STORM SEWER FLOWING TO
THE LEFT SEE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN FOR
PERMANENT STORM SEWER DETAILS

CURB TYPE INLET

MANHOLE

SEE SITE PLAN SET FOR EXISTING SYMBOLS

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE 

X.XX

TURF AREA (SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE)

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EROSION DETAILS (SEE SWPPP DETAILS SHEET FOR ITEMS BELOW)

SEDIMENT TRAPTEMPORARY STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION PER STRUCTURE TYPE

BLS SLOPE BLANKET

CD

SF OCP

CE ST

1.02

RR
RIP-RAP PAD. PLACE PERMANENT RIP-RAP
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REMOVAL
OF TEMPORARY BMP'S

1.03 SDBOR

1.04

1.05

1.071.01

TEMPORARY OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION

ROCK CHECK DAM OR
TRIANGULAR SILT DIKE
BARRIER

WO CONCRETE WASHOUT

SWPPP INFORMATION SIGN

COPY OF NOI

COPY
OF

PERMIT
AUTHORIZATION

LETTER



DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE LOCATION OF THE SWPPP
DOCUMENTATION (CERTIFICATIONS, INSPECTION FORMS, AND SITE MAPS)

ON THE SITE. IF DOCUMENTATION IS NOT ON SITE, A DETAILED SET OF
DIRECTIONS MUST BE GIVEN TO THE DOCUMENT LOCATION. SWPPP

DOCUMENTS MUST BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION WHILE CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY IS PRESENT.

3' (SUGGESTED SIZE TO DISPLAY NEEDED LETTERING AND NOTICES)

3'
 (

S
U

G
G

ES
TE

D
) 

IN
C
R
EA

S
E 

A
S
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 W
H

EN
A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

N
O

I'
S
 A

R
E 

A
PP

LI
C
A
B
LE

SIGN TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF
A RIGID MATERIAL, SUCH AS

PLYWOOD OR OUTDOOR SIGN
BOARD. SIGN MUST BE

CONSTRUCTED IN A MANNER
TO PROTECT DOCUMENTS FROM

DAMAGE DUE TO WEATHER
(WIND, SUN, MOISTURE, ETC.).

"SWPPP INFORMATION" MUST
BE DISPLAYED PROMINENTLY

ACROSS THE TOP OF THE SIGN,
AS SHOWN IN THE DETAIL.

CONTACT INFORMATION (NAME AND PHONE NUMBER) MUST BE DISPLAYED
FOR THE PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION AND

MAINTENANCE AND FOR THE PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR KEEPING THE
SWPPP DOCUMENTS (IF OTHER THAN THE PERSON NAMED RESPONSIBLE

FOR SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION).

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

EROSION CONTROL REFERENCE NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE ABIDE BY ALL REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY THE
LATEST REVISION OF THE ILLINOIS NPDES GENERAL PERMIT FOR STORM
WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION. LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL AUTHORITIES
RESERVE THE RIGHT TO REVIEW THE SITE FOR COMPLIANCE AND IMPOSE
APPLICABLE PENALTIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE ANY CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE SWPPP AND
THE DATES OF SAID CHANGES OR ADDITIONS ON THIS SITE MAP.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING BMP'S INCLUDING
INTERMEDIATE BMP'S AS WARRANTED BY SITE CONDITIONS.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL STABILIZE ALL DENUDED AREAS THAT ARE NOT WORKED
WITHIN 14 DAYS. STABILIZATION CAN BE PERMANENT OR TEMPORARY AS
RECOMMENDED IN THE URBAN MANUAL.

5. QUALIFIED PERSONNEL (PROVIDED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR) SHALL
INSPECT DISTURBED AREAS OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE THAT HAVE NOT
BEEN FINALLY STABILIZED, STRUCTURAL CONTROL MEASURES, AND
LOCATIONS WHERE VEHICLES ENTER OR EXIT THE SITE AT LEAST ONCE EVERY
SEVEN CALENDAR DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE END OF A STORM THAT
IS 0.5 INCHES OR GREATER OR EQUIVALENT SNOWFALL.

6. A WRITTEN REPORT DETAILING THE CONDITION OF THE SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES, AND ANY CORRECTIONS MADE TO KEEP
SAME IN FUNCTIONING ORDER, SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE COUNTY
ENGINEER BY NOON FRIDAY OF EACH WEEK, AND WITHIN 48 HOURS OF ANY
0.5 INCH OR GREATER STORM EVENT.  REPORTS SHALL BE SENT TO JoDaviess
COUNTY ENGINEER.

7. THE COUNTY ENGINEER, HIS REPRESENTATIVE, OR ANY OF THE REGULATORY
AGENCIES MAY MAKE INSPECTIONS OF THE SITE WHILE CONSTRUCTION OF
THE DEVELOPMENT IS IN PROGRESS.  A PROJECT SUPERINTENDENT OR OTHER
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CONTRACTOR MUST WALK THE SITE WITH THE
REGULATORY INSPECTOR AND DOCUMENT ANY DEFICIENCIES NOTED DURING
INSPECTION.  DEFICIENCIES OF ANY TYPE, FIELD OR
DOCUMENTATION-RELATED, IDENTIFIED DURING A REGULATORY INSPECTION
MUST BE NOTED IN THE DAILY REPORT AS A DEFICIENCY AND BE RESOLVED
WITHIN 48-HOURS.  A SUPPLEMENTAL INSPECTION REPORT SHALL BE
COMPLETED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS A RESULT OF THE VISIT.  CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTIFY THE COUNTY AND OWNER OF ANY SITE INSPECTIONS THAT
RESULT IN DOCUMENTED DEFICIENCIES.  ALL KNOWN INSPECTIONS BY STATE
OR LOCAL STORMWATER OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL AGENCIES SHALL BE KEPT
IN THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SWPPP BINDER AND MUST INCLUDE THE DATE
AND TIME OF VISIT AS WELL AS WHETHER A REPORT WAS ISSUED OR WILL BE
ISSUED AS A RESULT OF THE INSPECTION.

8. SEE SWPPP BINDER FOR SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
9. MAINTENANCE OF THE EXISTING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY SHALL BE PROMPTLY

ATTENDED TO AT AT THE DIRECTION OF THE COUNTY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
ENSURE THAT THE RIGHT OF WAY BE RESTORED UPON THE CONCLUSION OF
CONSTRUCTION (PRIOR TO FILING TO THE NOT).

SITE LOCATION: 10850 ROUTE 20 WEST
 GALENA, IL

      LATITUDE: 42.4238878
LONGITUDE: -90.4446610

ADJACENT PROPERTIES:  THE SITE IS BORDERED BY EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL /AGRICULTURAL PROPERTIES TO THE WEST AND
SOUTH.

SITE TOPOGRAPHY:  THE SITE  SLOPES FROM THE EAST TO THE WEST.
THE SLOPES TIE INTO EXISTING GRADE.  EXISTING SLOPES ARE
STEEP (APPROXIMATELY 15-20%). THE EXISTING VEGETATION ON
THE SITE CONSISTS OF MAINLY TURF GRASS AND SOME TREES.

RAINFALL INFORMATION:  THE TOTAL AVERAGE ANNUAL RAINFALL FOR
THE PROJECT AREA IS APPROXIMATELY 38 INCHES.

POST-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS:   POST-CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF
COEFFICIENT IS 0.81 (80% AT 0.95 AND 20% AT 0.25).
TOTAL SITE AREA:  LIMITS OF SITE = 4.08 AC

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE = 4.28AC
IMPERVIOUS AREA: 0.94 AC±
SEEDED AREA: 3.34 AC±

ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS - OTHER THAN NPDES, STORMWATER AND/OR
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL : WETLANDS-NONE

THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES:  THERE ARE NO KNOWN
ISSUES RELATED TO THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

HISTORICAL PROPERTIES: THERE ARE NO KNOWN ISSUES RELATED TO
HISTORICAL PRESERVATION

SITE DESCRIPTION

STORMWATER OUTFLOW CONTRIBUTING
AND RECEIVING WATERS
FROM SITE - DRAINAGE AREA 'A' (4.28 AC) CONSISTING OF  LANDSCAPED AREAS,
PAVED AREAS AND BUILDING.  ALL FLOWS TREATED BY PERIMETER AND
INTERMEDIATE BMP'S AND TRANSPORTED VIA OVERLAND . THIS DRAINAGE AREA
ULTIMATELY DRAINS TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SITE WHERE IT LEAVES
THE SITE.

TO RECEIVING WATERS - ULTIMATELY CONVEYED TO A TRIBUTARY OF THE
MISSISSIPPI RIVER.  THE TRIBUTARY IS LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 100' TO THE
WEST OF THE SITE.  THE MISSISSIPPI RIVER LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 3 MILES
TO THE SOUTHWEST OF THE SITE.

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

EXAMPLE OF 0.5 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE
IN LOCATING SILT FENCE
BARRIER

100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 0.5 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

200 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE
FOR 1.0 AC (MAX.) UPSTREAM
DRAINAGE AREA (LOCATION VARIABLE
PER NOTE)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

NOTE OVERLAND FLOW
ROUTE WHEN LOCATING
SILT DIKE (TYP.)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC. CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

(2X) 100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 1.0 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

100

40
0 200

21
0

LIMIT OF CUT/FILL
OR GRADE BREAK
(TYP)

SEE TRIANGULAR SILT FENCE
DETAIL. A MINIMUM OF 100 LF OF
SILT FENCE SHALL BE REQUIRED
FOR EVERY 0.5 AC OF DISTURBED
UPSTREAM AREA. LOCATION AND
QUANTITY OF SDB IS VARIABLE. A
DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE MAY
BE UTILIZED AT THE
DOWNSTREAM END OF A
DISTURBED AREA IF CONDITIONS
WARRANT. FOR EXAMPLE, TWO
ROWS OF SILT FENCE (EACH 100
LF IN LENGTH) COULD BE USED AT
THE DOWNSTREAM END OF A
CUT/FILL SITUATION WHERE THE
UPSTREAM DISTURBED AREA
MEASURES 100'X400' (WITH THE
400' LENGTH EXTENDING
UPSTREAM). WHERE CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTE SILT FENCE
LOCATION, QUANTITY, AND
RELATIVE CUT/FILL LIMITS ON THE
SWPPP SITE MAP.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR MARKING CUT AND FILL
OPERATIONS AS WELL AS
RESPECTIVE INTERMEDIATE BMP'S
ON SHEETS C12 THROUGH C16
WITH RESPECT TO PHASE AND
LOCATION.

SEE SITE SPECIFIC SWPPP
BINDER FOR DETAILS,
FORMS AND ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE AS A PERCENTAGE

SEE CONSTRUCTION EXIT DETAIL IL-630 FROM THE ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL (THIS DETAIL AND OTHERS CAN BE FOUND IN THE SWPPP BINDER FOR THIS SITE). THE
CONSTRUCTION EXIT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 24' IN WIDTH AND 50' FEET IN LENGTH FROM EXISTING PAVED SURFACE. ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MUST UTILIZE
CONSTRUCTION EXITS PER DETAIL TO ACCESS THE PUBLIC ROAD. DURING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSTRUCTION EXITS MAY BE SHIFTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S DISCRETION
TO FACILITATE GRADING OPERATION. EXIT MUST TERMINATE AT EXISTING PAVED SURFACE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT THE RUNOFF FROM
THE CONSTRUCTION EXIT IS DIRECTED BACK TOWARD THE SITE OR THAT THE RUNOFF IS CLEAR OF SEDIMENT.

THE CONTRACTOR MAY PERMANENTLY REMOVE ANY PORTION OF THE PERIMETER SILT FENCE AFTER ESTABLISHMENT OF FINAL GRADE AND/OR FINAL STABILIZATION RENDERS
THE RESPECTIVE PORTION OF THE PERIMETER SILT FENCE UPSTREAM OF A DISTURBANCE AND/OR INEFFECTIVE AS A BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE. ANY SUCH REMOVAL SHALL
BE NOTED ON THE SWPPP SITE MAPS ALONG WITH UPSTREAM STABILIZATION AND GRADING CONDITIONS.

NO STRUCTURE SHALL BE ALLOWED TO BE PROTECTED WITH ANY MEASURE OTHER THAN THOSE DETAILED IN THIS SWPPP SITE MAP FOR MORE THAN 48 HOURS OR IF RAIN IS
IMMINENT.  STRUCTURES THAT WILL NOT RECEIVE A CASTING WITHIN 48 HOURS OF INSTALLATION SHALL RECEIVE IP1 PROTECTION. UPON INSTALLATION OF THE GRATE,
PROTECTION SHALL BE INSTALLED RESPECTIVE TO THE TYPE OF GRATE. STRUCTURES WITH CLOSED LIDS WILL NOT REQUIRE PROTECTION FOLLOWING INSTALLATION OF LID.
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE TIME STRUCTURE INSTALLATION (AND PROTECTION INSTALLATION, INCLUDING TYPES OF PROTECTION) ARE EMPLOYED. WHENEVER PIPE
INSTALLATION IS HALTED FOR MORE THAN 24 HOURS OR WHEN RAIN IS IMMINENT, THE OPEN END SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH A TEMPORARY BULK HEAD. A 3/4" SHEET OF
PLYWOOD THAT EXTENDS 6" BEYOND THE OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF THE PIPE SHALL BE PLACED AGAINST THE EXPOSED PIPE END. GRAVEL SHALL BE PLACED AGAINST THE
PLYWOOD IN SUFFICIENT QUANTITY SO AS TO ENSURE THE TIGHTEST POSSIBLE SEAL. THE TRENCH SHALL BE DEWATERED PRIOR TO REMOVING THE BULKHEAD.

OCP SHALL BE PLACED TO PROTECT THE UPSTREAM END OF THE PERMANENT OUTFALL PIPE PRIOR TO PIPE INSTALLATION. SEE PLAN FOR FINAL LOCATION AND TOP OF OCP
ELEVATION. FOLLOWING BASIN SIDE SLOPE STABILIZATION, THE OCP SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE PERMANENT RIPRAP PAD SPECIFIED ON THE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN.

PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL FABRIC NAG SC150 (STAPLE/APP RATE C) SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL SLOPES 4:1 OR GREATER THAN 4:1 PRIOR TO PERMANENT SEEDING.
FOLLOW MANUFACTURER SPECIFICATIONS FOR INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE ALL AREAS WHERE NAG SC150 HAS BEEN INSTALLED RELATIVE TO ASBUILT GRADES
AND FURNISH THESE BOUNDARIES TO THE CIVIL ENGINEER UPON REQUEST. PERMANENT SEEDING SHOULD BE PLANTED AS SOON AS IT IS PRACTICAL TO ENSURE PROPER
GERMINATION PRIOR TO TERMINATION OF PERMIT COVERAGE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PLANT PERMANENT SEEDING AS SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPING PLAN AS SOON AS
FINAL BASIN GRADES ARE ESTABLISHED AS SPECIFIED ON THE GRADING PLAN. SEE SITE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR EXACT GROUND COVER TYPE AND LOCATION.

OFFSITE UTILITY TRENCHING SPOILS MUST BE TREATED AS STOCKPILES FOR SWPPP PURPOSES. BMP'S MUST PROTECT THE SIDE OF THE SPOIL STOCKPILE THAT IS FARTHEST
AWAY FROM THE TRENCH. INTERMEDIATE BMP'S SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD TO PREVENT DOWNSTREAM SEDIMENT RUNOFF. NO MORE THAN 100 LF OF TRENCH MAY
REMAIN OPEN AT ANY ONE TIME. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING GRADE AND VEGETATION THROUGHOUT THE DISTURBED AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
ENSURE THAT THE OFFSITE WORK ZONES POSE NO PUBLIC SAFETY HAZARDS.

REFER TO ILLINOIS URBAN PRACTICE STANDARD CODE 960

USGS TOPO

EXHIBIT B

Page 24 of 106



791

790
789

78
8

78
7

78
6

78
5

78
4

78
3

7
78

2

78
1

7
78

0
7

77
97

77
8

77
7

77
6

77
5

77
4747474

77
3

77
2727

77
1

77
0

76
96969

76
86868

76
7

76
6

766

765

765

7
764

764

76
3

763

76
2622

76
16161

76
0

775
9

777
75

8
7775

7

756

75
6

75
5

75
4

753

26.9

29.9

13.4

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C04

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION
BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTE

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

CURB AND GUTTER

BOUNDARY LINE

SEE SPECIFIC KEY NOTE ON THIS SHEET

PERMANENT STORM SEWER FLOWING TO
THE LEFT SEE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN FOR
PERMANENT STORM SEWER DETAILS

CURB TYPE INLET

MANHOLE

SEE SITE PLAN SET FOR EXISTING SYMBOLS

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE 

X.XX

TURF AREA (SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE)

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EROSION DETAILS (SEE SWPPP DETAILS FOR ITEMS BELOW)

SEDIMENT TRAP

TEMPORARY STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION PER STRUCTURE TYPE

BLS  SLOPE BLANKET

CD

SF

OCP

CE

ST

1.02

RR
RIP-RAP PAD. PLACE PERMANENT RIP-RAP
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REMOVAL
OF TEMPORARY BMP'S

1.03

SDBOR

1.04

1.05

1.07

1.01

TEMPORARY OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION

ROCK CHECK DAM OR
TRIANGULAR SILT DIKE
BARRIER

WO CONCRETE WASHOUT

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

PROVIDE SHOREMAX W/ SC250
EROSION CONTROL BLANKET IN
ROADSIDE DITCH AND BANKS
STAPLE PATTERN F

CE

1.01

ST

1.07

EXAMPLE OF 0.5 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE
IN LOCATING SILT FENCE
BARRIER

100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 0.5 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

200 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE
FOR 1.0 AC (MAX.) UPSTREAM
DRAINAGE AREA (LOCATION VARIABLE
PER NOTE)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

NOTE OVERLAND FLOW
ROUTE WHEN LOCATING
SILT DIKE (TYP.)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC. CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

(2X) 100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 1.0 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

100

40
0 200

21
0

LIMIT OF CUT/FILL
OR GRADE BREAK
(TYP)

SEE TRIANGULAR SILT FENCE
DETAIL. A MINIMUM OF 100 LF OF
SILT FENCE SHALL BE REQUIRED
FOR EVERY 0.5 AC OF DISTURBED
UPSTREAM AREA. LOCATION AND
QUANTITY OF SDB IS VARIABLE. A
DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE MAY
BE UTILIZED AT THE
DOWNSTREAM END OF A
DISTURBED AREA IF CONDITIONS
WARRANT. FOR EXAMPLE, TWO
ROWS OF SILT FENCE (EACH 100
LF IN LENGTH) COULD BE USED AT
THE DOWNSTREAM END OF A
CUT/FILL SITUATION WHERE THE
UPSTREAM DISTURBED AREA
MEASURES 100'X400' (WITH THE
400' LENGTH EXTENDING
UPSTREAM). WHERE CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTE SILT FENCE
LOCATION, QUANTITY, AND
RELATIVE CUT/FILL LIMITS ON THE
SWPPP SITE MAP.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR MARKING CUT AND FILL
OPERATIONS AS WELL AS
RESPECTIVE INTERMEDIATE BMP'S
ON SHEETS C12 THROUGH C16
WITH RESPECT TO PHASE AND
LOCATION.

1. PREPARE TEMPORARY PARKING AND STORAGE AREA. UPON
IMPLEMENTATION AND INSTALLATION OF THE FOLLOWING
AREAS:TRAILER, PARKING, LAY DOWN, PORTA-POTTY, WHEEL WASH,
CONCRETE WASHOUT, MASONS AREA, FUEL AND MATERIAL STORAGE
CONTAINERS, ETC., DENOTE THEM ON THE SITE MAPS IMMEDIATELY
AND NOTE ANY CHANGES IN THE LOCATIONS AS THEY OCCUR
THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.

2. CONSTRUCT THE PHASE 1 SILT FENCES ON THE SITE.
3. REMOVE EXISTING FENCE.
4. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DENUDED

AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE WITHIN ONE
DAY OF INACTIVITY.

5. CONSTRUCT TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TRAP AND INSTALL OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION AND SEDIMENT BLANKET.

6. INSTALL UTILITIES, UNDERDRAINS, AND STORM SEWERS. INSTALL
INLET PROTECTION CONCURRENTLY.

7. PERMANENTLY STABILIZE AREAS TO BE VEGETATED AS THEY ARE
BROUGHT TO FINAL GRADE.

8. COMPLETE GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET AND SEEDING OVER PHASE 1 DISTURBED AREAS.

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

OCP

1.04

GABION BASKET

PERMANENT OUTLET STABILIZATION
REFER TO ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL DETAIL IL-610

La=17'
W1=5'
W2=9'
d=20"

RR= No. 4
Quality: Stone for riprap shall consist of field stone or
rough unhewn quarry stone. The stone shall be hard

and angular and a quality that will not disintegrate on
exposure to water or weathering.

PERMANENT OUTLET STABILIZATION
REFER TO ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL DETAIL IL-610

La=17'
W1=5'
W2=7'
d=20"

RR= No. 4
Quality: Stone for riprap shall consist of field stone or rough
unhewn quarry stone. The stone shall be hard and angular

and a quality that will not disintegrate on exposure to water
or weathering.

SF

1.02

SF

1.02

SF

1.02

SF

SEE SITE SPECIFIC SWPPP
BINDER FOR DETAILS,
FORMS AND ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE AS A PERCENTAGE

SEDIMENT BASIN PROVIDES UP TO  0.04
AC-FT OF SEDIMENT STORAGE AND 0.09 AC-FT

OF DETENTION

EXHIBIT B

Page 25 of 106



79
9

798

79
7

79
6

795794

793

79
3

792

792

791

79
1

790

79
0

789

78
9

788

78
8

787

78
7

786

78
6

785

78
5

784

78
4

783

78
3

782

83

78
2

781

78
1

780

78
0

779

77
9

778

77
8

777

77
7

776

77
6

775

77
5

774

77
4

773

77
3

772

77
2

771

77
1

770

77
0

769

76
9

768

76
8

767

76
7

766

76
6

765

76
5

764

76
4

76
3

76
2

76
1

76
0

75
9

75
8

75
7

75
6

75
6

755

75
4

75
3

12.7

27.5

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C05

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION
BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTE

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

CURB AND GUTTER

BOUNDARY LINE

SEE SPECIFIC KEY NOTE ON THIS SHEET

PERMANENT STORM SEWER FLOWING TO
THE LEFT SEE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN FOR
PERMANENT STORM SEWER DETAILS

CURB TYPE INLET

MANHOLE

SEE SITE PLAN SET FOR EXISTING SYMBOLS

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE 

X.XX

TURF AREA (SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE)

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EROSION DETAILS (SEE SWPPP DETAILS FOR ITEMS BELOW)

SEDIMENT TRAP

TEMPORARY STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION PER STRUCTURE TYPE

BLS  SLOPE BLANKET

CD

SF

OCP

CE

ST

1.02

RR
RIP-RAP PAD. PLACE PERMANENT RIP-RAP
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REMOVAL
OF TEMPORARY BMP'S

1.03

SDBOR

1.04

1.05

1.07

1.01

TEMPORARY OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION

ROCK CHECK DAM OR
TRIANGULAR SILT DIKE
BARRIER

WO CONCRETE WASHOUT

GABION BASKETS (TYP)

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

PROVIDE SHOREMAX W/ SC250
EROSION CONTROL BLANKET IN
ROADSIDE DITCH AND BANKS
STAPLE PATTERN F

EXAMPLE OF 0.5 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE
IN LOCATING SILT FENCE
BARRIER

100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 0.5 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

200 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE
FOR 1.0 AC (MAX.) UPSTREAM
DRAINAGE AREA (LOCATION VARIABLE
PER NOTE)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

NOTE OVERLAND FLOW
ROUTE WHEN LOCATING
SILT DIKE (TYP.)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC. CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

(2X) 100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 1.0 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

100

40
0 200

21
0

LIMIT OF CUT/FILL
OR GRADE BREAK
(TYP)

SEE TRIANGULAR SILT FENCE
DETAIL. A MINIMUM OF 100 LF OF
SILT FENCE SHALL BE REQUIRED
FOR EVERY 0.5 AC OF DISTURBED
UPSTREAM AREA. LOCATION AND
QUANTITY OF SDB IS VARIABLE. A
DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE MAY
BE UTILIZED AT THE
DOWNSTREAM END OF A
DISTURBED AREA IF CONDITIONS
WARRANT. FOR EXAMPLE, TWO
ROWS OF SILT FENCE (EACH 100
LF IN LENGTH) COULD BE USED AT
THE DOWNSTREAM END OF A
CUT/FILL SITUATION WHERE THE
UPSTREAM DISTURBED AREA
MEASURES 100'X400' (WITH THE
400' LENGTH EXTENDING
UPSTREAM). WHERE CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTE SILT FENCE
LOCATION, QUANTITY, AND
RELATIVE CUT/FILL LIMITS ON THE
SWPPP SITE MAP.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR MARKING CUT AND FILL
OPERATIONS AS WELL AS
RESPECTIVE INTERMEDIATE BMP'S
ON SHEETS C12 THROUGH C16
WITH RESPECT TO PHASE AND
LOCATION.

1. CONSTRUCT THE PHASE 2 SILT FENCES ON THE SITE.
2. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DENUDED

AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE WITHIN ONE
DAY OF INACTIVITY.

3. INSTALL ROADSIDE DITCH AND STORM SEWERS. INSTALL INLET
PROTECTION CONCURRENTLY.

4. PERMANENTLY STABILIZE AREAS TO BE VEGETATED AS THEY ARE
BROUGHT TO FINAL GRADE.

5. COMPLETE GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF PERMANENT
STABILIZATION OVER ALL AREAS.

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

PHASE 1 GRADING AND
STABILIZATION

OCP

1.04

CE

1.01

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE AS A PERCENTAGE

SEE SITE SPECIFIC SWPPP
BINDER FOR DETAILS,
FORMS AND ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS

PHASE 2PHASE 1

EXHIBIT B

Page 26 of 106



81
8

81
7

81
6

81
5

815

81
4

81
4

81
3

81
3

81
2

81
2

812

81
1

81
1

811

81
0

81
0

810

809

80
9

809

80
9

809

80
8

80
8

80
8

808

80
8

80
8

80
7

80
7

807

80
7

80
7

807

80
6

80
6

806

80
6

80
5

80
5

805

805

804

804

804

803

80
3

80
2

80
2

80
1

80
1

80
0

80
0

79
9

79
9

779
8

7979
79

7
79

6

795
794

793
792

791790789788787786785784783
782781

780
779

778
777

776
775

774
773
772

2.9

28.5

27.2

28.7

1.5

2.7

1.5

20
.0

4.
7

6.0

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C06

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION
BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTE

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

CURB AND GUTTER

BOUNDARY LINE

SEE SPECIFIC KEY NOTE ON THIS SHEET

PERMANENT STORM SEWER FLOWING TO
THE LEFT SEE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN FOR
PERMANENT STORM SEWER DETAILS

CURB TYPE INLET

MANHOLE

SEE SITE PLAN SET FOR EXISTING SYMBOLS

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE 

X.XX

TURF AREA (SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE)

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EROSION DETAILS (SEE SWPPP DETAILS FOR ITEMS BELOW)

SEDIMENT TRAP

TEMPORARY STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION PER STRUCTURE TYPE

BLS  SLOPE BLANKET

CD

SF

OCP

CE

ST

1.02

RR
RIP-RAP PAD. PLACE PERMANENT RIP-RAP
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REMOVAL
OF TEMPORARY BMP'S

1.03

SDBOR

1.04

1.05

1.07

1.01

TEMPORARY OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION

ROCK CHECK DAM OR
TRIANGULAR SILT DIKE
BARRIER

WO CONCRETE WASHOUT

GABION BASKETS (TYP)

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

PROVIDE SHOREMAX W/
SC250 EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET IN ROADSIDE
DITCH AND BANKS STAPLE
PATTERN F

EXAMPLE OF 0.5 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE
IN LOCATING SILT FENCE
BARRIER

100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 0.5 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

200 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE
FOR 1.0 AC (MAX.) UPSTREAM
DRAINAGE AREA (LOCATION VARIABLE
PER NOTE)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

NOTE OVERLAND FLOW
ROUTE WHEN LOCATING
SILT DIKE (TYP.)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC. CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

(2X) 100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 1.0 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

100

40
0 200

21
0

LIMIT OF CUT/FILL
OR GRADE BREAK
(TYP)

SEE TRIANGULAR SILT FENCE
DETAIL. A MINIMUM OF 100 LF OF
SILT FENCE SHALL BE REQUIRED
FOR EVERY 0.5 AC OF DISTURBED
UPSTREAM AREA. LOCATION AND
QUANTITY OF SDB IS VARIABLE. A
DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE MAY
BE UTILIZED AT THE
DOWNSTREAM END OF A
DISTURBED AREA IF CONDITIONS
WARRANT. FOR EXAMPLE, TWO
ROWS OF SILT FENCE (EACH 100
LF IN LENGTH) COULD BE USED AT
THE DOWNSTREAM END OF A
CUT/FILL SITUATION WHERE THE
UPSTREAM DISTURBED AREA
MEASURES 100'X400' (WITH THE
400' LENGTH EXTENDING
UPSTREAM). WHERE CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTE SILT FENCE
LOCATION, QUANTITY, AND
RELATIVE CUT/FILL LIMITS ON THE
SWPPP SITE MAP.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR MARKING CUT AND FILL
OPERATIONS AS WELL AS
RESPECTIVE INTERMEDIATE BMP'S
ON SHEETS C12 THROUGH C16
WITH RESPECT TO PHASE AND
LOCATION.

PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2
GRADING AND STABILIZATION

WEST RED GATES ROAD

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

1.05

BLS

S
EE

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

A
TI

O
N

 O
N

 S
H

EE
T 

C
07

1. CONSTRUCT THE PHASE 3 SILT FENCES ON THE SITE.
2. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DENUDED

AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE WITHIN ONE
DAY OF INACTIVITY.

3. INSTALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, DETENTION AND STORM
SEWERS. INSTALL INLET PROTECTION CONCURRENTLY.

4. PREPARE AREA OF SITE FOR PAVING.
5. PAVE AREA OF SITE.
4. PERMANENTLY STABILIZE AREAS TO BE VEGETATED AS THEY ARE

BROUGHT TO FINAL GRADE.
5. COMPLETE GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF PERMANENT

STABILIZATION OVER ALL AREAS.
6. DEWATER SEDIMENT TRAP, TREATING WATER PRIOR TO DISCHARGE.

FILL SEDIMENT TRAP TO  754.50.
7. REMOVE TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES

AFTER FINAL STABILIZATION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE
ENGINEER.

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

CE

1.01

SEE SITE SPECIFIC SWPPP
BINDER FOR DETAILS,
FORMS AND ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE AS A PERCENTAGE

PHASE 3PHASE 2

EXHIBIT B

Page 27 of 106



798

79
7

79
6

795794
79

3

792

79
1

79
078

978
878

778
6

78
5

78
4

78
383

78
2

78
1

78
0

77
9

77
8

77
7

77
6

7

77
5

774

77
4

773

77
3

772

77
2

771

77
1

770

77
0

769

76
9

768

76
8

767

76
7

766

76
6

765

76
5

764

76
4

76
3

76
2

76
1

76
0

75
9

75
8

75
7

75
6

75
6

755

75
4

75
3

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C07

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION
BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTE

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

CURB AND GUTTER

BOUNDARY LINE

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE

SEE SPECIFIC KEY NOTE ON THIS SHEET

PERMANENT STORM SEWER FLOWING TO
THE LEFT SEE SITE DRAINAGE PLAN FOR
PERMANENT STORM SEWER DETAILS

CURB TYPE INLET

MANHOLE

SEE SITE PLAN SET FOR EXISTING SYMBOLS

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE 

X.XX

TURF AREA (SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE)

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EROSION DETAILS (SEE SWPPP DETAILS FOR ITEMS BELOW)

SEDIMENT TRAP

TEMPORARY STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION PER STRUCTURE TYPE

BLS  SLOPE BLANKET

CD

SF

OCP

CE

ST

1.02

RR
RIP-RAP PAD. PLACE PERMANENT RIP-RAP
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REMOVAL
OF TEMPORARY BMP'S

1.03

SDBOR

1.04

1.05

1.07

1.01

TEMPORARY OUTLET
CONTROL PROTECTION

ROCK CHECK DAM OR
TRIANGULAR SILT DIKE
BARRIER

WO CONCRETE WASHOUT

EXAMPLE OF 0.5 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE
IN LOCATING SILT FENCE
BARRIER

100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 0.5 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

200 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE
FOR 1.0 AC (MAX.) UPSTREAM
DRAINAGE AREA (LOCATION VARIABLE
PER NOTE)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC.
CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

NOTE OVERLAND FLOW
ROUTE WHEN LOCATING
SILT DIKE (TYP.)

EXAMPLE OF 1.0 AC. CUT/FILL AREA FOR USE IN
LOCATING SILT FENCE

(2X) 100 LF (MIN.) OF SILT FENCE FOR 1.0 AC
(MAX.) UPSTREAM DRAINAGE AREA
(LOCATION VARIABLE PER NOTE)

100

40
0 200

21
0

LIMIT OF CUT/FILL
OR GRADE BREAK
(TYP)

SEE TRIANGULAR SILT FENCE
DETAIL. A MINIMUM OF 100 LF OF
SILT FENCE SHALL BE REQUIRED
FOR EVERY 0.5 AC OF DISTURBED
UPSTREAM AREA. LOCATION AND
QUANTITY OF SDB IS VARIABLE. A
DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE MAY
BE UTILIZED AT THE
DOWNSTREAM END OF A
DISTURBED AREA IF CONDITIONS
WARRANT. FOR EXAMPLE, TWO
ROWS OF SILT FENCE (EACH 100
LF IN LENGTH) COULD BE USED AT
THE DOWNSTREAM END OF A
CUT/FILL SITUATION WHERE THE
UPSTREAM DISTURBED AREA
MEASURES 100'X400' (WITH THE
400' LENGTH EXTENDING
UPSTREAM). WHERE CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTE SILT FENCE
LOCATION, QUANTITY, AND
RELATIVE CUT/FILL LIMITS ON THE
SWPPP SITE MAP.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR MARKING CUT AND FILL
OPERATIONS AS WELL AS
RESPECTIVE INTERMEDIATE BMP'S
ON SHEETS C12 THROUGH C16
WITH RESPECT TO PHASE AND
LOCATION.

1. CONSTRUCT THE PHASE 3 SILT FENCES ON THE SITE.
2. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DENUDED

AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE WITHIN ONE
DAY OF INACTIVITY.

3. INSTALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, DETENTION AND STORM
SEWERS. INSTALL INLET PROTECTION CONCURRENTLY.

4. PREPARE AREA OF SITE FOR PAVING.
5. PAVE AREA OF SITE.
4. PERMANENTLY STABILIZE AREAS TO BE VEGETATED AS THEY ARE

BROUGHT TO FINAL GRADE.
5. COMPLETE GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF PERMANENT

STABILIZATION OVER ALL AREAS.
6. DEWATER SEDIMENT TRAP, TREATING WATER PRIOR TO DISCHARGE.

REMOVE TEMPORARY OUTLET CONTROL PROTECTION.  FILL
SEDIMENT TRAP TO  754.50.

7. REMOVE TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES
AFTER FINAL STABILIZATION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE
ENGINEER.

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

WEST RED GATES ROAD

S
EE

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

A
TI

O
N

 O
N

 S
H

EE
T 

C
06

1.04

OCP

PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2
GRADING AND STABILIZATION

1.02

SF

1.02

SF

1.02

SF

1.02

SF

ST

1.07

SEE SITE SPECIFIC SWPPP
BINDER FOR DETAILS,
FORMS AND ADDITIONAL
REQUIREMENTS

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW AND SLOPE AS A PERCENTAGE

EXHIBIT B

Page 28 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C08

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

S 32°27'48" E
27.57' (27.61')

S 21°54'14" W
70.03'

S 87°13'53" E

224.46' (224.53')

S 17°52'33" W
12.06' (12.15')

S 23°07'57" W
98.13' (98.09')

S 17°46'18" W
66.26' (66.19')

S 18°47'37" W
105.05' (105.10')

S 09°26'05" W
25.22'

N 53°29'13" E
21.74' (21.71')

N 86°27'41" E
50.15' (50.19')

S 50°03'16" E
31.72' (31.77')

S 87°14'13" E

374.77' (374.83')

N
 1

2°
58

'0
1"

 E
15

1.
57

' (
15

1.
54

')

232.30' (232.32')
N 77°32'27" W

471.21'

N 87°38'48" W

N 
29

°4
8'

23
" 

E
16

8.
18

'

N 01°43'33" E
47.51'

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

NOT SUBDIVIDED

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION

BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

177,635 SQUARE FEET
4.078 ACRES

NOT SUBDIVIDED

SIGN "SPEED LIMIT
40 MPH"

POSSIBLE
WELL

BM 2

BM 3

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT (TBR)

CONCRETE PAD

CORNER OF CONCRETE PAD 0.6'
SOUTH OF PROPERTY LINE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK ENCROACHES, NO
DIMENSION DUE TO SNOW AND ICE COVER

CONCRETE CURB &
GUTTER (B6.24)

CONCRETE CURB
& GUTTER
(B6.24)

TRACT 1

TRACT 2

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON
PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8"
IRON PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8"
IRON PIN

FND. X-CUT

FND. X-CUT

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

FENCE POST

GRAVEL
(TBR)

SIDEWALK LOCATION APPROXIMATE
DUE TO SNOW AND ICE COVER

20' OVERHANG EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 310621

20' OVERHANG EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 310621

20' OVERHANG EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 310623

WOOD SIGN
"SCHONHOFF FOR

COUNTY TREASURER"
(TBR)

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

S
W

 1
/4

 S
EC

.
13

-T
28

N
-R

1W

EA
S
T 

LI
N

E 
S
E 

1/
4 

S
EC

.
14

-T
28

N
-R

1W

TREELINE

POINT OF
BEGINNING

S 01°43'33" W
33.09' (33.01')

FND. MAGNAIL

FND. 5/8" IRON PIN

BI
TU

MI
NO

US
 P

AV
EM

EN
T

EASTERLY EDGE OF BITUMINOUS
DRIVEWAY 0.1' EAST OF PROPERTY

CORNER

UTILITY POLE 5.8' EAST
OF PROPERTY LINE

LEGEND

BUSH

LOT LINE

C

E

G

AC

B

EXISTING SIGN

GAS METER

ELECTRICAL METER

A/C UNIT

BOLLARD

SANITARY CLEAN OUT 

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING WATER TO REMAIN

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO REMAIN

EXISTING GAS MAIN

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING WATER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING WATER TO REMAIN

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO REMAIN

D

S

D

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN

EXISTING OVERHEAD UTILITIES 

REMOVE EXISTING TREE

EXISTING SHRUBS
TO BE REMOVED

18"

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FENCE TO REMAIN

EXISTING FENCE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING GAS MAIN TO BE REMOVED

(TBR)

"SALVAGE"(SVG)

(TYP) TYPICAL FOR ALL SIMILAR
ITEMS WITHIN THE LIMIT OF
DEMOLTION ACTIVITY

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO BE REMOVEDS

BENCHMARK

"TO BE REMOVED" - SEE
DEMOLITION NOTES

EXISTING PAVEMENT OR CONCRETE SIDEWALKS
TO BE REMOVED

SEE GENERAL NOTES
SHEETS C1 & C2 FOR
ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION
NOTES

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREE
TO BE REMOVED
(TYP)

28"

EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

18"

18"

8"

12"

24"

14"

14"

24"

16"

18"

16" 10" x 3

14"

24"

16"

EXISTING TREE
TO BE REMOVED

(TYP)

101.9' EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL

10"

10"

10"
30"

UTILITY POLE TO
BE RELOCATED.

COORDINATE
RELOCATION WITH

JO-CARROLL
ENERGY

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

20"6"

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

EXISTING FENCE (TBR)

EXISTING FENCE (TBR)

85
.9

' E
XI

ST
IN

G
 C

U
RB

 A
N

D
 G

U
TT

ER
 R

EM
O

VA
L

SA
W

 C
U
T

STAGING OF REMOVAL AND
INSTALLATION OF PAVEMENT ON
RED GATES ROAD IS REQUIRED.
ONE LANE OF ACCESS MUST BE

MAINTAINED.

EXHIBIT B

Page 29 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C09

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD
LEGEND

PROPOSED INTEGRAL CONCRETE CURB

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED SETBACK LINE

EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED STRIPING

NUMBER OF PROPOSED PARKING SPACES
PAINTED YELLOW STRIPES

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED SIGN

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING SIGNAL CONTROLLER

PROPOSED FENCE

LIGHT POLE & FIXTURE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING FENCE

EXISTING MAILBOX

PROPOSED EASEMENT

SIDEWALK PAVEMENT

EDGE OF
CANOPY

ACCESSIBLE
PARKING
SIGN

5' SIDEWALK
(RE: ARCH S-501)

STANDARD DUTY
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE
PAVEMENT OVER

CONTAINMENT TANKS

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

4" SOLID
YELLOW
LINE (TYP)

4" SOLID
YELLOW LINES
2' C-C @ 45
DEGREES

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

DEPRESSED
CONCRETE CURB

AND GUTTER

RATIONO. OF SPACES NO. OF SPACES

5.45/1000 S.F.
14 REQUIRED

BUILDING AREA

ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS

BLDG (1 PER 300 SF) 4,223 S.F.

PARKING RATIOS

1 PROVIDED
23 PROVIDED

U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

CK
 -

 1
25

'

FR
O

M
 C

L 
O

F 
U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

S 32°27'48" E
27.57' (27.61')

1 REQUIRED

MATCH INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER ALIGNMENT
AND GRADE

20'

20' BUILDING SETBACK

30' PARKING SETBACK

S 21°54'14" W
70.03'

S 87°13'53" E

224.46' (224.53')

S 17°52'33" W
12.06' (12.15')

S 23°07'57" W
98.13' (98.09')

S 17°46'18" W
66.26' (66.19')

S 18°47'37" W
105.05' (105.10')

S 09°26'05" W
25.22'

N 53°29'13" E
21.74' (21.71')

N 86°27'41" E
50.15' (50.19')

S 50°03'16" E
31.72' (31.77')

S 87°14'13" E

374.77' (374.83')

N
 1

2°
58

'0
1"

 E
15

1.
57

' (
15

1.
54

')

232.30' (232.32')
N 77°32'27" W

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

20' BUILDING SETBACK

30
' P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
ET

BA
CK

BUILDING SETBACK - 110' FROM
CL OF W. RED GATES ROAD

471.21'

N 87°38'48" W

N 
29

°4
8'

23
" 

E
16

8.
18

'

N 01°43'33" E
47.51'

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

MATCH INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER ALIGNMENT
AND GRADE

DELIVERY
AREA

MONUMENT SIGN
(RE: ARCH PLANS)

UNDERGROUND FUEL
STORAGE TANKS

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
CURB (TYP)

SEE UTILITY PLAN
FOR TRANSFORMER
PAD INFORMATION

BUILDING ROOF
LINE (TYP)

13

5

PROPOSED
STORAGE SHED
(RE: TO SHEET

AL-401)

BRICK DUMPSTER/RECYCLE
ENCLOSURE.

(4) 6' GATES AND 3' SERVICE
GATE.(RE: ARCH)

C (COMMERCIAL DISTRICT)
177,635 SQUARE FEET

4.078 ACRES

4

1

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
CURB (TYP)

RAMP DOWN TO
PAVEMENT @ 1:20

RAMP DOWN TO
PAVEMENT @ 1:12

LAYOUT NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS OF THE BENCHMARKS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.  THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION OF EXISTING PIPE INVERTS, FLOOR ELEVATIONS,
CURB OR PAVEMENT WHERE MATCHING INTO EXISTING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL
CONTROL BY REFERENCING SHOWN COORDINATES TO KNOWN PROPERTY LINES.  NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCIES IN EITHER VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL CONTROL PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

2. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS.

3. DIMENSIONS THAT LOCATE THE BUILDING ARE MEASURED TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF THE BUILDING.

4. SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE MANUAL ON
UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, CURRENT EDITION.

5. COORDINATE WORK WITHIN 4TH STREET WITH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT). TRAFFIC
CONTROL SHALL CONFORM TO IDOT STANDARDS FOR WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W.

6. ALL RADII ARE DIMENSIONED TO THE BACK OF CURB.

7. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE REFERENCED TO THE BACK OF CURB, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

8. ALL CURB AND GUTTER IS INTEGRAL TO PAVEMENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  REFER TO THE DETAIL SHEETS FOR
CURB DETAILS.

9. SOME FIELD ADJUSTMENTS MAY BE NECESSARY AT POINTS WHERE PROPOSED PAVEMENT, CURB AND SIDEWALKS
MEET EXISTING PAVEMENT, CURB AND SIDEWALKS.  REVIEW ANY REQUIRED CHANGES WITH ENGINEER PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION OF WORK.

10. DRIVEWAY JOINTS TO BE PACKED AND CAULKED.

11. CONCRETE DRIVE TO BE TROWELED WITH LIGHT BROOM FINISH.

12. CONTROL JOINTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 100 S.F. AND A MAXIMUM OF 125 S.F. AND 25% DEEP.

13. CONSTRUCTION JOINTS TO BE PINNED 4' O.C. 12" EACH WAY WITH 1/2" REBAR #4.

14. ELECTRICAL CIRCUITRY TO SITE LIGHTING AND MONUMENT SIGN SHOWN ON ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

15. FOR REQUIRED PAVEMENT REMOVAL ADJACENT TO THE CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL WITHIN RED GATES ROAD.
A FULL DEPTH SAWCUT SHALL BE UTILIZED AND SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 2' IN WIDTH.

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARATION, COORDINATION AND OBTAINING APPROVAL OF A
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN IF CLOSURES OF LANES EXCEED THE THE CRITERIA ESTABLISHED IN THE BDE MANUAL.

17. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE OFF-PEAK WORK HOURS BASED ON QUEUE ANALYSIS AND NON-WORK DAYS
DURING SPECIAL EVENTS WITH JO DAVIESS COUNTY AND THE CITY OF GALENA.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

RAMP DOWN TO
PAVEMENT @ 1:20

20'

10
'

(T
YP

)

8'
8'

9'
(T

YP
)

9'

10
'

(T
YP

)

14
'

5'

10
3'

5'

20'(TYP)

20'(TYP)

43.4'

41'

8.4' 20'(TYP)

33'

24'

33'

12
'

30
'

30
'

30
'

30
'

30
'

12
'

17
4'

R20'R20'

R15'

R3'

26
'

4'

6'

39.3'

77
'

46.8'

45
.4

'

52.5'

19.5'

45'

38
'

60'

40
'

8.4'

5

PROPOSED CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

COMBINATION
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER, TYPE B6.18

R15'

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
CURB (TYP)

STANDARD DUTY
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TRANSITION CURB
FROM 6" TO 0"

OVER 3'

THICKENED EDGE
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

RAMP DOWN TO
PAVEMENT @ 1:20

THICKENED EDGE
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AT BUILDING

166.17'

98
.2

6'

4' SIDEWALK

34.3'

8.
8'

R25'

59'

B-6.24 CURB AND
GUTTER ALIGNMENT
AND GRADE TO MATCH
EXISTING PAVMENT

MATCH INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER ALIGNMENT
AND GRADE

MATCH INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER ALIGNMENT
AND GRADE

TYPE A GUTTER
OUTLET

MATCH INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ALIGNMENT AND
GRADE. SIDEWALK

MUST BE ADA
COMPLIANT. MAX

CROSS SLOPE 2.00%.

5'

MATCH INTO EXISTING
ALIGNMENT AND

GRADE
MATCH INTO EXISTING
ALIGNMENT AND
GRADE

4" DOUBLE SOLID
YELLOW PAVEMENT
MARKING AT 11" O.C.

12" SOLID YELLOW
PAVEMENT PARKING
AT 10' O.C. @ 45°
ANGLE (TYP)

R1' R40'

R2.5'

EXHIBIT B

Page 30 of 106



G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

E

O
/E

O
/E

FM FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

TP
80

6.
96

TP
80

6.
50

TP
80

6.
96

TP
80

6.
96TP

80
7.

18

TP
80

8.
08

TP
80

8.
08

TP
80

7.
18

7.
18

TP
80

7.
10

TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

7.
87

TP
80

7.
67

TP
80

6.
49

TP
80

6.
25

TP
80

6.
05

TP
80

5.
77

TP
80

6.
73TP

80
6.

96

TP
80

6.
45TP

80
6.

96

TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

8.
40

TP
80

8.
33

TP
80

8.
08

FFMFMFMMMMMMTFMFMFMM

TP
80

7.
95

TP
80

8.
40

TP
80

8.
08

TP
80

8.
08

TP
80

5.
46

TP
80

4.
97

TP
80

2.
40

TP
80

3.
95

TP
80

2.
97

TP
80

3.
42

TP
80

6.
68

TP
80

6.
49

TP
80

7.
59

TP
80

7.
23

TP
80

7.
59

TP
80

7.
23

TP
80

8.
53

TP
80

8.
53

TP
80

8

TP
80

8

TP
80

8

TP
80

T
TP

80
8.

38

TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

9.
02TP

79
8.

48

.9
7

.9
FG

80
9.

40

46FG
81

0.
41

FG
81

1.
66

7777
FG

81
3.

50

FG
81

7.
81

TP
80

TP
80

FG
81

5.
78

TT

FG
80

9.
01

080TW
80

8.
46

FFMP8
07

.8
7

P8
07

.8
7

P8
07

.8
7

80
7

MMFFFFFFMF TP
8FMFMFMFM 55TW

80
8.

37
TW

80
7.

46

TW
80

7.
30

TW
80

7.
30

TP
80

6.
81

TP
80

8.
72

TP
80

8.
72

TW
80

8.
90

08
.9

0

TW
80

9.
00

TW
80

8.
90

TW
80

8.
90

08
.9

0

TW
80

9.
00

3838TW
80

8.
88

TW
80

8.
99

3838TW
80

8.
86

08
.5

3
08

.5
353

TW
8

T

TW
80

8.
49

TW
80

8.
49

TW
80

8

TW
80

8

TW
80

8.
53

2
TW

80
8.

49

TP
80

8
7

TP
80

8
80

808
.7

272
TWTW

80
8.

72

TW
80

9.
00

9.
00

9.
0

TW
80

8.
88

TW
80

8.
88

W
8
W

8
TW

8
W

8

TP
80

8.
38

TW
80

8.
88

TW
80

8.
88

TW
80

8.
8

08

TP
80

8.
38

TWTW
8TW

80
9.

00
TW

80
9.

00
TW

80
8.

88

TP
80

8
P8

0

TW
80

8.
38

88888888888

TP
8

T
80

80808

TW
80

8
W
8

TWTW
8

WTW
880880

W
80

TWTWWW
8

W
8

W
8

WTWTWW
8080

80880808080
8

W
8080

88.
38

08
.3

8

TTTT TP
80

8.
38

TP
80

8
P8

0
TP

8
0

TW
80

8.
508

TP
8P8P8TW

80
8.

90

40

08
.9

0
8

90TW
80

8.
99

FG
77

8.
48

FG
79

1.
17

FG
78

0.
98

FG
78

FG
78

0.
98

FG
77

1.
10

FG
77

FGFG
77

FG
77

1.
10

FG
80

1.
30

FG
80

7.
00

FG
80

7.
30

FG
80

7.
42

FG
80

4.
79

81
8

81
7

81
6

81
5

815
81

4

81
4

81
3

81
3

81
2

81
2

812

81
1

81
1

811

81
0

81
0

810

809

80
9

809

80
9

809

80
8

80
8

80
8

808

80
8

80
8

80
7

80
7

06
.606060680
6

80
6

80
6

80
6

8
807

80
7

80
7

807

80
6

80
6

806

77
G8G8G8G8

5
7

555
7.75.
7

5.
777

80
6

80
5

80
5

805

805

804

804

804

803

80
3

80
2

80
2

80
1

80
1

80
0

80
0

79
9

79
9

79
8

779
8

7

7979
79

7
79

6

795
794

793
792

791790789788787786785784783
782781

780
779

778
777

776
775

774
773
772771

0

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2''W
2''W

2''W 2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

UE/T UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

tw
81

8.
05

tw
81

8.
10

tw
81

8.
16

tw
81

8.
06

TP
79

8.
22

TP
80

7.
52

TP
80

7.
73

TP
79

8.
58

TP
80

7.
52

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C10

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

LEGEND

GRADING NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS OF THE BENCHMARKS PRIOR TO
COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF EXISTING PIPE INVERTS, FLOOR ELEVATIONS CURB OR PAVEMENT WHERE MATCHING INTO
EXISTING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL OR VERTICAL CONTROL
BY REFERENCING SHOWN COORDINATES OR ELEVATIONS TO HORIZONTAL OR VERTICAL
CONTROL POINTS PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

2. ALL UNSURFACED AREAS ARE TO RECEIVE FOUR INCHES OF TOPSOIL AND SODDED (OR SEEDED
WHERE NOTED) AND WATERED UNTIL A HEALTHY STAND OF GRASS IS OBTAINED.

3. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE IS TO BE REINFORCED CONCRETE CULVERT PIPE CLASS IV UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.  WHERE HDPE OR PVC PIPE IS LISTED AS ACCEPTABLE MATERIALS, PVC SDR
35, HDPE DOUBLE WALL (ADS N-12), OR PVC SCHEDULE 40 MAY BE USED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S
DISCRETION.

4. THE MAXIMUM SLOPE RATIO ON CUT/FILL SLOPES IS 3 HORIZONTAL TO 1 VERTICAL.

5. PROPERTY CORNERS SHALL BE CAREFULLY PROTECTED UNTIL THEY HAVE BEEN REFERENCED BY
A PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR. PROPERTY MONUMENTS DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S
OPERATION SHALL BE REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL SET ALL CLEANOUT, MANHOLE AND INLET  CASTINGS, FIRE HYDRANTS AND
VALVE BOXES TO FINISHED GRADE.

7. ALL PROPOSED PAVED AREAS SHALL BE STRIPPED OF ALL TOPSOIL AND UNSUITABLE MATERIAL
AND EXCAVATED OR FILLED TO WITHIN 0.10 FEET OF DESIGN SUBGRADE.

8. THE EARTHWORK CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING POSITIVE DRAINAGE AT THE
CONCLUSION OF EACH WORKING DAY.

9. ROOF AND CANOPY DRAIN SHALL INCORPORATE BOOT PER DETAIL. 6" PVC PIPE SHALL EXTEND
TO A MAIN AS SHOWN ON THE PLAN. POSITIVE DRAINAGE SHALL BE MAINTAINED TOWARD MAIN
AT 0.5% MINIMUM SLOPE. 6" PVC CONNECTION TO BE MADE WITH INSERT-A-TEE OR ENGINEER
APPROVED EQUIVALENT BETWEEN DISSIMILAR MATERIALS.

TW
00

0.
00

TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED GRADE BREAK LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

TOP OF WALK ELEVATION

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

DIRECTION OF SHEET FLOW

EXISTING MANHOLE OR CATCH BASIN

CO. PROPOSED CLEANOUT

BENCHMARK

800

FG
00

0.
0

FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION

TP
00

0.
00

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE, SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE, SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

FLARED END SECTION (FES), RCP

EXISTING STORM SEWER

DOWNSTREAM DEFENDER, SEE DETAIL

RIM ELEV. RIM ELEV.

AREA TYPE CASTING CURB TYPE CASTING

RIM ELEV. DEFINITION

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION

BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND DETENTION 

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

PIPE TABLE

STRUCTURE TABLE

D14

DOWNSPOUT
CONNECTION TO

4" PVC STORM
SEWER AND

4"X8" WYE AT 8"
STORM SEWER

TYP. (X 6)

D13

D12

P1
3

P12

D15

D16

P11

P1
4

P15

D11

D04

D05
D06

P03

P04

P05

CONNECT 6" PVC
STORM SEWER

AND 6"X8" WYE AT
8" STORM SEWER

TYP. (X 2)

CONNECT 4" PVC
STORM SEWER

AND 4"X6" WYE AT
6" STORM SEWER

TYP. (X 10)

CLEANOUT

48 L.F. OF
6" SCH 40

PVC @
1.0%

130 L.F.
OF 6" SCH
40 PVC @

1.0%

82 L.F. OF 8" SCH
40 PVC @ 1.0%

82 L.F. OF 8" SCH
40 PVC @ 1.0%

130 L.F.
OF 6" SCH
40 PVC @
1.0%

GABION BASKET

EXHIBIT B

Page 31 of 106



FG759.97

FG
76

2.
15

FG
76

7.
08

FG
76

2.
11

G76
2.

15115

FG
76

2.
11

FG753.41

FG754.55

FG754.17

FG762.19

FG781.85

FG784.16

FG785.71

FG784.77

FG
79

3.
95

FG
79

0.
73

FG
79

3.
46

FG756.50

FG756.50

79
7

79
6

79
5

79
4

79
3

79
2

79
179

078
978

878
778

6

78
5

FFG7FG78
4

78
383

78
2

78
1

78
000

77
99

77
88

77
777

77
6

77
77

5
7777

77
4747474

77
33

77
2

77
1

77
0

770

7777
76

9

769

9
76

8

768

76
7

767

76
6

766

767676
5

765

555
76

4

764

6464
76

3

76
2

76
1

76
0

75
9

75
8

75
7

756

75
6

FG754.50

FG754.50

FG755.87

FG755.87

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C11

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

LEGEND

TW
00

0.
00

TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED GRADE BREAK LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

TOP OF WALK ELEVATION

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE

DIRECTION OF SHEET FLOW

EXISTING MANHOLE OR CATCH BASIN

CO. PROPOSED CLEANOUT

BENCHMARK

800

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

FG
00

0.
0

FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION

TP
00

0.
00

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE, SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

CATCH BASIN OR MANHOLE, SEE STRUCTURE TABLE

FLARED END SECTION (FES), RCP

EXISTING STORM SEWER

DOWNSTREAM DEFENDER, SEE DETAIL

RIM ELEV. RIM ELEV.

AREA TYPE CASTING CURB TYPE CASTING

RIM ELEV. DEFINITION

STRUCTURE TABLEPIPE TABLE

BENCHMARK 2
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE AT SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF RED GATES ROAD AND US ROUTE 20

819.11

793.66

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION

BENCHMARK 1
RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTH SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE NORTH SIDE OF RED
GATES ROAD APPROXIMATELY 310'
WEST OF US ROUTE 20

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 3
RAILROAD SPIKE IN WEST SIDE OF
UTILITY POLE WEST SIDE OF US ROUTE
20 APPROXIMATELY 216' SOUTH OF RED
GATES ROAD

821.11

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND DETENTION 

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

D01
P0

1
D02 D03P02

P03

D22

D20

P2
1

PERMANENT OUTLET STABILIZATION REFER TO SHEET C04 FOR DIMENSIONS

PERMANENT OUTLET STABILIZATION REFER
TO SHEET C04 FOR DIMENSIONS

EXHIBIT B

Page 32 of 106



G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

E

O
/E

O
/

FM FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2''W 2''W

2''W 2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

UE/T UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

FM

2''W
2''W

2''WUE/T

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C12

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

MONUMENT SIGN
(RE: ARCH PLANS)

U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

S 32°27'48" E
27.57' (27.61')

S 21°54'14" W
70.03'

S 87°13'53" E

224.46' (224.53')

S 17°52'33" W
12.06' (12.15')

S 23°07'57" W
98.13' (98.09')

S 17°46'18" W
66.26' (66.19')

S 18°47'37" W
105.05' (105.10')

S 09°26'05" W
25.22'

N 53°29'13" E
21.74' (21.71')

N 86°27'41" E
50.15' (50.19')

S 50°03'16" E
31.72' (31.77')

S 87°14'13" E

374.77' (374.83')

N
 1

2°
58

'0
1"

 E
15

1.
57

' (
15

1.
54

')

232.30' (232.32')
N 77°32'27" W

471.21'

N 87°38'48" W

N 
29

°4
8'

23
" 

E
16

8.
18

'

N 01°43'33" E
47.51'

4
5

DETAIL 'A'

SEE DETAIL
'A'

220 L.F. OF 1 1/4"
HDPE FORCE MAIN

6

1

2

3

7

8

LEGEND

UTILITY NOTES
1. SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE STATEWIDE

SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER MAIN CONSTRUCTION IN ILLINOIS, SEVENTH EDITION
DATED JULY 2014 AND THE LOCAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS.

2. ALL PRIVATE WATER MAINS CONSTRUCTED ON THE PROPERTY ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITH
MATERIALS THAT FOLLOW THE STATE OF ILLINOIS AND THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS AND JO
DAVIESS COUNTY REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FAMILIARIZING
HIMSELF WITH THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS AND JO DAVIESS COUNTY REQUIREMENTS FOR PIPE
MATERIAL AND OTHER WATER MAIN APPURTENANCES.

3. EXISTING UTILITY INFORMATION IS SHOWN FROM SURVEY WORK BY OTHERS, FIELD
OBSERVATIONS, AVAILABLE PUBLIC RECORDS AND AS-BUILT DRAWINGS.  EXACT LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS OF UTILITIES SHALL BE DETERMINED PRIOR TO INSTALLING NEW WORK.  EXCAVATE
TEST PITS AS REQUIRED.

4. CONTACT ALL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITY COMPANIES 48 HOURS PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION.
COST OF REPLACEMENT OR REPAIR OF EXISTING UTILITIES DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF THE
CONTRACTOR'S OPERATION SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS OF THE BENCHMARKS PRIOR TO
COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION, ELEVATION AND
SIZE  OF EXISTING UTILITIES, AND VERIFY FLOOR, CURB OR PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS WHERE
MATCHING INTO EXISTING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL CONTROL
BY REFERENCING SHOWN COORDINATES TO KNOWN PROPERTY LINES.  NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCIES IN EITHER VERTICAL CONTROL PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

6. REFER TO BUILDING PLANS FOR EXACT LOCATIONS OF NEW UTILITY ENTRIES.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL SET ALL CLEANOUT, CASTINGS, AND VALVE BOXES TO FINISHED GRADE.

8. ALL TRENCHES WITHIN PAVED AREAS AND A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET BEYOND ALL CURB LINES SHALL
BE BACKFILLED WITH AN APPROVED GRANULAR MATERIAL, COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 98%
WITHIN 12" OF PAVEMENT.

9. SANITARY SEWER SERVICES SHALL BE 6" PVC/WATERMAIN QUALITY SDR 26 WITH GASKETED
JOINTS OR SCHEDULE 40 WITH SOLVENT WELDED JOINTS ALL SERVICES SHALL BE SLOPED FROM
THE MAIN AT 1% MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC SERVICE

PROPOSED TELEPHONE SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED GAS MAIN

PROPOSED WATER MAIN

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

EXISTING MANHOLE OR CATCH BASIN

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING GAS MAIN

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING WATER MAIN

EXISTING OVERHEAD UTILITY LINES

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

S EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

PROPERTY LINE

CO. PROPOSED SANITARY CLEANOUT

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

3

UTILITY KEY LEGEND
WATER METER AND PROPOSED 2 " CTS HDPE, SDR9, C5-200 PSI WATER SERVICE

GAS SERVICE ENTRY AND METER (RE: ARCH)

PROPOSED 1.5" SCH. 40 STEEL PIPE GAS SERVICE (COORDINATE INSTALLATION
WITH NICOR)

PROPOSED ELECTRIC (ELECTRIC 3 PHASE, 800 AND 120/208 VOLTS, 4 WIRE)
(CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE CONNECTION WITH JO-CARROLL ENERGY)

PROPOSED PHONE SERVICE (8 PAIR, 4 LINES)

STORM SEWER, REFER TO GRADING PLAN

CONNECT TO EXIST. WET TAP AND 2" X 10" STAINLESS STEEL TAPPING SLEEVE.  2"
WATER SERVICE WITH 2" CORP STOP.  COORDINATE CONNECTION WITH CITY
PUBLIC WORKS.  FIELD VERIFY EXISTING LOCATION & SIZE.

TRANSFORMER PAD  (CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE INSTALLATION WITH
JO-CARROLL ENERGY)

2

3

4

5

6

1

7

8

LIGHT POLE & FIXTURE

SCALE - 1" = 10'

SAN. SERV., 6"
INV @ BLDG. =
805.00

1000 GALLON
GREASE

INTERCEPTOR
INV IN = 804.82

INV OUT = 804.72

7 L.F. OF 6"
SCHEDULE 40 SAN.

SEWER @ 2.00% 20 L.F. OF 6"
SCHEDULE 40 SAN.
SEWER @ 1.70%

7 L.F. OF 6" SCHEDULE 40
SAN. SEWER @ 2.00%

CLEANOUT
INV = 804.86

CLEANOUT
INV = 804.86

4 L.F. OF 6"
SCHEDULE 40

SAN. SEWER @
1.00%

10 L.F. OF 6"
SCHEDULE 40 SAN.

SEWER @ 2.00%

LIFT STATION
RIM = 797.10
INV = 804.52 (6", W)
INV = 805.33 (1 1/4", NE)

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

RIM = 817.5
INV = 810.00 (EXISTING 8", NE)
INV = 810.10 (SW)

FIRE HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY.

BOX TO BE ADJUSTED TO
FINISHED GRADE.

6

RELOCATE EXISTING UTILITY
POLE.   COORDINATE
RELOCATION WITH
JO-CARROLL ENERGY

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

EXHIBIT B

Page 33 of 106



ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C13

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

6" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (INTEGRAL CURB)
MIN. 4,000 PSI AIR ENTRAINMENT AT 14 DAYS, 6
BAG MIX (SURFACE TO RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM
FINISH)

SUBGRADE - COMPACTED TO NOT LESS THAN
95% OF MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY PER ASTM
D-698 (STANDARD PROCTOR)

12" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B (IDOT
GRAD. CA-6)

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE

8" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE. MIN. 4,000
PSI AIR ENTRAINMENT AT 14 DAYS, 6 BAG
MIX WITH #4 BARS @ 24" C-C (SURFACE TO
RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM FINISH)

SUBGRADE - COMPACTED TO NOT LESS
THAN 95% OF MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY PER
ASTM D-698 (STANDARD PROCTOR)

12" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B
(IDOT GRAD. CA-6)

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (DRIVEWAY)

2% MAX.

D=5"

SEE PLAN FOR WIDTH

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (PUBLIC)

4" IDOT CA6.
95 % STANDARD PROCTOR

MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY.

5" CONCRETE WALK WITH
LIGHT BARN BROOM FINISH
WITH 4" RETOOLED JOINTS
AND EDGES.

SLOPE TOWARD
STREET OR AWAY
FROM BLDG

"D"

"O.D."

HAUNCHING

BEDDING

GROUND SURFACE

MAXIMUM
EXCAVATED TRENCH WIDTH

PIPE O.D. + 24" MAX

4" MIN.

1/2 "D"

INITIAL BACKFILL
12" + 1/2 D

FINAL BACKFILL
GRADED, CRUSHED

 STONE WHEN
UNDER PAVEMENT,
SIDEWALK, ETC.

COMPACTED IDOT APPROVED
CA-6 CRUSHED STONE. IF

TRENCH BOTTOM IS WET USE
CA-7 FOR THE BEDDING

SEE PLAN FOR PIPE SIZE, TYPE, AND ELEVATION

12"

NOTE: SEE APPLICABLE DETAIL
FOR BACKFILL AND BEDDING
INSTRUCTIONS.

10
"

WYE

(M
IN

.)

ADJUSTABLE HEAD

GRADE SURFACE AWAY
FROM CLEAN OUT

THREADED PVC CLEANOUT PLUG

12"

PLUG WYE IF SERVICE LATERAL

DIRECTION OF FLOW

SIZE OF RISER PIPE PER LOCAL CODES

DOES NOT CONTINUE

45° BEND

W/ LETTERS "C.O." CAST IN COVER

4" MIN. 2500 PSI P.C.
CONCRETE COLLAR

1" IN GRASSY AREA
0" IN PAVED AREA

CRUSHED STONE PER LOCAL
CODES

7" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (INTEGRAL CURB)
MIN. 4,000 PSI AIR ENTRAINMENT AT 14 DAYS, 6
BAG MIX (SURFACE TO RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM
FINISH)

SUBGRADE - COMPACTED TO NOT LESS THAN
95% OF MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY PER ASTM
D-698 (STANDARD PROCTOR)

12" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B (IDOT
GRAD. CA-6)

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (UGST)

0'-0"
TOC ELEV

(-)4'-0"
BELOW FINISH GRADE

CONCRETE SLAB REF PLAN

2% SLOPE
SIDEWALK AWAY

(-)4'-0"
BELOW FINISH GRADE

PARKING LOT PAVING
RE: LAYOUT PLAN

4" IDOT CA6.
95 % STANDARD

PROCTOR MAXIMUM
DRY DENSITY.

PIN SIDEWALK TO BUILDING
FOUNDATION EVERY 2' O.C.
WITH #4x2'-0". AND TIE EVERY
4' TO THICKENED EDGE.

SEAL ALL
PENETRATIONS,
TYPICAL

(3) #5 CONT

#4 AT 18"OC, FIELD BEND
INTO SLAB

(4) #4 HORIZ, CONT

1/2" EXPANSION 'ZIP' STRIP

MIN 8 MILL VAPOR RETARDER,
SEE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

#4 CONT

12" THICKENED
REINFORCED EDGE

OVER EXCAVATE 1 TO 2
FEET FARTHER THEN
THE WIDTH OF THE
SIDEWALK BELOW
FROST DEPTH IN YOUR
AREA.

6x6/W1.4xW1.4 WIRE MESH

2" RIGID INSULATION
WRAP 2' UNDER SLAB

1" EXPANSION 'ZIP' STRIP

THICKENED EDGE CONCRETE WALK @ BUILDING

5-8% AIR ENTRAINMENT,
WITH CONCRETE SHALL BE
3500 PSI AT 14 DAYS, 3/4"

MAX. AGGREGATE SIZE

8'-0" 8'-0"

20
'-

0"

NO PARKING STRIPING:   PAINT
ACCESS ISLE AND AREA BEHIND
PARKING SPACE ADJACENT TO
BUILDING ENTRY SIDEWALK WITH
ANGLED STRIPING AS INDICATED;
PARKING STRIPES ARE TO BE
YELLOW.

45°

4'-
0"

SIGNAGE:  INSTALL ON POST
WITHIN DRIVE, 12" OFF
SIDEWALK AS SITE
CONDITIONS REQUIRE

NOTE:
VERIFY HEIGHT OF H.C. SIGN
FROM TOP OF GRADE WITH
LOCAL AUTHORITY.

5'
-0

" 
M

IN
IM

U
M

A SIGN STATING "$250 FINE" MUST BE
POSTED BELOW OR ADJACENT TO THE
RESERVED PARKING SIGN.

DISABLED SIGN WITH REQUIRED
UNIVERSAL SYMBOL OF ACCESSIBILITY,
INCLUDE APPROPRIATE WORDING TO
CLEARLY INDICATING THAT THE SPACE IS
RESERVED FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF
VEHICLES WHICH DISPLAY A
DISTINGUISHING LICENSE PLATE OR
CARD.

SIGN INDICATING THIS SPACE IS A 'VAN
ACCESSIBLE' SPACE

PARKING
RESERVED

3'
-0

"

B
O

LL
A

R
D

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

4" SOLID YELLOW PAINTED
PAVEMENT MARKING.

MATERIAL AND APPLICATION
PER IDOT SPECIFICATION.

(TYP.)

18
'

9' (TYP.)4" SOLID YELLOW

90° STANDARD STALLS
FACE OF CURB/SIDEWALK

TYPICAL 90 DEGREE PARKING STRIPING DETAILSCONCRETE PAVEMENT DETAILS

ACCESSIBLE SYMBOL

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN DETAIL

YELLOW
REFLECTIVE  PAINT

39" STANDARD ACCESSIBLE SYMBOL

CONCRETE PAVEMENT DETAILS

SEWER CLEANOUT DETAIL

ADA PARKING DETAILS

BLUE &
WHITE

GREEN

WHITE

VAN
ACCESSIBLE

$250 FINE

PIPE EMBEDMENT DETAIL

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

D06-OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE 

ORIFICE, CUT TO 4" DIA.

ELEV. = 795.00

INLET/OUTLET PIPE
(TYP.)
SEE DRAINAGE PLAN
FOR PIPE INFORMATION

T304 STAINLESS STEEL PLATE, 1/2"

SEE GRADING PLAN FOR
STRUCTURE TYPE AND

RIM ELEVATION

1"

SECTION A-A

LAG BOLT, 1/2" x 3"
AT 8" O.C. MAX.

T304 STAINLESS STEEL ANGLE IRON,
1" x 1". LENGTH SHALL BE THE
TOTAL INSIDE HEIGHT OF THE

STRUCTURE

ELEV. =801

RE: GRADING PLAN FOR STRUCTURE TYPE

AA

D=5"

12"

SEE PLAN FOR WIDTH

6"

7"

BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT

4" IDOT CA6.
95 % STANDARD PROCTOR

MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY.

5" CONCRETE WALK WITH
PICTURE FRAME FINISH, 6 X 6
-10/10 W.W.M. CONTINUOUS.
USE HEAVY BARN BROOM
FINISH WITH 4" RETOOLED
JOINTS AND EDGES.

WWF MESH

1/4"/FT

SLOPE TOWARD
STREET OR AWAY
FROM BLDG

5-8% AIR ENTERTAINMENT, WITH
CONCRETE SHALL BE 3500 PSI,

3/4" MAX. AGGREGATE SIZE

THICKENED EDGE SIDEWALK

5-8% AIR ENTERTAINMENT, WITH
CONCRETE SHALL BE 3500 PSI,

3/4" MAX. AGGREGATE SIZE

EXHIBIT B

Page 34 of 106



TAPERED END

NOTE:
ROPE AND CAULK ALL
SIDEWALK SAW CUTS.

EXPANSION MATERIAL
AT SAW CUT, RUN
EXPANSION THRU CURB
TO CORNER OF
BUILDING

4" CURB ALONG FACE
OF BUILDING TYP.

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C14

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

SIDEWALK RAMP LAYOUTWATER SERVICE DETAIL

EXHIBIT B

Page 35 of 106



    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C15

14012

XXX

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

IDOT DETAILS

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

EXHIBIT B

Page 36 of 106



    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C16

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

IDOT DETAILS

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

EXHIBIT B

Page 37 of 106



    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C17

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

EXHIBIT B

Page 38 of 106



    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C18

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

EXHIBIT B

Page 39 of 106



    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

C19

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20

EXHIBIT B

Page 40 of 106



G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

E

O
/E

FM FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

81
8

81
7

81
6

81
5

815

81
4

81
4

81
3

81
3

81
2

81
2

812

81
1

81
1

811

81
0

81
0

810

809

80
9

809

80
9

809

80
8

80
8

80
8

808

80
8

80
8

80
7

80
7

807

80
7

80
7

807

80
6

80
6

806

80
6

80
5

805

805

804

804

804

80
3

80
2

80
180

079
9

779
8

7979
79

7
79

6

795
794

793
792

791790789788787786
5

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2'
'W

2''W
2''W

2''W 2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

2''W

UE/T UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

UE/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

U
E/T

756

75
6

ITEM DATE

DATE

PROJECT NAME
OWNER'S NAME

CONSULTANTS

ISSUED FOR

CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISIONS

PM

PROJECT NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

L1

14012

LND

RCS

RGS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

WEST RED GATES ROAD

U
S 

RO
U
TE

 2
0

TR

0

N O

20 40

H

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

ZONING: JO DAVIESS
COUNTY AG -GENERAL

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

CASEY'S
GENERAL
STORE

WEST RED GATES
ROAD & U.S.
ROUTE 20
CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50021
RICK FIDLER
(515) 965-6243

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

STEEL EDGING 1/8-INCH X 4-INCH
INTERLOCKING STEEL EDGING,

STAKED WITH METAL STAKES
SUFFICIENTLY TO HOLD IN PLACE.

(TYP. ALL PLANTING BEDS)

UF - 1

SHL - 1
SHL - 1

ABS - 1

ABS - 1

PP -6

HHR - 11

HHR - 7

HHR - 7

JBP - 3

JBP - 3

RPD - 11

VDC - 3

PP - 3

PPG - 3

PPG - 3

JKC - 3

FNG - 5

ST - 1

KFG - 6
HHR - 7

VDC - 3

JKC - 3

FNG - 3

FNG - 3

FNG - 3

FNG - 3

JKC - 3

JKC - 3

VDC - 2

VDC - 2
FNG - 3

VDC - 2

VDC - 2

FNG - 3

LANDSCAPING BERM

PPG - 3

PP - 2

PPG - 2

EXHIBIT B

Page 41 of 106



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
  
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator   
 
DATE:    December 29, 2014 
 
RE:    Ridge Street Vacation (Winkens) 
 
A public hearing is scheduled for the beginning of Monday’s meeting in order to receive public 
comments on an application by Thomas Winkens to vacate an area of the Ridge Street right‐of‐
way in School Section.  The applicant owns the home at the adjacent 604 Muir Street.  A plat of 
the proposed vacation is attached for your review.    
 
Our staff has reviewed the request and reached the following conclusions: 
 

1. The subject right‐of‐way is 125 feet by 40 feet, or 5,000 square feet in area. 
   

2. The home at 604 Muir Street is located on the property line with no setback from the 
subject right‐of‐way. 

 
3. The subject right‐of‐way is not improved for public purposes, but a segment is improved 

for parking for 604 Muir Street.  
 

4. The applicant and owner of 604 Muir Street also owns the property on the other side (to 
the west) of the subject right‐of‐way.  There are no other adjoining owners. 

 

5. Vacating the subject right‐of‐way would not cutoff access to any parcels or land lock any 
parcels.   

 

6. There is no plan to improve the section of right‐of‐way proposed for vacation.   
 

7. The staff has not identified any reason to object to the proposed vacation. 
 

8. Once land is vacated, the city relinquishes the possibility of making public improvements 
on the surface of the land.  As in the case of all vacations, easement rights would be 
maintained on the property in order to permit the future installation of public utilities as 
may be needed.  No additional permanent structures would be permitted on the 
easement.   

Page 42 of 106



 

2 of 2 

 
The applicant has deferred obtaining an appraisal of the property pending the public hearing 
and review by the City Council.  If you are inclined to vacate the parcel, you might consider 
applying the $1.10 per square foot value that was approved in October for the Nack vacation on 
Third Street.  This would make the purchase price of the Ridge Street parcel $5,500. 
 
An ordinance has been prepared to complete the conveyance of the property to the petitioner 
should you approve to the vacation.  The ordinance is attached.   
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 43 of 106



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance #0‐15‐______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION 
OF A PORTION OF RIDGE STREET 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  WHEREAS, the City of Galena finds that the public interest will be subserved 
pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11‐91‐1 et seq. by vacating a part of Ridge Street legally described 
on Exhibit “A” and being approximately 5,000 square feet in area; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Thomas Winkens, (the “Owner”) is the owner of Lots 13‐16 and the 
Southwest Half of Lot 12 of Dickenson’s Subdivision of Lot 3 in Block 39 of the Original 
City of Galena, West Side of the Galena River, Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, 
commonly known as 604 Muir Street, Galena, Parcel Number 22‐100‐975‐00; and   
 
  WHEREAS, the Owner petitioned the Galena City Council to vacate a 5,000 
square feet unopened section of the Ridge Street right‐of‐way adjacent to his property; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Owner has maintained the city‐owned property as a parking area 
for many years; and  
 

WHEREAS, the subject right‐of‐way is fully described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to acquire an interest in the real property that is 

the subject to the vacation petition; and 
 
  WHEREAS, surrounding property owners and the public at large were notified of 
the request to vacate and invited to a public hearing before the City Council conducted 
on January 12, 2015; and 
 

Page 44 of 106



 2

  WHEREAS, the City of Galena finds that it is expedient for the public good to 
vacate said portion of Third Street and that no public interest will be subserved by 
vacating that portion of the street; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council has established the fair market value of the subject 
portion of Ridge Street as $1.10 per square foot or $5,500.00; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Owner agrees to compensate the City of Galena $5,500.00 in 
exchange for the conveyance of the subject property to the Owner.   
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED and enacted by the City of Galena, that all of 
that certain portion of real property situated in the City of Galena and being more 
particularly described on Exhibit “A” IS HEREBY VACATED and title shall be vested in 
Thomas Winkens, his successors or assigns. 
 
  SECTION I:  All of that certain portion of real property situated in the City of 
Galena and being more particularly depicted in Exhibit “A” IS HEREBY VACATED to Louis 
Thomas Winkens upon payment of $5,500.00.  The property interest in the right‐of‐way 
shall vest to the purchaser’s successors or assigns. 
 
  SECTION 2:   It is further directed that the street right‐of‐way described in 
Exhibit “A” be stricken from the City of Galena street plat. 
 
  SECTION 3:   The City of Galena reserves an easement over, under and through 
the vacated property for future uses.  The vacation of said parcel is subject to the 
rights of all public utilities in said parcel, rights‐of‐way and easements necessary or 
desirable for installing or continuing public service in said street and the person or 
parties requesting such vacation shall be responsible to said public utilities for any 
vacating, rearrangement or relocating costs in the event the same are necessary 
without any costs to the City of Galena, its successors or assigns.  The utility easement 
shall be to the benefit of the City of Galena, and assignable by the City of Galena to 
other providers of utilities, for the installation of utilities either above or below grade.  
No new permanent structures shall be located by the Owner, their successors or 
assigns, on the easement.  Any existing encroachments on the easement may be 
maintained or replaced at the discretion of the Owner. 
 
  SECTION 4:    By means of the conveyance of the subject property to the 
Owner, the City of Galena forever relinquishes any and all responsibility or liability for 
said property and any improvements to said property. 
 
  SECTION 5:   All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

Page 45 of 106



 3

  SECTION 6   Passed on this _____ day of January, 2015, in open session of the 
Galena City Council. 
 
    AYES:          NAYS: 
 
           
 
 
 
               __________________________________ 
               TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
  MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and return to: 
Mark Moran, City Administrator   
City of Galena 
101 Green Street, P.O. Box 310 
Galena, IL 61036 
 

Page 46 of 106



ST
R

EE
T 

V
A

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

LA
T

SHEET 1
OF 1

EX
H

IB
IT

 A

40.00

STREET VACATION AREA

APPROX. 125' X 40'

5000 SQ. FT. (VACATED TO

PARCELS 22-100-976-00 &

22-100-975-00)

125.00

DESCRIPTION OF PARCEL TO BE VACATED:

A 40 FOOT WIDE BY 125 FOOT LONG PORTION

OF RIDGE STREET ADJACENT TO THE

WESTERLY SIDE OF LOTS 13 - 16 AND SOUTHWEST

HALF OF LOT 12 OF DICKSON'S SUBDIVISION OF

LOT 3 IN BLOCK 39 OF THE ORIGINAL CITY OF

GALENA, WEST SIDE OF THE GALENA RIVER,

GALENA, ILLINOIS, BEING APPROXIMATELY

5000 SQUARE FEET IN AREA.

Page 47 of 106



Regular Board Meeting  22 December 2014 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 22 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 

14C-0502 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 22 December 2014.  
 
14C-0503 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Renner 
 
Absent:  Painter 
 
14C-0504 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
14C-0505 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 
14C-0506 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – Fach reported the storm windows have been installed and things are 
moving along.   
 
14C-0507 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Amelia Roth, 1373 US Highway 20 – Roth advised she is here to request an item be placed on 
the next agenda with regard to tour companies that are currently running in Galena that are not 
being licensed.  She advised this is taking business away from those who are being monitored 
and taxed.  They are utilizing VisitGalena.  Roth stated she was told Iowa Wine Tours was 
removed from the VisitGalena listing.  That is not true.  Countryside Tours is also using a false 
Galena address.  They also park their vans which creates off premise signage.   
 
Roth also noted there are lots of cigarette butts on the streets and sidewalks in the downtown.  
She recommended getting more cigarette butt containers.   
 
Bill Grosshans, 418 Harrison Street – Grosshans stated he is against using tax payer dollars 
for the deer culling program.  He sent a copy of his written objection to Mark Moran.  He is 
stumped as to why the City didn’t publish the DNR’s decision in the paper prior to voting on this 
item.  He feels the Council should spend taxpayer money the way they would their own.  The cost 
is now projected to be over three times the amount originally stated because salaries were not 
included.  He questioned if this would involve overtime or it would be done on regular shifts?  He 
questioned what would suffer because of it?  Grosshans recommended waiting until there is a full 
council present to vote on this controversial topic.   
 
Krista Ginger, 418 Harrison Street - Ginger stated she is opposed to any tax dollars going to kill 
the deer in the city limits just because a few people complain.  She questions what message this 
is sending to our kids?  She would prefer to see $9,000 or $10,000 go towards repairing broken 
sidewalks.  She urged the Council not to fund the proposal.   
 
Lisa Prindle, 415 Gear Street – Prindle expressed her disappointment with the council’s 
decision to go thru with the costly deer program.  She would prefer to see them spend money 
more closely to what the general tax paying citizens would like such as streets, sidewalks or the 
ARC.   

Page 48 of 106



Regular Board Meeting  22 December 2014 

 
Anna Hemm, 226 S. High Street – Hemm stated she is against the deer culling.  She is against 
taxpayer money going towards this at such a high price.  It is a lot of money that could be used 
for a more constructive reason.  Lots of people in the town struggle to pay their taxes.  They are 
happy when it is done but know the following year they will pay more because we are spending 
more money.  She urged the Council to stop spending and help more people in the city.   
 
Eric Ahlvin, 245 Council Fire Circle – Ahlvin objects to spending taxpayer money for deer 
culling when we have crumbling streets and heaving sidewalks.  This should not be a council type 
of activity.  It should be up to the property owner.  If they don’t want deer in their yard they can put 
up a fence.   
 
Dick Auman, 701 Young Street – Auman feels some of the Council thinks the deer culling 
needs to be done because some of the citizens are concerned.  He feels this is the wrong thing to 
do.  Auman advised he spent some time on the DNR website.  He learned the deer harvest this 
year was 148,000 deer.  If the State had to pay as much as the City is willing to pay for 25 deer in 
Galena, we would be in bad shape.  The State puts a lot of the burden on the deer hunter.  They 
have to take care of getting the meat taken care of.  They have to prove to the State that they are 
deer that need to be harvested.  He urged the Council to delay the voting on budgeting the 
money to do this.  He suggested seeing if there is a way to meet the concerns but, more 
importantly, meet the concerns of the many more who don’t want to see the deer killed.  He 
recommended postponing this item.   
 
Nikki Frank, 308 South Street – Frank stated she is opposed to the deer culling.  She is 
concerned with using taxpayer money to shoot deer within the city limits where our children live.  
She noted Gear Street is in desperate need of repair.  She questioned what was done to come up 
with the magic number?  Was a helicopter fly over done?  She stated she is appalled this is a 
priority for the City Council.   
 
Mary Hartman, 510 Gear Street – Hartman agreed with the comments made.  She questioned if 
the Police Officers can go hunting on their shift are we over staffed?  She referred to an incident 
in Dubuque where a slug went through a business window.  She questions if there would be any 
deer problem if the people who are in favor of this had to pay for it out of their pockets.  She 
thinks not.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA14-24 
 

14C-0508 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
DECEMBER 8, 2014 
 
14C-0509 – ACCEPTANCE OF OCTOBER 2014 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
14C-0510 – APPROVAL OF BA14-05 FOR DEER POPULATION CONTROL PROGRAM 
 
14C-0511 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY THE GALENA LIONS CLUB TO USE DEPOT 
PARK FOR OKTOBERFEST, OCTOBER 3, 2015 
 
14C-0512 – APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH COUNTRY FAIR INC. FOR THE USE OF 
GRANT PARK FOR COUNTRY FAIR, OCTOBER 8-11, 2015 
 
14C-0513 – APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR TURNER YHALL FIRE ESCAPE AND 
ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
14C-0514 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH LOUIE’S TRENCHING SERVICE FOR 
EMERGENCY SNOW REMOVAL 
 
Fach requested item 14C-0510 be removed from the Consent Agenda.   
 

Page 49 of 106



Regular Board Meeting  22 December 2014 

Motion:   Fach moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve Consent Agenda CA-14-24 as presented 
with the exception of item 14C-0510.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Painter 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
14C-0510 – APPROVAL OF BA14-05 FOR DEER POPULATION CONTROL PROGRAM 
 
Motion:   Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein, to table item 14C-0510, Approval of BA14-05 for 
Deer Population Control Program.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach 
  NAYS:  Greene, Kieffer 
  ABSENT:  Painter 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
14C-0515 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR 
USE OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY BETWEEN THE WISCONSIN INDEPENDENT NETWORK 
AND THE CITY OF GALENA 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Greene, to approve the amendment to the agreement for 
use of city owned property between the Wisconsin Independent Network and the City of Galena.    
 
Discussion:  None     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Painter 
 
14C-0516 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Greene, to approve the Warrants as presented, item 14C-
0516.         
 
Discussion:  None   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Painter 
 
14C-0517 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Alderman Fach wished all a Merry Christmas! 
 
14C-0518 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
No report.   
 

Page 50 of 106



Regular Board Meeting  22 December 2014 

14C-0519 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked all for sitting around this table during the good and the bad times.  He 
wished all a “Merry Christmas” and a “Happy New Year”.   
 
14C-0520 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Painter 
                       
The meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 51 of 106



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 15‐06

Fiscal Year 2014‐15  

Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase             Decrease    
Ending         

Balance

Contingencies  01.11.929.02  $                                         ‐    $                                 2,450  $             2,450 

Justification:

Approved Budget After Budget After

Fund Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment

General Fund Revenues 3,357,160$       3,357,160$                            3,357,160$                         

General Fund Expenses 3,637,160$       3,730,415$                            3,732,865$                         

General Fund Total (280,000)$        (373,255)$                              (375,705)$                           

Other Fund Revenues 5,122,020$       5,122,020$                            5,122,020$                         

Other Fund Expenses  5,833,920$       5,877,170$                            5,877,170$                         

Other Fund Total (711,900)$        (755,150)$                              (755,150)$                           

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit) (991,900)$        (1,128,405)$                           (1,130,855)$                        

Approved by City Council on ____________________

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

This budget amendment includes the following proposed change to the current budget:

1.  The proposed amendment would add $2,450 to the General Fund expense budget for the implementation of the 2015 Deer Population Control 
Program.  Estimated expenses that are not budgeted include $200 for ammunition, $750 for refrigeration, and 1,500 for processing.

Page 52 of 106



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2014‐2015

Date Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase          Decrease
Ending          

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

6‐23‐14 Office Supplies Shuttle/Parking 53.48.651.00  $                         ‐    $             2,200   $             2,200  BA15‐01 1068

6‐23‐14 City Hall Relocation 01.13.820.00 ‐$                        37,155$            37,155$            BA15‐01 1070

6‐23‐14 Sewer Equipment Replacement Fund 52.43.851.00 ‐$                        5,000$              5,000$              BA15‐01 1071

6‐23‐14 Other Professional Services 52.43.549.00 1,500$                    4,000$              5,500$              BA15‐01 1073

9‐8‐14 Water Equipment Replacement Fund 51.42.852.00  $                         ‐     $           28,500   $           28,500  BA15‐02

9‐22‐14 Turner Hall Improvements 58.54.820.00  $                14,000   $           29,500   $           43,500  BA15‐03 1075

10‐13‐14 Turner Hall Improvements 58.54.820.00  $                43,500   $             3,550   $           47,050  BA15‐04 1076

 

10‐13‐14 Police Salaries and Wages 01.41.411.00  $              338,850   $         11,075   $         327,775  BA15‐04 1077

 

10‐13‐14 Professional Services 01.11.549.00  $                   1,000   $           11,075   $           12,075  BA15‐04 1078

10‐27‐14 Consulting Services 01.45.532.00 5,000$                    26,600$            31,600$            BA15‐05 1074

12‐8‐14 Contingencies  01.11.929.02   $‐     $             2,450   $             2,450  BA15‐06

Notes:

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 12/15/2014

Page 53 of 106



 1

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 
WITH THE JAMES B. VINCENT TRUST AND CASEY’S RETAIL CORPORATION  

 

 
WHEREAS,  it  is  in  the best  interests of  the City of Galena,  Jo Daviess County, 

Illinois, that a certain annexation agreement with the James B. Vincent Trust and Casey’s 
Retail Company pertaining to the land described below be entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS,  a  copy  of  such  agreement  is  attached  hereto  and  incorporated 
herein; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the  legal owner of  record of  the property  that  is  the subject of  the 
annexation agreement  is  ready, willing and able  to enter  into  that agreement and  to 
perform the obligations as required thereunder; and 
 

WHEREAS, the statutory procedures provided in Division 15.1 of Article 11 of the 
Illinois  Compiled  Statutes,  as  amended,  65  ILCS  5/11‐15.1,  for  the  execution  of  the 
annexation agreement have been complied with in full; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GALENA, JO DAVIESS COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1: That the property covered by the Annexation Agreement is described 
in EXHIBIT A, and  

 
SECTION 2: That the Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute, 
and  the  City  Clerk  is  directed  to  attest,  a  document  known  as  “Annexation 
Agreement"  (a  copy  of  which  is  attached  hereto  and  made  a  part  hereof) 
between  the City of Galena and  the  James B. Vincent Trust and Casey’s Retail 
Company, and 
 
SECTION 3:  The invalidity of any section part, provision, term or phrase of this 
Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the remainder hereof, and 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 12th DAY OF JANUARY 2015. 

 
AYES:                                                 NAYS:    

   
 
 
 

 
 

Page 54 of 106



 2

               
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
                     ______________________________ 

            Terry Renner 
            Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 

 
__________________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Joseph Nack 
Galena City Attorney 
101 Green Street 
PO Box 310 
Galena, Illinois 61036 
 

Page 55 of 106



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 5, 2015 

RE:    Change Order #1: Police Department Renovation 
 
 
Work is progressing with the Police Department renovation project.  There have not been any 
big surprises to this point in the project, but there are some items that require your 
consideration as changes to the general construction contract. I have summarized the possible 
changes on the attached change order form.  
 
There are five change items that could result in cost increases and three items that would be 
removed from the project resulting in cost savings.  If all the changes were approved, there 
would be a net increase to the contract of $17,752.   
 
The two most costly additions would be to replace four office doors and to enlarge the two 
adjoining restrooms, updating the fixtures and finishes in the process.  Replacing the doors 
would make the offices fully accessible to persons with handicaps and compliant with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  The restroom remodel would also bring the restrooms 
into compliance with the ADA.  It should be noted that the restrooms would not have to be 
improved to ADA standards if they are not otherwise modified as part of the project.  
 
Funds for the change order would need to be allocated from the General Fund through a 
budget amendment.   
 
If you have any questions about any of the proposed changes, please feel free to contact me.  
You might find it helpful to tour the project at this time to see the layout, restrooms and the 
doors firsthand.   
 
 

  
 

 

Page 56 of 106



CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 
 
Number:        #1                Date of Issuance: January 12, 2015  
 
Project:   New City Hall 
 
OWNER:      City of Galena 
 
ADDRESS:    101 Green Street, Galena, IL  61036 
 
CONTRACTOR:  Montgomery Timmerman Inc. 
    205 S. Oak Street, Galena, IL. 61036 
 

ENGINEER/ARCHITECT:          Baranski Hammer Associates 

     
 
You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:   
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE ORDER:   
 
Ref # ‐ Architects Change Order Reference Number 
 

Ref.#  Work Item  Justification  Cost $ 

01  Add plywood to data closet for mounting 
network rack, security hub and other 
electronics 

Requested by City IT contractor to 
better organize the space 

300

02  Shim entry floor to level for carpeting  Severe slope in floor required extra 
work and materials for leveling 

375

03  Move window door in Sergeant’s office  Unforeseen obstruction   400

04  Replace four office doors   To comply with Americans with 
Disabilities Act 

2,965

05  Expand and remodel the two restrooms 
on upper level   

Restrooms have not been 
remodeled for approximately 25 
years.  Bring restrooms into 
compliance with Americans with 
Disabilities Act 

14,757

06  Deduct for door sills no longer required  Architect change   (395)

07  Deduct for removal of walls from break 
room instead of half walls 

Architect change  (300)

08  Deduct for removal of headers from 
common area 

Architect change  (350)

  TOTAL 
 

  17,752

 

Page 57 of 106



ATTACHMENTS:  Refer to work change directives and architect’s change orders 
 
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:               
 
Original Contract price, including alternates 2 and 4        $314,078.00 
 
Net Change previous Change Orders             $0.00 
 
Revised Contract price with previous change orders        $314,078.00 
 
Net Change of this Change Order           ADD  $17,752  
               
Contract price with all approved Change Orders          $331,830.00                
         
CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: 
Original Contract Substantial Completion Date          October 15, 2014 
 
Contract Completion Date Adjustment previous Change Orders      0 days 
 
Contract Completion Date Adjustment this Change Order      0 days 
 
Adjusted Contract Substantial Completion Date including Change Orders             February 12, 2015 
 
Recommended by: 
 
______________________________      ______________________________ 
Architect           Date 
 
Approved by: 
 
______________________________      ______________________________ 
OWNER          Date 
 
Approved by: 
 
______________________________      ______________________________ 

  
 

Page 58 of 106



Page 59 of 106



Page 60 of 106



 

 
     

 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 
 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Fiscal Years 2016 – 2020   

 

“Planned expenditures for systematically 
constructing, maintaining, upgrading and 
replacing the community’s physical 
plant”   

 
 

DRAFT 1 
January 12, 2015 

 
Mayor Terry Renner 

 
Alderpersons: 

 
 Pam Bernstein 
Charles Fach 

Laverne Greene 
Jerry Kieffer 
Todd Lincoln 
Emily Painter 

 

 

City Administrator, Mark Moran 

Page 61 of 106



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  Reference Page

 
The Capital Improvement Plan   

   
1 

 
A Capital Improvement Defined   

   
1 

 
Developing the Galena CIP   

   
2 

 
Individual Project Descriptions   

 
A1 

 
6 

 
Evaluation of Projects Using Criteria   

 
B1 

 
17 

 
Recommended Capital Improvement Plan   

 
C1 

 
19 

 
 

   

APPENDICIES     

 
Appendix A.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program   

 
APX. A 

 
21 

 
Appendix A1.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program Maps   

 
APX. A1 

 
22 

 
Appendix A2.  5‐Year Alley Improvement Plan  

 
APX. A2 

 
27 

 
Appendix B.  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Street Program (Estimated Costs)   

 
APX. B 

 
28 

 
Appendix C.  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Street Program (Recommended Plan)  

 
APX. C 

 
29 

 
Appendix C1: Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Projected Fund Balance    

 
APX. C1 

 
30 

 
Appendix D.  Public Works Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. D 

 
31 

 
Appendix E.  Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan  

 
APX. E 

 
32 

 
Appendix F.  Police Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. F 

 
33 

 
Appendix G.  Water and Sewer Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. G 

 
34 

 
Appendix H.  Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. H 

 
35 

 
Appendix I.  Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. I 

 
36 

Page 62 of 106



THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
A capital improvement plan (CIP) is a multi‐year schedule of municipal improvements.  The schedule usually 

covers a period of five or six years, but may extend to 10 years and beyond.  The Galena CIP spans a five‐year 

period  beginning May  1,  2015  (fiscal  year  2015‐16).    This  plan  sets  forth  the  proposed  expenditures  for 

systematically  constructing,  maintaining,  upgrading  and  replacing  the  community’s  physical  plant  or 

infrastructure,  and  includes  vehicles  and  other  mobile  equipment.    Capital  improvement  projects  are 

typically major, infrequent expenditures, such as the construction of a new facility or rehabilitation or major 

repair of an existing facility.  With the relatively small size of our community and budget, this CIP recognizes a 

project as small as $10,000 as a capital project.    Individual projects  from the adopted plan should become 

part of the capital budget for their respective departments.   

 

In order  to be useful as a  tool  for budgeting and sound  financial management,  the plan must be updated 

annually by reviewing existing projects, proposing new projects and extending the program by an additional 

year.   This process should also consider  the short  term and  long‐term effects of  the expenditures and any 

associated debt on fund balances and cash flow for operations.  The CIP is considered essential for managing 

and coordinating the efficient expenditure of Galena’s public resources. 

  
A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEFINED 
 
A capital improvement project is defined as a major expenditure that includes one or more of the following: 

 
1. Any acquisition of land for a public purpose; 
 
2. Any construction of a new facility (e.g., a public building, water lines, pavilion etc…) or an addition to, 

or extension of, such a facility; 
 
3. A  rehabilitation  (i.e.,  something which  is  infrequent and would not be  considered annual or other 

recurrent maintenance) or major repair of all or a part of a building,  its grounds, or a  facility, or of 
equipment, provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and the improvement will have a useful life of 
10 years or more; 

 
4. Purchase or major equipment (i.e., items with a cost – individually or in total – of $10,000 or more), 

which have a useful life of five years or more, including vehicles (rolling stock) if part of a systematic 
replacement plan; 

 
5. Any  planning,  feasibility,  engineering,  or  capital  design  study  related  to  an  individual  capital 

improvement project or  to a program  that  is  implemented  through  individual capital  improvement 
projects. 

Page 63 of 106



 
 
DEVELOPING THE GALENA CIP 
 
The necessity of a CIP was identified in 1991 as a recommendation of the Galena Comprehensive Plan.  The 

city’s  first  CIP  was  developed  in  1999  and  has  been  largely  implemented.    In  2003,  the  Galena 

Comprehensive Plan called for the update of the CIP and in 2004 the city council identified the CIP update as 

one of the top priorities during the visioning and four‐year goal setting process.  The CIP was again updated 

in 2007 and each year since.   The staff and administration have made a commitment to updating the plan 

annually.    This  section  generally  describes  the  process  of  developing  the  2015  Galena  CIP  and  the 

components of the plan. 

 

Staff Involvement 

Developing  the  recommended  capital  improvement  plan was  a  lengthy, multi‐step  process.    The  process 

began with each department head identifying the projects and major purchases that he or she would like to 

see completed over the next five years  in his or her respective area(s) of responsibility.   Department heads 

also estimated the cost of each project or purchase, described the relationship to other projects and assigned 

the projects a priority rating.   More than 50 projects or purchases were submitted for the five year period.  

Each project is described in a narrative and the estimated cost is identified in the “Attachment A:  Individual 

Project Descriptions”. 

 

Evaluating Projects 

Two separate methods were utilized in an attempt to demonstrate the relative importance of each project or 

purchase.   First, each project or purchase was reviewed against criterion ranging from health and safety to 

resource conservation.  Each criterion used is described in detail in Figure 1, “Criteria for Evaluating Capital 

Improvement  Requests”  on  the  next  page.    The  results  of  the  evaluation  are  shown  in  Attachment  B, 

“Evaluation  of  Projects Using  Criteria”.    Second,  each  department  head  ranked  each  project  as  either  a 

“high”,  “medium” or  “low” priority.   Combined, both methods of evaluation were useful  for  showing  the 

relative importance or need of each project or purchase. 

Page 64 of 106



FIGURE 1.  CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REQUESTS 

 
The  following  criteria  were  used  to  evaluate  each  of  the  proposed  capital  improvement  projects  or 
purchases.   The  results of  the evaluation  are  shown  as a matrix,  “Table 2. Evaluation of Requests Using 
Criteria”. 
 

Risk to Public Safety or Health.  To protect against a clear and possibly immediate risk to public safety 
or public health. 

 

Deteriorated Facility.  An investment that deals with a deteriorated facility or piece of equipment. The 
action  taken may be either: 1)  reconstruction or extensive  rehabilitation  to extend  its useful  life  to 
avoid or to postpone replacing it with a new and more costly one; or 2) replacement of the facility or 
piece of equipment with a new one. 

 

Systematic Replacement.  An investment that replaces or upgrades a facility or piece of equipment as 
part of a systematic replacement program. This investment assumes the equipment will be replaced at 
approximately the same level of service. Some increase in size to allow for normal growth or increased 
demand is anticipated. 

 

Improvement of Operating Efficiency.  An investment that substantially and significantly improves the 
operating  efficiency  of  a  department.  Or  an  expenditure  that  has  a  very  favorable  return  on 
investment  with  a  promise  of  reducing  existing,  or  future,  increases  in  operating  expenses  (e.g., 
introduction of a new or improved technology). 

 

Coordination.   1) An expenditure  that  is necessary  to  insure  coordination with  another CIP project 
(e.g., scheduling a sewer project to coincide with a street reconstruction project so that the street  is 
not dug up a year after  it  is completed); 2) A project  that  is necessary  to comply with requirements 
imposed by others  (e.g., a court order, a change  in  federal or state  law, an agreement with another 
governmental jurisdiction or agency); or 3) A project that meets established goals or objectives of the 
City Council and Mayor. 

 

Equitable Provision of Services, Facilities.  1) An investment that serves the special needs of a segment 
of  the community's population  identified by public policy as deserving of  special attention  (e.g.,  the 
handicapped,  the  elderly,  or  low‐  and  moderate‐income  persons);  or  2)  An  investment  that, 
considering  existing  services  or  facilities,  makes  equivalent  facilities  or  services  available  to 
neighborhoods or population groups that are now undeserved in comparison with residents generally. 

 

Protection and Conservation of Resources.  1) A project that protects natural resources that are at risk 
of  being  reduced  in  amount  or  quality;  or  2)  A  project  that  protects  the  investment  in  existing 
infrastructure  against  excessive  demand  or  overload  that  threatens  the  capacity  or  useful  life  of  a 
facility or piece of equipment. 

 

New or Substantially Expanded Facility.  Construction, or acquisition, of a new facility (including land) 
or new equipment, or major expansion thereof, that provides a service, or a level of service, not now 
available. 

Page 65 of 106



Revenue Sources and Projections 

The Galena CIP is utilized for planning and budgeting purposes and not as a rigid purchasing plan nor project 

schedule.   Therefore, the while the plan  identifies  likely revenue sources,  it does not contain projections of 

available  revenue  for  implementation of  the plan.    The CIP’s prioritized projects  should be  evaluated  for 

inclusion in the budget each fiscal year.     

 

Abbreviations are used throughout the plan for both revenue sources and departments.   The abbreviations 

are shown in Figures 2 and 3 below. 

                                                Figure 2.                                      Figure 3. 
                           Revenue Sources Abbreviations                                       Department Abbreviations 
 

Revenue Source  Abbreviation Department Abbreviation

General Fund Cash  GF Public Works DPW
General Fund Financing  GFF Engineering  ENG
Motor Fuel Tax  MFT Turner Hall TH
Flood Control Cash  FC Administration ADM
Water Enterprise Cash  WTC Flood Control  FLD
Water Enterprise Financing  WTF Water  WAT
Sewer Enterprise Cash  SWC Sewer SEW
Sewer Enterprise Financing  SWF Parks PAR
Fire Department Cash  FD Police POL
Grants  GT Fire FD
    Swimming Pool SP

 
Recommended Plan  

After  identifying all  the potential  capital projects and purchases, describing  them  in detail and evaluating 

their  importance,  the  final plan was developed.   The plan  is presented as “Attachment C: Recommended 

Capital Improvement Plan”.  The plan was recommended to the Mayor and City Council in January 2015 and 

approved on January 26, 2015.  The projects and purchases from the final plan should be incorporated into 

the annual operating budget as revenues permit.   

 

Summary 

The  importance of  implementing and updating  the Capital  Improvement Plan cannot be over‐emphasized.  

Using the same process described herein, the Capital Improvement Plan will continue to be updated annually 

to span a full five‐year period.   New capital  improvement requests will be submitted by department heads 

for  evaluation  and  inclusion  in  the  updated  plan.    With  guidance  from  the  Fund  Balance  Policy,  the 

Comprehensive Plan, and constituents, elected officials will decide which projects and purchases  from  the 

recommended Capital Improvement Plan will be included in the annual budget.  

Page 66 of 106



CIP PROPOSAL DESCRIPTIONS AND JUSTIFICATIONS OVERVIEW 
 
In the following section, every CIP project that has been proposed by the various departments of the City is 
described in detail.  Criteria, including the recommendations of the Galena Comprehensive Plan are applied 
to assess whether a particular project is justified.  Each project is defined in the following format:    
 

Project Title:       Name of the project as used throughout the CIP. 
 
Department:      Name of the department that proposed the project. 
 
Date Submitted:  The date the project was proposed. (Nearly all the projects in this first year of 

the plan were also proposed this year.)   
 
Project Priority:  The priority of the project relative to other projects within the department. 
 
Project Description:    Description of the project. 
 
CIP Evaluation Criteria:   A list of the applicable criterion from the following page, Figure 1, “Evaluation 

Criteria for Capital Budget Requests”.  The criteria are used to evaluate the 
importance of the project relative to other projects.       
  

Comprehensive Plan:  A statement of whether or not the project can be directly justified by the 
Galena Comprehensive Plan and, if so, a page number and an excerpt from the 
plan. 

 
Multi‐year:  Identification of whether the project will take more than one year to complete. 
 
Coordination:  Identification of whether the project is dependent on one or more other CIP 

projects and, if so, a description of the related project(s). 
 
Cost Estimate:      The estimated cost of the project. 
 
Basis of Cost Estimate:   Identification of how the cost estimate was derived. 
 
Funding Source:  Identification of the proposed funding for the project.  Possible funding sources 

include, but are not limited to:  
 

 General Fund Reserves   Water Enterprise Cash 

 General Fund Financing   Water Enterprise Financing 

 Motor Fuel Tax   Sewer Enterprise Reserves 

 Flood Control Cash   Sewer Enterprise Financing 

 Capital Projects Fund Reserves   Grants 

 Capital Projects Fund Financing   Donations 
  

Page 67 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

PUBLIC WORKS  

Project Title:
Department: Public Works/Engineering 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Equity Provision, Coordination, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: P. 108 "Budget for road improvements through the CIP process."
Multi‐Year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Projects are scheduled to coincide with underground utility work as much as possible.  
Cost Estimate: $895,270
Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of comparable projects and project specific estimates
Funding Source: General Fund, Capital Projects Fund

 

Project Title: Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: December 2008
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $375,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded/New Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate and bids
Funding Source: Grant funded 

Project Title: Paint Highway 20 bridge steps
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

The construction of public restrooms at Gateway Park will complete the installation of all major infrastructure.  The foundation and 

plumbing for the restrooms was installed in 2014.  A $50,000 grant has been awarded for the construction of the restroom building.  

The access road, parking lot, walking trails, prairie restoration and forest restoration at Gateway Park are complete.  

Replace deteriorated concrete sidewalks and crosswalks in the downtown.   The replacement plan will be based on the study and 

recommendations by MSA Professional Services. 

Gateway Park restrooms 

ATTACHMENT A. INDIVIDUAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS (FY 2016‐2020)

The steel stairway from the Highway 20 Bridge to the Depot Parking lot requires painting to avoid deterioration.  

Includes all street improvement work planned for the five‐year plan period.  Projects to completed with the non‐home rule sales tax 

revenues are listed in the 5‐Year Street Improvement Plan and detailed in Appendix C.  

5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A)

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A1

Page 68 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2012
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes, design, funding, and construction
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $73,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Dewey Avenue bridge replacement

Replace the bridge over Hughlett's Creek on Dewey Avenue.  The bridge has been inspected and found to be in poor condition.  The 

project will be coordinated by the County Engineer and paid for with a combination of federal, county and city funds.  

Additional parking at Recreation Park

Add diagonal or perpendicular parking on the east side of the entry road to the pool.  Parking could start in front of the Public Works 

building and extend to the area across from the playground.  

Replace deteriorated storm sewer located beneath Dodge Street between Gear Street and South Street.

Dodge Street storm sewer replacement

Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge

Paint the protective metal work on the sides of the bridge to prevent deterioration.   

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A2

Page 69 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 1999
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Equitable Provision of Facilities, New Facilities

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: Yes.  Initiate program after study/inventory is complete.
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Completed inventory of one ward.
Funding Source: General Fund 

Project Title: Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Could be completed in phases
Coordination: To be coordinated with the completion of the sidewalk along Cobblestone Boulevard
Cost Estimate: $47,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Replace Green Street steps (Main to Bench)
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: February 2008
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $28,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary contractor estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $491,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost of vehicles plus inflation factor 
Funding Source: General Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Flood Control

P. 112 "Investigate the rehabilitation of sidewalks under the CIP process.  This could include a discussion of possible financing 

mechanisms such as cost sharing or use of the assessment process."

Systematic replacement of deteriorated sidewalks and public stairways throughout the community.  The replacement schedule should 

be based on the results of the comprehensive inventory, condition assessment and prioritization.

Systematic replacement of public works vehicles and equipment.

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix D)

Replace deteriorated concrete steps between Main Street and Bench Street on Green Street.  These steps were repaired in May 2008 

in order to extend the useful life and delay replacement. 

Construction of five feet wide sidewalk from the  intersection of U.S. Highway 20 and Oldenburg Lane to the beginning of Cobblestone 

Boulevard.  The sidewalk should be constructed after the completion of the sidewalk planned along Cobblestone Boulevard and to be 

installed by the developer.  The proposed sidewalk will link the bike path along U.S. Highway 20 to the Cobblestone Crossing 

Subdivision.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A3

Page 70 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

ENGINEERING

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, New Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate 
Funding Source: General Fund, grant funding 

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate 
Funding Source: General Fund 

FLOOD CONTROL

Project Title:
Department: Flood Control
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Deteriorated Facility, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No 
Cost Estimate: $34,500  
Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract cost
Funding Source: Flood Control Fund
 

WATER

Project Title: Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street)
Department: Water 
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No.
Coordination: No.
Cost Estimate: $150,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan

50% share of cost of trading‐in the Public Works end loader every other year.  

In 2006, the water tower on Franklin Street was professionally inspected inside and out.  Detailed recommendations were made for 

repairing, upgrading and painting the tower.  Completing the work in the short term will be less expensive than if the facility continues 

to degrade, but funding availability will dictate timing.  

No direct reference.

Replace existing high pressure sodium light bulbs with high‐efficiency LED bulbs.  Replace all City‐owned lighting, including: downtown 

street lights, bridge lights, park lights, and some residential street lights.  The project should be based on a cost‐benefit analysis and the 

demonstrated suitability of the LED lighting for the proposed uses.   

Solar Installation at City Hall

Installation of solar panels on the rooftop of City Hall to provide power for the facility.  The project should be based on a cost‐benefit 

analysis with the exploration of the possibility of grant funding.  The roof of City Hall was replaced in 2013 in preparation for the 

installation of solar panels. 

LED street lights and park lighting 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A4

Page 71 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Paint and upgrade Dodge Street standpipe
Department: Water
Date Submitted: February 2008
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $100,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary Estimate
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Construct new well and pump house at Horseshoe Mound
Department: Water
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $800,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on cost of Well #7 project
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix G)
Department: Water and Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facilities, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
Cost Estimate: $87,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost plus inflation factor
Funding Source: Water and Sewer Funds

SEWER

Project Title: Inflow and infiltration study
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes, implement recommendations in future year(s)
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Paint the exterior of the water tower and make exterior improvements to meet current life/safety code.  Preventive 

maintenance/painting will be evaluated as an option to complete painting.

Professional study to determine points of inflow and infiltration of water into the sewer system.   Reducing inflow and infiltration can 

reduce operational costs, including electrical costs.

Construct a new well and pump house on the east side of the Galena River to provide a reliable source of water for the east side 

reservoir.  Undertake a city‐wide water system study as first phase of the project. 

Systematic replacement of water and sewer vehicles and rolling equipment.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A5

Page 72 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation, Health Safety, New Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $240,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Third and Rives sewer main extension
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 1999
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, New Facility, Equitable Provision
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $300,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate based on construction plans
Funding Source: Sewer Fund, State Grant, Low Interest Loan

Project Title:
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, New/Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $90,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement
Department: Sewer Fund

October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $75,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Installation of a new sewer main near US 20 and Bartell Drive to divert the sewer flow from the west end to the Hughlett's sewer main.  

This diversion will remove considerable flow from the sewer main on Franklin Street in the area of the schools where sewer backups 

have repeatedly occurred during heavy rains.  Easement acquisition will be necessary to install the diversion sewer.  

Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main 

P. 113  "Where feasible, connect all residences not currently served with sanitary sewer and water to the City's system to protect the 

Install new sewer main in Third Street and Rives Street neighborhood to convert businesses and residences from septic to sewer.

Replace under sized and deteriorated sewer main in the Hughlett Creek valley below Dewey Avenue.

Installation of a pump station at intersection of Bouthillier Street and Park Avenue or the installation of gravity sewer in Park Avenue, 

Johnson Street and along the railroad tracks to Jackson Street.  The operation of the lift station/gravity sewer will allow approximately 

12 properties to be removed from a combined sewer/storm sewer and connected to a sanitary sewer.

West end diversion sewer

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A6

Page 73 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension 
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Equitable Provision of Services, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $220,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

PUBLIC SAFETY

Project Title:
Department: Police 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $169,960
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on current costs of new vehicles plus inflation factor
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Records Management System
Department: Police
Date Submitted: January 2013
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No.
Coordination: No.
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Pricing of software and hardware
Funding Source: General Fund

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Project Title: Paint exterior of building and replace windows
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $45,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

P. 113  "Where feasible, connect all residences not currently served with sanitary sewer and water to the City's system to protect the 

Install sanitary sewer main in the area of Madison Street and Fifth Street to convert eight homes from septic to public sewer.  This is 

the largest cluster of septics within the city limits (excluding the Third and Rives neighborhood). 

Systematic plan to replace squad cars in the Police Department.   Replacement plan should be based on operating cost per mile, 

disruption to operations resulting from repairs and safety of the vehicles.

No direct reference.

Paint exterior of Fire Station and install storm windows.

P. 115 "Identify grant funding and other outside sources that will aid in purchasing capital equipment and the construction of new 

Police Rolling Stock Plan

Purchase new records management software for managing and tracking all police reports, including photo and video management.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A7

Page 74 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Training center classroom building
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, New Facility, Health Safety 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $300,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund, not‐for‐profit Volunteer Fire Department expected to contribute $100,000 toward total cost

Project Title: Concrete Fire Department driveways
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description: Replace blacktop driveways in front of garage bays with concrete.
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $45,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate from contractor
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Replace bunker gear
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $150,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title:
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
Department: Fire 
Date Submitted: January 2013
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,500,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Review of current costs plus inflation
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Replace self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA)

Replace SCBA gear

Systematic replacement of fire vehicles. (See Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan)

Replace outer protective clothing for all fire fighters.  

Begin construction of new multi‐purpose classroom building with vehicle bay.    

P. 115 "Develop a long term capital equipment and staffing plan for the Police and Fire Departments, based on population, tourism and 

growth projections."

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A8

Page 75 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

PARKS AND RECREATION

Project Title: Grant Park sidewalk replacement
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: February 2008
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Contractor estimate
Funding Source: Park Fund 

Project Title: Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,300,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: IDOT Grant Funds 

Project Title: Canoe and kayak launch
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Water main replacement to occur in the parking lot before start of the project
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: DNR grant funds, community funds

Project Title: Depot improvements for Amtrak
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Expanded Facility 
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $300,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate based on similar platform projects
Funding Source: General Fund, Grant Funds

P. 121 "Develop a bike route plan that connects the City's bike routes to external routes, such as the Grand Illinois Trail, and 

surrounding parks and natural areas."

Construction of the final phase of the Galena River Trail.  Includes trail building and fencing to separate the trail from the live railroad.  

All property has been acquired and design is nearly complete.  Two grants secured for design and construction.

Construct new platform and associated facilities for Amtrak passenger train service.  Date of train service is unknown.  

Continuation of program to replace all deteriorated sidewalks Grant Park.  This should be the final year of replacement.

No direct reference.

Construction of a canoe, kayak launch and park south of the U.S. Highway 20 bridge and east of the Gazette parking lot.  The project is 

expected to be completely grant funded. 

No direct reference

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A9

Page 76 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: January 2013
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects
Funding Source: Park Fund and grants from the Galena Foundation.

Project Title: Install five period street lights in Cemetery Park
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar lighting projects
Funding Source: Park Fund

Project Title: Replace Grant Park basketball court
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $32,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects
Funding Source: Park Fund

Project Title:
Department: Pool
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High, Medium, Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $82,850
Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes and estimates
Funding Source: Pool Fund 

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

Appendix H, "Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan."

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Improvement Plan."

Replace all concrete sidewalk around Soldier's Monument and rehab fountain‐‐both in Grant Park.  Projects to be in partnership with 

the Galena Foundation.

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Swimming pool maintenance and improvements

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Improvement Plan."

Grant Park fountain and monument

Replace deteriorated concrete court in Grant Park.

Improve lighting along sidewalk that cuts through Cemetery Park.  Reuse old downtown period street lights.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A10

Page 77 of 106



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016-2020)
Individual Project Descriptions

TURNER HALL

Project Title: Turner Hall maintenance and improvements
Department: Turner Hall
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year:
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,126,600
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates 
Funding Source: Turner Hall Fund, General Fund, grants

Yes, two year project
P. 121 "Continue to better utilize Turner Hall."

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

Appendix I, "Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan."   

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A11

Page 78 of 106



ATTACHMENT B. EVALUATION OF PROJECTS USING CRITERIA  (FY 2016‐2020) 

Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Public Works

DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) X X X X X

DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement X X X

DPW Gateway Park restrooms  X X

DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge steps X

DPW Dodge Street storm sewer replacement X X

DPW Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge X   X

DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement X X

DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park   X

DPW Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program X X X X X

DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone X

DPW Replace Green Street steps (Main to Bench) X X X

DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Engineering

ENG Solar Installation at City Hall X X X

ENG LED street lights and park lighting  X X

Flood Control

FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Water

WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) X X

WAT Paint and upgrade Dodge Street standpipe X X

WAT Construct new well and pump house at Horseshoe Mound X X

WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Sewer

SEW Inflow and infiltration study X X

SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  X   X X X

SEW Third and Rives sewer main extension X X X

SEW West end diversion sewer X X X

SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement X X

SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  X X X

SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Criterion

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 1

Page 79 of 106



Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Public Safety

POL Police Rolling Stock Plan X X X

POL Records Management System X X

 

Fire

FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows X

FD Training center classroom building X X X

FD Concrete Fire Department driveways X X

FD Replace bunker gear X X X

FD Replace SCBA gear X X X

FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Culture and Recreation

PAR Grant Park sidewalk replacement X X X

PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken X X

PAR Canoe and kayak launch X X

PAR Grant Park fountain and monument X X X

PAR Depot improvements for Amtrak X X

PAR Install five period street lights in Cemetery Park X

PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court X X X

SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements X X X X

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements X X X X X

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 2

Page 80 of 106



ATTACHMENT C. RECOMMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016‐2020)

Estimated FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Works
DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) 895,270$                      X 96,700$                   320,940$                 167,990$               198,600$                   111,040$                  895,270$                    
DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement 375,000$                      X 75,000$                   75,000$                   75,000$                  75,000$                     75,000$                    375,000$                    
DPW Gateway Park restrooms  50,000$                        X 50,000$                   50,000$                      
DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge steps 20,000$                        X 20,000$                   20,000$                      
DPW Dodge Street storm sewer replacement 25,000$                        X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge 25,000$                        X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement 73,500$                        X 73,500$                  73,500$                      
DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park 25,000$                        X 25,000$                  25,000$                      
DPW Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program 50,000$                        X 10,000$                   10,000$                   10,000$                  10,000$                     10,000$                    50,000$                      
DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone 47,000$                        X 47,000$                     47,000$                      
DPW Replace Green Street steps (Main to Bench) 28,000$                        X 28,000$                       28,000$                      
DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan 491,000$                      X 61,500$                   132,000$                 87,500$                  107,000$                   103,000$                  491,000$                    

2,104,770$                   293,200$                654,940$                438,990$               418,600$                  299,040$                  2,104,770$                

Engineering
ENG Solar Installation at City Hall 50,000$                        X 50,000$                   50,000$                      
ENG LED street lights and park lighting  20,000$                        X 20,000$                   20,000$                      

70,000$                        ‐$                         70,000$                   ‐$                         ‐$                           ‐$                           70,000$                      

Flood Control
FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan 34,500$                        X 11,500$                   ‐$                         11,500$                  ‐$                           11,500$                    34,500$                      
 

Water
WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) 150,000$                      X 150,000$                   150,000$                    
WAT Paint and upgrade Dodge Street standpipe 100,000$                      X 100,000$                 100,000$                    
WAT Construct new well and pump house at Horseshoe Mound 800,000$                      X 30,000$                  30,000$                      
WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan 43,500$                        X 6,000$                     17,500$                   20,000$                  ‐$                           ‐$                           43,500$                      

1,093,500$                   6,000$                     267,500$                50,000$                  ‐$                           ‐$                           323,500$                    

Sewer
SEW Inflow and infiltration study 20,000$                        X 10,000$                   10,000$                  20,000$                      
SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  240,000$                      X 240,000$                 240,000$                    
SEW Third and Rives sewer main extension 300,000$                      X 285,000$                 285,000$                    
SEW West end diversion sewer 90,000$                        X 90,000$                   90,000$                      
SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement 75,000$                        X ‐$                            
SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  220,000$                      X ‐$                            
SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan 43,500$                        X 6,000$                     17,500$                   20,000$                  ‐$                           ‐$                           43,500$                      
  988,500$                      346,000$                302,500$                30,000$                  ‐$                           ‐$                           678,500$                    

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C1 

Page 81 of 106



Estimated FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Safety
POL Police Rolling Stock Plan 169,960$                      X 32,000$                   32,960$                   33,950$                  35,000$                     36,050$                    169,960$                    
POL Records Management System 25,000$                        X 25,000$                  
  194,960$                      57,000$                   32,960$                   33,950$                  35,000$                     36,050$                    194,960$                    

Fire
FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows 45,000$                        X 45,000$                   45,000$                      
FD Training center classroom building 300,000$                      X 300,000$                 300,000$                    
FD Concrete Fire Department driveways 45,000$                        X 45,000$                   45,000$                      
FD Replace bunker gear 150,000$                      X 150,000$               150,000$                    
FD Replace SCBA gear 50,000$                        X 50,000$                    50,000$                      
FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan 1,500,000$                   X 1,500,000$               1,500,000$                
  2,090,000$                   345,000$                45,000$                   150,000$               1,500,000$               50,000$                    2,090,000$                

Culture and Recreation
PAR Grant Park sidewalk replacement 10,000$                        X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken 1,300,000$                   X 1,300,000$             1,300,000$                
PAR Canoe and kayak launch 110,000$                      X 110,000$                
PAR Grant Park fountain and monument 25,000$                        X 25,000$                  25,000$                      
PAR Depot improvements for Amtrak 300,000$                      X 300,000$                 300,000$                    
PAR Install five period street lights in Cemetery Park 10,000$                        X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court 32,000$                        X 32,000$                   32,000$                      
SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements 82,850$                        X X X 57,850$                   12,000$                   11,000$                  1,000$                       1,000$                       82,850$                      

1,869,850$                   1,487,850$             344,000$                36,000$                  1,000$                       1,000$                       1,869,850$                

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements 1,126,600$                   X X X 51,600$                   62,500$                   1,000,000$            12,500$                     ‐$                           1,126,600$                
1,126,600$                   51,600$                   62,500$                   1,000,000$            12,500$                     ‐$                           1,126,600$                

TOTAL 9,538,180$                   2,586,650$             1,779,400$             1,738,940$            1,967,100$               386,090$                  8,458,180$                

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C2 

Page 82 of 106



FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20
Street Location Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

FY 15/16

Sales Tax Projects

Kelly Lane 41,000$                    
Sales Tax Projects Total 41,000$                   

Blacktop Overlay
Alley Resurfacing  Between Franklin and Bridge (from Division to Hickory) 7,300$                      
Alley Resurfacing  Bostwick Alley( from Driscoll to Hickory) 7,300$                      

Blacktop Total 14,600$                   

Sealcoat
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge and Bluff Streets 35,400$                    
Parks Department/Recycling Center Parking Lot Meeker Street 5,700$                      

Sealcoat Total 41,100$                   

TOTAL FY 15/16 96,700$                   
FY 16/17

Sales Tax Projects
Claude Street/Field Street Meeker Street bridge to city limits 149,000$                
Gear Street Sidewalk and blacktop street between U.S. 20 and S. Bench Street 115,500$                

Sales Tax Projects Total 264,500$                

Blacktop Overlay
Third Street Adams Street to Madison Street 25,200$                   

Blacktop Total 25,200$                  

Sealcoat
Powder House Hill  Madison Street to U.S. 20 21,890$                   
Boggess Street Fifth Street to U.S. 20 9,350$                     

Sealcoat Total 31,240$                  

TOTAL FY 16/17 320,940$                
FY 17/18

Sales Tax Projects
High Street Spring Street to Gear Street  37,275$                    
West Street  Franklin Street to High Street 61,425$                    

Sales Tax Projects Total 98,700$                    

Blacktop Overlay
Elk Street From High to Dodge and from Dodge to West 20,900$                    
Alley Resurfacing Behind Galena Green south of Green Street 17,000$                    
Alley Resurfacing Between Prospect and High (south of Hill Street) 6,750$                      
   
  Blacktop Total 44,650$                    
Sealcoat
South Bench Street Gear Street to South End  9,350$                      
Mississippi Street Bench Street to Dodge Street  7,370$                      
South Dodge Street Gear Street to Mississippi Street 5,500$                      
Dewey Avenue To Council Hill Road 2,420$                      

Sealcoat Total 24,640$                    

TOTAL FY 17/18 167,990$                  
FY 18/19
Sales Tax Projects
Hickory Street Spring Street to Ridge Street 115,500$               

Sales Tax Projects Total 115,500$               

Blacktop Overlay
Jefferson Street and Madison Street Entire length of Jefferson and Madison from RR to alley 30,000$                  
Alley Resurfacing East of Park Avenue (from Jefferson to Madison) 17,700$                  

Blacktop Total 47,700$                 
Sealcoat
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge and Bluff Streets 35,400$                  

Sealcoat Total 35,400$                 

TOTAL FY 18/19 198,600$               
FY 19/20
Sales Tax Projects
Fourth Street U.S. 20 to Blackjack Road 79,800$                                  

Sales Tax Projects Total 79,800$                                  
Blacktop Overlay  

Blacktop Total ‐$                                            
Sealcoat
Boggess Street Fifth Street to U.S. 20 9,350$                                    
Powder House Hill Road Madison Street to U.S. 20 21,890$                                  

Sealcoat Total 31,240$                                  

TOTAL FY 19/20 111,040$                               

895,270$                

APPENDIX A:  5‐YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY 2016‐2020)

TOTAL CIP COST

5-Year Street Improvement Program
APX. A

Page 83 of 106



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

BLACKTOP SURFACING STREETS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A2

FY 2015-2016

PAGE APX. A2.2015-2016

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

Page 84 of 106



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

BLACKTOP SURFACING STREETS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A2

FY 2016-2017

PAGE APX. A2.2016-2017

CONTINUE TO U.S. HWY. 20

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

GEAR STREET RECONSTRUCTION

Page 85 of 106



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

BLACKTOP SURFACING STREETS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A2

FY 2017-2018

PAGE APX. A2.2017-2018

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

IDOT SPRING ST RECONSTRUCTION

Page 86 of 106



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

BLACKTOP SURFACING STREETS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A2

FY 2018-2019

PAGE APX. A2.2018-2019

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

Page 87 of 106



W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

BLACKTOP SURFACING STREETS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A2

FY 2019-2020

PAGE APX. A2.2019-2020

CONTINUE TO U.S. HWY. 20

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 88 of 106



Estimated

Map Surface (PASER) Resurfacing Square Surfacing Construction 

Location Alley Location Description Material Condition Material Feet Cost Priority Year

A Between Prospect and High (from Green to Washington) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 11,000    32,700$           1 Complete

B Between Prospect and High (south of Green Street) Asphalt 6 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 13,000    17,000$           10 2016‐17

C Between Prospect and High (south of Hill Street) Asphalt 5 Patch & 1‐2" Asph. O.L. or Patch & Crack Seal? 3,900      6,750$             9 2016‐17

D Between Elk and Hill (from Prospect to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 8,700      26,000$           3 Complete

E North of Franklin (between Driscoll and Hickory) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 5,400      7,300$             6 2015‐16

F Between Elk and Hill (from Dodge to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 10,300    30,650$           2 Complete

G Between Franklin and Bridge (from Division to Hickory) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 7,300      7,300$             5 2015‐16

H Between Main and Bench (north of Hill Street) Gravel 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 4,300      12,800$           4 Complete

I Between Park and Third (South of US 20) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 3,400      NA Private

J Between Park and Third (from Lafayette to US 20) Asphalt 4 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 6,600      11,400$           8 Complete

K Between Park and Third  (from Jefferson to Madison) Asphalt 3 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 10,200    17,700$           7 2017‐18

TOTAL 169,600$    

NOTE:  Cost estimates are based on at least 30‐50% of work being completed at same time. Otherwise, mobilization costs for single work items will increase cost.

APPENDIX A2:  5‐YEAR ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Based on Condition Assessment Conducted February 7, 2012

 5-Year Alley Improvement Plan
APX. A2

Page 89 of 106



FY 2008‐09 FY 2009‐10 FY 2009‐10 FY 2010‐11 FY 2010‐11 FY2011‐12 FY2012‐13 FY 2013‐14 FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16 FY 2016‐17 FY 2016‐17 FY 2017‐18 FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21

Improvement Bouthillier 

Street

Dewey Avenue Jackson Street Pre‐ERP & ERP Main Street 

Meeker Street

Main Street  

Gear Street  

Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Park Avenue Total Kelly Lane Gear Street Field Street West and High 

Street

Hickory Street Fourth Street Industrial Park Total

$           41,000  $            76,000  $          138,000 
     

   $        100,000 

Engineering         $          10,000  10,000$                  

Construction Sub‐Total      $           41,000   $        110,000   $              149,000   $            94,000   $          110,000   $            76,000   $          138,000  718,000$                

Contingency (5%)      $             2,050   $            5,500   $                  7,450   $              4,700   $               5,500   $               3,800   $               6,900  35,900$                  

$          746,476  $            90,000  $            3,461,931 

 

$            34,270  $                    ‐    $               524,048 

TOTAL PROJECT COST  $         630,758   $           495,064   $            369,541   $          554,305   $         885,615   $          152,800   $           27,150  $          780,746  $                    ‐    $            3,985,979  $           43,050  $        115,500  $              156,450   $            98,700   $          115,500  $            79,800  $          144,900  $            8,725,858 

Notes:

 $            79,800 

$                     ‐   

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair)

 $          144,900 

$                     ‐   

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐

Poor)

 $           43,050 

$                   ‐   

Completed Projects

 $                     ‐   

4 (Fair)

 $          115,500 

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair)

 $          110,000 

 $                     ‐   

‐$                        

1,048,095$            

‐$                        

‐$                        

100,000$                

Curb & Gutter

Sidewalk

Storm Sewer

Water 

Sanitary Sewer

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 4 (Fair)2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

APPENDIX B:  NON‐HOME RULE SALES TAX (1/2%) STREET & INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM
Completed Projects and Estimated Project Costs

Street (Rating) Condition 3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

‐$                        

608,000$                Street Construction

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

Planned Projects

Interest Expense    $         130,258   $         133,674  $             96,996 

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL  $         751,941  $         500,500   $          502,521  $           398,068   $            292,476 

 $              77,065 

 $            7,677,763  $            98,700  $           27,150 

 $            51,784  $                   ‐   

 $        115,500  $          152,800 

 $                    ‐   

4 (Fair) 2‐3 (Very Poor ‐

Poor)

 

 $              149,000 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

 

 $                     ‐   

 $              156,450 

$                         ‐   

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair)

 $            94,000 

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 3‐4 (Poor‐Fair)

1. Street Condition: Based on PASER rating system: 1 - Failed, 2 - Very Poor, 3 - Poor, 4 - Fair, 5 - Fair, 6 - Good, 7 - Good, 8 - Very Good, 9 - Excellent and 10 - Excellent
2.  Street Surface: all streets to be blacktop unless otherwise noted
3.  The IDOT has indicated that the Gear Street resurfacing will be included in the US 20 project.  The surfacing cost is excluded from the Gear Street project cost.
4.  Interest expense assumes borrowing at 4.85% interest for 10 years.
5.  ERP = Emergency Street Repair grant from the Illinois Department of Transportation 

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax Streets Program: Costs
APX. B

Page 90 of 106



Construction  Construction Project Project
Year Project Scope Cost

 

2015‐16 Kelly Lane Hill Street to Primary School parking lot 43,050$        

2016‐17 Gear Street S. Bench to U.S. 20 115,500$      

2016‐17 Field Street Meeker Street Bridge to City Limits 156,450$      

2017‐18 West and High Streets Franklin Street to High Street 98,700$        

2018‐19 Hickory Streets Spring Street to Ridge Street 115,500$      

2019‐20 Fourth Street  U.S. 20 to Blackjack Road 79,800$        

Total Cost 609,000$    

APPENDIX C:  NON‐HOME RULE SALES TAX (1/2%) STREET PROGRAM
Recommended Plan:  2016‐2020

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax Street Program: Recommended Plan
APX. C

Page 91 of 106



Year‐End Fund Balance 2008‐09* 2009‐10* 2010‐11* 2011‐12* 2012‐13* 1013‐14* 2014‐15 2015‐16 Continued

Below

Fund Balance  $190,949 $268,873 $454,405 $481,677 $843,873 $229,568 $239,540 $309,739

Year‐End Fund Balance 2016‐17 2017‐18 2018‐19 2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23 2023‐24 2024‐25

Fund Balance  $149,288 $157,503 $181,414 $318,409 $476,583 $821,023 $1,166,243 $1,542,243 $1,918,243

Notes:
* Actual audited fund balance.  All other years are projected based on proposed CIP expenditures.

APPENDIX C1: STREET IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND  

PROJECTED YEAR‐END FUND BALANCE 

Fiscal Year

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax: Projected Fund Balance
APX. C1

Page 92 of 106



APPENDIX D. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK AND EQUIPMENT PLAN (FY 2016‐2020)

Total FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

1961 Air Compressor
1991 Brush Chipper
2003 New Holland Utility Tractor  Same High 60,000$     60,000$      60,000$    
2005 John Deere 410 Backhoe Same Low ‐$           ‐$          
2006 3/4 Ton  Dodge Ram (Parks) Same (used) Low ‐$           ‐$          
2007 Sterling 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow Same High 85,000$     85,000$     85,000$    
2007 3/4 Ton Chevy Pickup w/ Plow Same (used) Medium 30,000$     30,000$     30,000$    
2008 Tymco Street Sweeper Same Low 100,000$   100,000$  
2010 Articulating Boom Mower
2010 Case 621 End loader w/ Backhoe Same High 46,500$     23,000$     23,500$     46,500$    
2011 International 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow/Spreader
2011 Chevy 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader Same Medium 65,000$     65,000$     65,000$    
2011 748 John Deere Mower Same Medium 22,500$     11,000$     11,500$     22,500$    
2011 2850A John Deere Z‐Turn Mower Same Medium 20,500$     10,000$      10,500$     20,500$    
2012 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump Same Low 70,000$     70,000$     70,000$    
2012 John Deere 320 Skid Loader (leased) Same Medium 15,000$     3,000$        3,000$       3,000$       3,000$       3,000$       15,000$    
2014 Chevy 1 Ton with Plow/Spreader/Dump Same Medium ‐$           ‐$          
2014 Case Mini Excavator New Low ‐$           ‐$          
2015 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump   Same High ‐$           ‐$          
2015 1445 John Deere Mower Same Medium 11,000$     11,000$     11,000$    

TOTAL 525,500$    73,000$      132,000$    99,000$      107,000$    114,500$    525,500$   

Priority

High

Medium

Low A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as soon as possible. 

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Description

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
APX. D

Page 93 of 106



APPENDIX E. FIRE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2016‐2020)

Total FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19/20 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

Replace Ladder Truck  Medium 1,500,000$            1,500,000$            1,500,000$           

TOTAL 1,500,000$            ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               1,500,000$            ‐$              1,500,000$           

Note:
* The cost of some vehicle purchases are shared with the Galena Rural Fire District.

Priority

High

Medium

Low

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete 

the project as soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

*  The proposed ladder truck purchase does not include the revenue from the sale of the current ladder truck.  The truck purchase could be delayed based on the performance of 

the current truck and/or budget.

Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. E

Page 94 of 106



APPENDIX F.  POLICE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2016‐2020)

Total FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19/20 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

Replace oldest squad with new model High 32,000$             32,000$            32,000$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 32,960$             32,960$           32,960$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 33,950$             33,950$           33,950$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 35,000$             35,000$            35,000$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 36,050$             36,050$           36,050$                           

TOTAL 169,960$           32,000$           32,960$           33,950$           35,000$            36,050$           169,960$                        

Notes:
1.   An inflation factor of 3% per year has been applied.
2.  All police vehicle costs are General Fund obligations.
3.   Starting in FY 09, an estimated $4,000 per year from court fines would be dedicated to vehicle purchases. 

Priority

High

Medium

Low A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the 

project as soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

Police Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. F

Page 95 of 106



APPENDIX G.  WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2016‐2020)

Total FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19 FY 19/20 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

1984 GMC spreader truck Same ‐$                   
2015 Ford 3/4 ton with utility box Same ‐$                   
2001 Chevy 3/4 ton pickup (red) Same High 12,000$     12,000$  12,000$            
1996 New Holland LX665 skid steer Same Medium 35,000$     35,000$  35,000$            
2001 Sniper 747‐4000R trailer jet Same ‐$                   
2012 Chevy 3/4 ton w/ utility box/plow 3/4 Ton/plow/box Medium 40,000$     40,000$  40,000$            

‐$                   
TOTAL 87,000$     12,000$  35,000$  40,000$  ‐$         ‐$       87,000$            

Water Cost (1/2 of TOTAL) 43,500$     6,000$      17,500$  20,000$  ‐$         ‐$       43,500$            
Sewer Cost (1/2 of TOTAL)  43,500$     6,000$      17,500$  20,000$  ‐$         ‐$       43,500$            

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan
APX. G

Page 96 of 106



APPENDIX H:  SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016‐20)

Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Start

FY 15/16 High Dolphin pool cleaner repair or replacement $5,000 Pre‐Season 2015

FY 15/16 High Resurface & repair water slide inside and out | 10 year warranty $15,000 Pre‐Season 2015

FY 15/16 High Resurface & repair mushroom water feature $850 Pre‐Season 2015

FY 15/16 Medium Computerized admissions and concessions $5,000 Pre‐Season 2015
FY 15/16 Low Install PA / music system $4,000 Pre‐Season 2015

FY 15/16 Low New water features for kiddy pool $10,000 Fall 2015

FY 15/16 Low Resurface kiddy pool (after new features installed‐‐Fall) $18,000 Fall 2015

Total FY 15/16 $57,850

Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Start

FY 16/17 Low New pool baskets / storage shelves / self locking storage for valuables $1,000 Pre‐Season 2016

FY 16/17 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2016

FY 16/17 Low Private family changing room / handicap accessible $10,000 Pre‐Season 2016

Total FY 16/17 $12,000

Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Start

FY 17/18 High New water features for kiddy pool $10,000 Fall 2017

FY 17/18 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2017

Total FY 17/18 $11,000

Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Start

FY 18/19 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

Total FY 18/19 $1,000

Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Start

FY 19/20 High New water features for kiddy pool or other pool enhancement $10,000 Fall 2019

FY 19/20 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

Total FY 19/20 $1,000

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $82,850

FUTURE PROJECTS

  New large waterslide $120,000

 
Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan

APX. H

Page 97 of 106



APPENDIX I:  TURNER HALL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2016‐20)

Year Project Estimated Cost

FY 15/16 High Historic Structures Report $10,000

FY 15/16 High Concrete channel / excavation behind building $5,000

FY 15/16 High Exterior stone sealing / foam sealing $4,000

FY 15/16 High Rear Wall Tuck‐pointing $2,500

FY 15/16 High Exterior Balcony Painting $2,500

FY 15/16 High Interior Lighting—new switches, possible new wiring $10,000

FY 15/16 High Retrofit Lighting with LED Bulbs $2,500

FY 15/16 Medium Retrofit front exterior lighting and put on timer to illuminate building $600

FY 15/16 Medium Marketing Plans $5,000

FY 15/16 Medium WiFi Landing Page at Turner Hall $1,500

FY 15/16 Low Investigate and possibly eliminate roof vent

FY 15/16 Low Patch & paint exterior kitchen wall (in parking lot) $4,500

FY 15/16 Low Purchase entrance matts x 2 ($500 per pair) to eliminate moisture damage to floor $1,000

FY 15/16 Low Build Dumpster enclosure $2,500

FY 2015‐16 TOTAL $51,600

Year Project Estimated Cost

FY 16/17 Medium New Boiler $15,000

FY 16/17 Medium Floor Refinishing (year 1) $2,500

FY 16/17 Medium Fly Loft $45,000

FY 2016‐17 TOTAL $62,500

Year Project Estimated Cost

FY 17/18 Medium Floor Refinishing (year 2) $2,500

FY 17/18 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades $10,000

FY 17/18 Medium Building addition and remodel with kitchen, bathrooms and storage $1,000,000

FY 2017‐18 TOTAL $1,000,000

Year Project Estimated Cost

FY 18/19 Medium Floor Refinishing (year 3) $2,500

FY 18/19 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades $10,000

FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $12,500

Year Project Estimated Cost

FY 19/20 No projects identified  $0

FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $0

5‐YEAR TOTAL $1,126,600

Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. I

Page 98 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ADVANCED BUSINESS SYTEMS, INC. (118913)
83254 1 Invoice SERVICE CONTRACT 01/01/2015 400.00 01.13.579.02

Total ADVANCED BUSINESS SYTEMS, INC. (118913): 400.00

ALBAUGH, CRAIG (1084)
010515 1 Invoice INSTRUCTION/TRAINING 01/05/2015 200.00 59.55.422.09
010515 2 Invoice RETIREMENT HEALTH B 01/05/2015 102.00 78.32.464.02

Total ALBAUGH, CRAIG (1084): 302.00

ALEXIS FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. (119768)
0051171-IN 1 Invoice PUMP TESTING 12/29/2014 973.00 22.22.929.00

Total ALEXIS FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. (119768): 973.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
010515 1 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 01/05/2015 272.82 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 272.82

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
010515 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 01/05/2015 8.21 01.41.552.00
010515 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 01/05/2015 3.44 22.22.552.00
010515 3 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 01/05/2015 168.35 01.21.552.00
010515 4 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  01/05/2015 648.05 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 828.05

BAUER BUILT TIRE (120046)
250017898 1 Invoice TIRES/STERLING DUMP  12/01/2014 1,444.92 01.41.652.01

Total BAUER BUILT TIRE (120046): 1,444.92

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0158708 1 Invoice STREET SIGNS 12/12/2014 83.48 01.41.652.04

0159083-IN 1 Invoice STREET SIGNS 12/29/2014 1,192.44 01.41.652.04

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 1,275.92

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
172021 1 Invoice PW GARAGE 12/11/2014 102.00 01.41.511.00
172429 1 Invoice DOOR REPAIRS 12/20/2014 188.55 22.22.611.00

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 290.55

CIVIC SYSTEMS, LLC (865)
CVC12397 1 Invoice SEMI-ANNUAL SUPPORT 12/29/2014 920.00 13.44.532.00
CVC12397 2 Invoice SEMI-ANNUAL SUPPORT 12/29/2014 1,869.00 51.42.532.00
CVC12397 3 Invoice SEMI-ANNUAL SUPPORT 12/29/2014 1,869.00 52.43.532.00

Total CIVIC SYSTEMS, LLC (865): 4,658.00

Page 99 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1205815 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 12/15/2014 139.50 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 139.50

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
010615 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 01/06/2015 385.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 385.00

EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950)
0066501 1 Invoice SWEEPER 12/19/2014 2,150.13 01.41.613.11

Total EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950): 2,150.13

ELECTRIC PUMP (578)
0860866-IN 1 Invoice PUMP REPAIR 12/22/2014 3,572.98 20.25.515.00
0860867-IN 1 Invoice PUMP REPAIR 12/22/2014 4,727.05 52.43.851.00

Total ELECTRIC PUMP (578): 8,300.03

EMERGENCY REPORTING (119956)
2014-4356 1 Invoice COMPUTER REPORTING 01/01/2015 1,188.00 22.22.652.00

Total EMERGENCY REPORTING (119956): 1,188.00

FLORAL CHIC/VIGNETTES (119951)
100463 1 Invoice PD PROJECT BLINDS 12/19/2014 7,184.00 01.13.820.00

Total FLORAL CHIC/VIGNETTES (119951): 7,184.00

FOECKING, MRS. JOSEPH (120045)
010515 1 Invoice CR BALANCE REFUND 01/05/2015 3.43 98.115.0

Total FOECKING, MRS. JOSEPH (120045): 3.43

GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20)
122614 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE D 12/26/2014 2,500.00 01.11.929.05

Total GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20): 2,500.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00039910 1 Invoice STREET VACATION NOTI 12/01/2014 30.40 01.14.553.00
00040239 1 Invoice ANNUAL TREASURERS R 12/18/2014 615.60 01.14.553.00
00040243 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE/ANNEXA 12/18/2014 41.80 01.14.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 687.80

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
010115 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 01/01/2015 8.00 01.13.654.00
010115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 01/01/2015 25.00 22.22.651.00
010115 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 01/01/2015 30.00 01.21.651.00
010115 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 01/01/2015 27.00 58.54.654.01
010115 5 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS - RUG S 01/01/2015 16.00 01.41.652.00

Page 100 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 106.00

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
010515 1 Invoice FACILITY REPAIRS 01/05/2015 6.49 59.55.511.01
010515 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOM REP 01/05/2015 26.01 01.13.511.08
123114 1 Invoice DEININGER FIRE 12/31/2014 48.31 22.22.652.00

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 80.81

GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93)
010515 1 Invoice PERS.PROP.REPLACE.T 01/05/2015 3,973.12 16.14.913.00

Total GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93): 3,973.12

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
010115 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 19.79 01.13.511.01
010115 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 3.86 01.13.511.02
010115 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 22.46 01.13.511.06
010115 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 4.19 01.41.514.04
010115 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 26.97 01.41.514.11
010115 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 27.47 01.41.613.12
010115 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 7.18 01.41.613.15
010115 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 173.71 01.41.652.00
010115 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 18.24 01.41.653.00
010115 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 19.95 01.41.655.00
010115 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 118.90 17.52.652.00
010115 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 20.68 22.22.611.00
010115 13 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 53.97 22.22.613.00
010115 14 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 24.29 22.22.652.00
010115 15 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 30.12 58.54.511.00
010115 16 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2015 8.08 59.55.511.01

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 579.86

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
60683 1 Invoice WEBSITE CHANGES/HOS 10/01/2014 92.70 01.13.512.05
61437 1 Invoice MONTHLY HOSTING FEE 11/01/2014 75.00 01.13.512.05
61759 1 Invoice WEBSITE CHANGES/HOS 12/01/2014 118.05 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 285.75

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI003952 1 Invoice STERLING DUMP 12/01/2014 95.33 01.41.613.05
GWI004063 1 Invoice SWEEPER 12/27/2014 19.78 01.41.613.11
GWI004064 1 Invoice STERLING DUMP 12/27/2014 196.26 01.41.613.05
GWI004102 1 Invoice VEHICLE MAINT 01/02/2015 105.54 20.25.513.00
GWI004103 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 01/02/2015 26.90 01.41.613.06
GWI004104 1 Invoice SWEEPER 01/02/2015 71.47 01.41.613.11

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 515.28

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
010115 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 01/01/2015 240.00 01.13.411.00

Page 101 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

010115 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  01/01/2015 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090)
D386960 1 Invoice METERS 12/23/2014 10,240.00 51.42.831.00

Total HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090): 10,240.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
010515 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  01/05/2015 2,319.00 01.218.0
010515 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  01/05/2015 388.00 01.218.0
010515 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 01/05/2015 23,966.09 01.13.451.00
010515 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 01/05/2015 875.71 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 27,548.80

IAHPC (119771)
010515 1 Invoice DUES 01/05/2015 50.00 01.46.561.00

Total IAHPC (119771): 50.00

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1517668 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 12/15/2014 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034)
33150 1 Invoice AXE & HALIGAN BAR 12/22/2014 296.95 22.22.840.00

Total ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034): 296.95

ILLOWA (119388)
010515 1 Invoice DUES 01/05/2015 25.00 01.46.561.00

Total ILLOWA (119388): 25.00

INTERGRAPH CORPORATION (533)
1-635795451 1 Invoice UPGRADE LICENSE 12/22/2014 552.00 01.45.684.00

Total INTERGRAPH CORPORATION (533): 552.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
010115 1 Invoice ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 6,302.45 15.41.572.00
010115 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 605.91 01.13.571.01
010115 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 659.41 01.21.571.01
010115 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 106.69 12.10.571.01
010115 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 113.24 17.52.571.01
010115 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 370.57 20.25.576.01
010115 7 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 01/01/2015 551.84 58.54.571.01
010115 8 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 01/01/2015 30.19 01.41.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,740.30

Page 102 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

JO DAVIESS COUNTY (119265)
010515 1 Invoice SIDEWALK 01/05/2015 10,664.00 01.41.863.07

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY (119265): 10,664.00

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
121914 1 Invoice GIS SERVICES 12/19/2014 18.75 01.45.532.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
010515 1 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 01/05/2015 100.00 22.22.538.00
010515 2 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 01/05/2015 200.12 01.21.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281)
112126 1 Invoice MISC. VEHICLE REPAIRS 12/22/2014 380.55 01.41.613.12

Total MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281): 380.55

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
010515 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL 01/05/2015 1,763.00 01.13.451.01
010515 2 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE 01/05/2015 248.96 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 2,011.96

MILLER, JEFF (119614)
010615 1 Invoice CDL LICENSE 01/06/2015 65.00 01.41.563.00

Total MILLER, JEFF (119614): 65.00

MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001)
CK07130 1 Invoice CREDIT 12/30/2014 92.99- 01.41.613.09
EK03936 1 Invoice MINI EXCAVATOR 12/15/2014 16,000.00 51.42.831.03
EK03936 2 Invoice MINI EXCAVATOR 12/15/2014 7,700.00 52.43.850.13
IK04126 1 Invoice END LOADER 12/23/2014 215.23 01.41.613.09

Total MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001): 23,822.24

MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877)
010715 1 Invoice DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION 01/07/2015 40,069.60 22.22.840.05

Total MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877): 40,069.60

MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350)
010515 1 Invoice PD REMODEL PROJECT 01/05/2015 49,928.20 01.13.820.00

Total MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350): 49,928.20

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
119315 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 01/01/2015 13,397.60 13.44.540.04
119315 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 01/01/2015 4,635.90 13.44.540.00
119315 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 01/01/2015 60.00 13.44.544.03

Page 103 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

119315 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 01/01/2015 144.50 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,238.00

MORTON SALT, INC. (120038)
5400634594 1 Invoice SALT 12/19/2014 2,251.08 01.41.614.07
5400638059 1 Invoice SALT 12/22/2014 2,220.35 01.41.614.07
5400645544 1 Invoice SALT 01/05/2015 4,443.32 01.41.614.07

Total MORTON SALT, INC. (120038): 8,914.75

MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC (427)
121814 1 Invoice STUDY/REPORT 12/18/2014 3,700.00 01.45.532.00

Total MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC (427): 3,700.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
010115 1 Invoice MISC. PARTS 01/01/2015 13.99 01.41.613.12
010115 2 Invoice MISC. PARTS 01/01/2015 56.45 01.41.652.00
010115 3 Invoice MISC. EQUIPMENT 01/01/2015 458.79 20.25.513.00
010115 4 Invoice MISC. PARTS 01/01/2015 3.28 17.52.514.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 532.51

NICOR (151)
010515 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 01/05/2015 113.51 01.13.511.06
010515 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 01/05/2015 270.40 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 383.91

NICOR (F) (118924)
010115 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 01/01/2015 233.57 01.13.571.05
010115 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 01/01/2015 429.47 01.21.571.05
010115 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 01/01/2015 651.31 01.41.571.05
010115 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 01/01/2015 471.61 22.22.571.05
010115 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 01/01/2015 1,515.26 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 3,301.22

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
010515 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 01/05/2015 83.15 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 83.15

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
010515 1 Invoice POSTAGE 01/05/2015 8.32 01.21.551.00
010515 2 Invoice MEAL/TRAINING 01/05/2015 26.63 01.21.562.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 34.95

PF PETTIBONE & CO (395)
32191 1 Invoice STATE CITATIONS 12/23/2014 251.10 01.21.554.00

Page 104 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total PF PETTIBONE & CO (395): 251.10

RYAN, ANGELA (119753)
123014 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 12/30/2014 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total RYAN, ANGELA (119753): 200.00

SALSBURY INDUSTRIES (120041)
686623 1 Invoice WALL LOCKERS/PD PRO 12/12/2014 232.61 01.13.820.00

Total SALSBURY INDUSTRIES (120041): 232.61

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0433945 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 01/02/2015 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
218537 1 Invoice SNOWBLOWER REBUILD 11/24/2014 160.01 17.52.514.00

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 160.01

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
32799 1 Invoice HEAT TAPE REPLACEME 12/29/2014 1,100.00 58.54.511.00

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 1,100.00

TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187)
13300 1 Invoice DECAL 12/19/2014 10.00 01.13.511.01

Total TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187): 10.00

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
010515 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 01/05/2015 73.33 51.42.551.00
010515 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 01/05/2015 73.33 52.43.551.00
010515 3 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 01/05/2015 73.34 13.44.551.00

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 220.00

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
5953 1 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 12/20/2014 40.00 01.21.549.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 40.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
588866 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 11/26/2014 12.12 17.52.652.00
590857 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 12/18/2014 29.35 01.13.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 41.47

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
010515 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 01/05/2015 110.00 01.41.511.01
123014 1 Invoice STORM WINDOWS/PAINT 12/30/2014 3,626.42 58.54.820.00

Page 105 of 106



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 12/23/2014 - 1/31/2015 Jan 08, 2015  10:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 3,736.42

WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914)
20571 1 Invoice DESIGN 12/22/2014 3,853.73 41.61.860.07

Total WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914): 3,853.73

WINDY HILL CONSTRUCTION (119449)
4888 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL @ AIKEN CU 01/01/2015 187.50 17.52.820.06

Total WINDY HILL CONSTRUCTION (119449): 187.50

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13196 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 01/03/2015 150.00 01.13.512.04
13196 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS COMPU 01/03/2015 852.00 01.41.614.04

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 1,002.00

WSG INC., DBA R & L GAS MART (119503)
122214 1 Invoice FUEL 12/22/2014 623.03 01.41.655.00

Total WSG INC., DBA R & L GAS MART (119503): 623.03

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0152850 1 Invoice SWEEPER 12/18/2014 128.25 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 128.25

Grand Totals: 260,936.65

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 5273145
Vendor number hash - split: 6594829
Total number of invoices: 85
Total number of transactions: 140

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 260,936.65 260,936.65

Grand Totals: 260,936.65 260,936.65

Page 106 of 106


	00.00 Agenda 01.12.15
	01.0007.1 Casey's Annexation
	Memo to Council
	Annexation Agreement January 12 CC Draft
	Legal Description
	Casey's Plan Set for Annexation Agreement
	Casey's Galena 1 of 3
	Casey's Galena 2 of 3
	Casey's Galena 3 of 3


	02.0008 Winkens Street Vacation
	Winkens Memo
	Winkens Ordinance
	604 Muir Street Vacation 2014

	03.0009 Minutes cc122214
	04.0010 Budget Amendment BA15-06
	Budget Amendment BA15-06
	Budget Amendment BA15-06 2

	05.0010 Resolution to Execute Agreement Caseys
	06.0013 Police Department Change Order
	Police Dept Change Order
	Change order 1

	07.0014 Third and Rives Grant Administration
	08.0015 CIP Draft 1
	cover draft 2015
	Table Contents and Text
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Appendix A
	Appendix A1 Maps
	Appendix A2
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix C1
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I

	09.0015 Warrants 01.12.15



